-~

\_

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE TRADING

ACTIVITIES SUB GROUP
Friday, 28th September, 2012

2.00 pm

~

Swale 3, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone

Council







AGENDA

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE TRADING ACTIVITIES SUB

GROUP
Friday, 28 September 2012 at 2.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
Swale 3, Sessions House, County Hall, Telephone: 01622 694342

Maidstone
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting
Membership (3)
Conservative (2): MrR L H Long, TD and Mr C T Wells
Liberal Democrat (1): Mr T Prater

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

Item

1 Substitutes

2 Declarations of Interest by Members for items on the agenda

3 Minutes - 4 July 2012 (Pages 1 - 4)

4 Protocol relating to companies in which KCC has an interest (Pages 5 - 12)

5 East Kent Opportunities LLP (Pages 13 - 28)

6 KCC's dormant companies (Pages 29 - 32)

7 KCC's Limited Companies 2011/12 Statutory Accounts (Pages 33 - 312)

8 Re-alignment of Commercial Services structure following external review of its
activities. (Pages 313 - 356)

Peter Sass

Head of Democratic Services

(01622) 694002

Thursday, 20 September 2012

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant
report.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE TRADING ACTIVITIES
SUB GROUP

MINUTES of a meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities
Sub Group held in the Swale 2, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on
Wednesday, 4 July 2012.

PRESENT: MrR L H Long, TD, Mr T Prater and Mr C T Wells
ALSO PRESENT: Mr R F Manning and Mr J D Simmonds

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr A Wood (Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement),
Mr G Record (Finance and Procurement Officer), Ms N Major (Interim Head of
Internal Audit), Mr N Jordan (EduKent Manager), Mr P McSweeney (EduKent Officer)
and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

1. Minutes - 17 May 2010
(Iltem 3)

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 May 2010 are correctly
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

2. Protocol relating to Companies in which KCC has an interest
(Iltem 4)

(1)  The Finance and Procurement Officer reported that he had been asked to
review the existing Protocol relating to companies in which KCC has an interest and
the more detailed accompanying Guidance on Local Authority Companies. The
review had established that the Protocol was fit for purpose subject to some minor
amendments which were contained in the body of the written report.

(2) RESOLVED that:-
(@)  the report be noted for assurance;

(b) the proposed amendments to the Protocol be recommended to
Governance and Audit Committee; and

(c) the Protocol and Guidance be reviewed bi-annually, unless
fundamental changes (for example, legislative changes) necessitate a
review during the intervening period.

3. EduKent
(Iltem 5)

(1)  The EduKent Manager provided an update on EduKent’s current position and
made recommendations on how best to ensure its successful and sustainable

Page 1



development and growth. These included the establishment of an Edukent Board,
headed by the Corporate Director for Education, Learning and Skills.

(2)  The Sub-Group endorsed the suggestion made by the Corporate Director of
Finance and Procurement that a Shadow Board should be established in order to
draw up proposed governance arrangements and a business plan which the Sub-
Group could consider in detail at a later stage.

(3) RESOLVED that:-
(@) the report and its recommendations be noted; and

(b)  that a further report be submitted at the earliest opportunity setting out
the proposed governance arrangements and a business plan for the
Sub-Group’s consideration.

4. KCC Limited Companies - 2011/12 Draft Results (subject to audit)
(Item 6)

(1)  The Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement reported on the draft
material transactions, information and results in relation to the companies that KCC
had an interest in. These results were to be included in KCC’s Statement of Accounts
2011/12.

(2)  In response to questions from the Sub-Group Members, the Corporate
Director of Finance and procurement confirmed that a report by an independent
consultant on the County Council’'s commercial businesses would be considered by
the Sub-Group at a meeting to be arranged to take place in September 2012.

(3)  The Sub-Group asked for a report on East Kent Opportunities LLP to be

presented to its next meeting together with a list of all the LLPs and any Joint
Arrangements that are Not an Entity (JANEs) that the County Council was involved

(4)  The Sub-Group asked for a report on dormant Kent Companies.
(5) RESOLVED that:-
(@)  the content of the report be noted for assurance;
(b)  the accurate, complete and up-to-date record of all companies in which
KCC has an interest be noted together with the draft (subject to Audit)
material transactions, information and results in relation to these
companies - for inclusion in KCC’s Statement of Accounts 2011-12; and
(c) a report on East Kent Opportunities LLP and on Kent’s dormant

companies be presented to the next meeting of the Sub-Group together
with a list of all LLPs and JANEs that the County Council is involved in.

Page 2



5. Trading Activities/Units 2011/12 draft Results (subject to audit)
(Item 7)

(1)  The Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement reported the £392.66m
trading activity turnover generated across the County Council. He asked the Sub-
Group to note that information on the actual cost involved in producing the turnover
figures could not be isolated from core activities without undertaking a prohibitive
amount of research.

(2) The Sub-Group asked for future reports on this subject to provide some
analysis of financial trends; i.e. year-on-year comparative figures.

(3) RESOLVED that:-
(@) the contents of the report be noted for assurance; and

(b)  the Trading Activity Results for 2011-12 be noted together with the
intention to develop a more refined analysis of the costing, pricing and
trends of KCC's trading activities for future reports.

EXEMPT ITEMS
(Open access to Minutes)

The Sub-Group resolved under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 to
exclude the public from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it
involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 2, 5 and
7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

6. Update on Kent Cultural Trading (oral report)
(ltem 9)

(1)  The Interim Head of Internal Audit reported the ongoing investigation into the
activities of Kent Cultural Trading Ltd. She explained that the Sub-Group Members
needed to be aware that this work was taking place and that a full report on this
matter would be presented to the Sub-Group and its parent Committee at the earliest
opportunity.

(2) RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda ltem 4

By: John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Support
Andy Wood, Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement

To: Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group - 28
September 2012

Subject: Protocol relating to companies in which KCC has an interest (the ‘Protocol’)

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: Members are invited to approve a small number of proposed amendments
to the Protocol, following the request at the Governance and Audit Committee meeting on
26 July 2012 that the Protocol be updated to address specifically anti-fraud and
corruption policies.

FOR DECISION

INTRODUCTION

1. The proposed amendments to address specifically anti-fraud and corruption policies
are set down in paragraph 3 below.

2. An updated version of the Protocol incorporating the proposed amendments is
enclosed at Appendix 1.

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE PROTOCOL

3. Paragraph 7 of the Protocol states that “The Council shall only become a member or
director of a company following a decision of the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member
taken in accordance with the decision making procedures set out in the Council’s
Constitution’. It then makes it clear that when seeking such a decision any report to
the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member shall include statements about a number of
specific matters. Sub-paragraph 7(d) concerns ‘what Council policies (if any) are to
apply to the company’. It is recommended that an additional sentence is added at the
end of sub-paragraph 7(d), and that a new sub-paragraph, 7(e), is inserted (as the
new penultimate sub-paragraph in paragraph 7) so that the Protocol reads:

‘(d) what Council policies (if any) are to apply to the company. If no policies
have been stated in the Member decision and the company directors do not
formally set their own, the policies adopted should default automatically to
KCC policies. Where a company adopts its own policies, assurance must
be provided that adequate policies and procedures are in place, with
particular reference to anti-fraud and corruption

Page 5



(e) that appropriate due diligence has been completed which must include an
evaluation of the background, experience and reputation of the company
and/or the proposed and existing directors’

RECOMMENDATION

4. Members are invited to approve the proposed amendments to the Protocol set out in
paragraph 3 above and incorporated in the updated version of the Protocol attached
at Appendix 1, following the request at the Governance and Audit Committee
meeting on 26 July 2012 that the Protocol be updated to address specifically anti-
fraud and corruption policies.

Guy Record, BSS, Finance & Procurement, September 2012

Page 6



1.

APPENDIX 1

Protocol relating to companies
in which KCC has an interest

In relation to companies in which the Council has an interest, it is imperative
that they are set up, managed and run according to rules of good governance
so that risks are mitigated. This Protocol aims to establish processes and
provide additional controls to ensure such rules are in place.

Anyone within the Council intending to set up a company should refer to the
‘Guidance on Local Authority Companies’ document on KNET. A robust
business case must be provided which gives a cost benefit analysis, considers
the accounting and tax implications for the Council and identifies any risks to
the Council. The business case must go through the Governance and Audit
Committee Trading Activities Sub Group who will examine this and make
recommendations. In light of the recommendations the relevant Cabinet
Member shall approve the company’s business case. Where the company is
intending to exercise the power to trade pursuant to section 95 of the Local
Government Act 2003, the business case shall contain enough detail to satisfy
the requirements of this Act and be similar to that required by the Council for
major capital projects.

This Protocol relates to the following companies:

(a) in the case of companies with issued share capital, those companies in
which the Council's interest is more than 1% of the issued share capital,
where those shares are held other than for solely investment purposes

(b) in the case of any company without shares, where the Council is a
member

(c) any company of whatever sort in which the Council nominates one or
more directors or itself is (or has the right to be) a company director

In the case of a company formed or controlled by the Council (or where the
Council has, or can reasonably have, input into the wording of the
Memorandum and Articles), the following provisions must appear in the
company's Articles:

(a) The registered office shall be specified as: Sessions House, County
Hall, Maidstone, Kent ME14 1XQ (care of the Corporate Director of
Finance and Procurement).

(b) The Corporate Director (or Managing Director) within whose remit the
company’s business lies, shall be responsible for nominating a secretary
for the company from among his/her staff. A register of all company
secretaries will be maintained.

(c) Any Member or officer of the Council who is appointed as a director or
secretary of that company shall not be appointed in their own private
capacity but shall be appointed as a nominee of the Council, which shall
have the power to remove and replace such director or secretary as it
may see fit.

(d) It shall be the responsibility of the Council’s representative on the board
to make whatever arrangements may be necessary to ensure the

Page 7



APPENDIX 1

company makes a full annual report of its activities to the Cabinet within
three months after the end of its financial year.

(e) No Member or officer of the Council who is appointed as a director or
secretary of that company (or who represents the Council at any
meeting of the company or of the board) shall receive any income from
the company unless the Council's Corporate Director of Finance and
Procurement so agrees in writing in advance. If any income is received
by a Member or officer, it must be documented in the relevant Register
of Interests and published on the Council’s website.

In respect of any company to which this Protocol applies the following rules
shall also apply (even if not included in the company’s Articles):

(a) Any director of the company who is nominated by the Council (and any
person authorised to represent the Council at a meeting of the company
or of the board) shall be appointed by the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet
Member in accordance with the decision making procedures set out in
the Council’'s Constitution.

(b) Any person authorised to represent the Council at a meeting of the
company (where the Council is a member of the company) or of the
board (where the Council is a director of the company) shall follow such
directions as to the operation of the company as may be determined by
the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member from time to time in accordance
with the decision making procedures set out in the Council’s
Constitution.

(c) Directors nominated by the Council shall (so far as permitted by law and
their duties to the company as directors) follow such directions as to the
operation of the company as may be determined by the Cabinet or
relevant Cabinet Member from time to time in accordance with the
decision making procedures set out in the Council’'s Constitution.

(d) Members or officers representing the Council on any board shall only
take decisions which are in accordance with the company’s articles and
any Council policies that are to apply to the company.

(e) Where Members or officers of the Council incur expenses as a result of
their involvement in the company, this shall be claimed by them from the
company as the Council's Corporate Director of Finance and
Procurement may direct.

In any situation where a Member or officer of the Council (or any member of
their close family) is (in their private capacity) a member, director or secretary of
a company of which the Council is also a member or director, or in respect of
which the Council has the right to nominate one or more directors, then such
Member or officer shall notify the Corporate Director of Finance and
Procurement of this in writing as soon as they become aware of the same.
These should be documented in the relevant Register of Interests or Statement
of Related Party Transactions, The purpose of this is to prevent the company
becoming a local authority company without the Council becoming aware of it.

The Council shall only become a member or director of a company following a
decision of the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member taken in accordance with
the decision making procedures set out in the Council’s Constitution. When

Page 8



10.

11.

APPENDIX 1

seeking such a decision any report to the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member
shall state:

(a) the Council’s rights of membership and to nominate directors (or to itself
become a corporate director)

(b) the purpose of the company and of the Council's involvement

(c) the identity of the initial nominated directors and secretary and any
person who is intended to be authorised to represent the Council at a
meeting of the company (where the Council is a member of the
company) or of the board (where the Council is a corporate director of
the company)

(d) what Council policies (if any) are to apply to the company. If no policies
have been stated in the Member decision and the company directors do
not formally set their own, the policies adopted should default
automatically to KCC policies. Where a company adopts its own
policies, assurance must be provided that adequate policies and
procedures are in place, with particular reference to anti-fraud and
corruption

(e) that appropriate due diligence has been completed which must include
an evaluation of the background, experience and reputation of the
company and/or the proposed and existing directors

(f) any other limits the Councils' Corporate Director of Finance and
Procurement or Monitoring Officer recommend be placed on the
activities of the company.

Once the decision process is completed, the company shall be formed and the
Council Members and officers involved with the company shall ensure (so far as
it is within their remit) that the relevant policies are applied by the company.

This Protocol shall also apply to companies already in existence and as regards
such companies:

(a) a decision dealing with all the relevant matters set out in this Protocol is
to be taken under the decision making procedures set out in the
Council’'s Constitution by Cabinet or the relevant Cabinet Member as
soon as reasonably practicable, and

(b) the Articles to such companies shall (where appropriate and reasonably
practicable) be amended as soon as possible.

Both as regards companies already in existence and companies yet to be
formed, all Members and officers of the Council should, from the date of
adoption of this Protocol, act (so far as is reasonably practicable) as if the
Articles had already been amended as required by this Protocol, whether or not
this has in fact happened.

Members and officers of the Council who are running KCC companies must
pass a resolution of the company to provide Internal Audit with all information
and explanations required to perform internal audits of the companies from time
to time. In addition, they must seek appropriate advice from time to time to
ensure that:

Page 9



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

APPENDIX 1

(a) they and the company are operating within the law, specifically where
they intend to change or expand the business activities of the company

(b) they are aware of the extent of their potential personal liabilities,
conflicts of interest and any indemnities or insurance cover provided by
KCC that may apply to them.

KCC Legal Services and KCC Finance between them have produced ‘Guidance
on Local Authority Companies’ that covers these issues in detail and will update
and expand this as necessary from time to time.

In order that Members and officers of the Council can be fully aware at all times
of the extent of KCC'’s interests in local authority companies and their exposure
to potential legal, financial and reputational risks, the Corporate Director of
Finance and Procurement shall maintain an accurate, complete and up-to-date
record of all companies in which KCC has an interest, clearly identifying those
that are trading. Members and officers of the Council are required to supply
timely information to the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement so as
to ensure that these records can be fully and properly maintained.

Pursuant to Part Il of the Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995, where a
company is regulated by KCC (i.e. KCC either controls or has serious influence
over it) then the company must provide any Member of the council who
requests it such information as that Member reasonably requires for the proper
discharge of their duties (but not so as to require breach of any law or of any
obligation to a third party).

Members and officers representing the Council on the board of any company
will at all times comply as appropriate with the County Council’'s Code of
Member Conduct and the Officers Code of Conduct as set out in the
Constitution from time to time.

Under Appendix 2 Part 2 of the Council’'s Constitution, the Selection and
Member Services Committee is responsible (inter alia) for “making
appointments and nominations on behalf of the Council to serve on outside
bodies (except those needing to be made by the Leader in connection with a
delegation by him of his functions, the list of those appointments to be agreed
between the Leader and the Committee from time to time)”. Where a decision
to appoint rests with the Leader, then the formal decision of the Cabinet or
relevant Cabinet Member under paragraph 6 of this Protocol shall act as such
appointment. Where the decision rests with the Selection and Member
Services Committee, then such appointment shall not take effect unless and
until the Committee has resolved to make such appointment.

Company directors’ duties are codified in Companies Act 2006. There are
seven specific duties:

Page 10



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

APPENDIX 1

(a) to act within powers

(b) to promote the success of the company

(c) to exercise independent judgement

(d) to exercise reasonable skill and care

(e) to avoid conflicts

(f) not to accept benefits from third parties

(g) to declare any interest in a proposed transaction

As a matter of general principle, the overriding duty of any director in
considering an item before the company is to vote in accordance with the
interests of that company. In the case of a director who is also an elected
Member, or an officer of KCC, this might give rise to a conflict with the interests
of KCC.

Directors and company officers are responsible for keeping accounts and
making relevant returns to the Registrar of Companies, and in addition are
required to lodge a copy of the Companies House Annual Return (showing
directors and ownership) with KCC Legal Services and KCC Finance.

Elected Members and council officers are under a specific obligation (under the
Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995) to report back to the council through
the Trading sub group on their involvement in outside companies to which they
have been nominated by KCC. Any changes to companies’ structure should
also be reported to this group.

Various breaches of obligation can lead to a director having personal liability or
being disqualified from acting as a director. In particular, failure to declare an
interest is a criminal offence.

KCC'’s insurance arrangements do not provide an indemnity for Members and
officers involved with outside bodies when they act:

(a) solely on behalf of an outside body

(b) outside their delegated powers, i.e. in a decision-making capacity rather
than as advisors or observers

(c) outside the authority’s statutory powers

Companies should purchase directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to protect
their directors and officers against claims of negligence, breach of duty, trust,
default, etc. Directors should liaise with the company to ensure that such a
policy of insurance is maintained at all times, and covers the director as much
as it can.

KCC may exceptionally give a wider indemnity to specific members/officers
where the council specifically requires that person to become a director for KCC
business reasons. KCC would insist that such a wider indemnity only dealt with
anything not covered by the company’s insurance.

More detail on indemnities and insurance can be found in the advice note
“‘Members & Officers Indemnity” prepared by the Finance Unit to which
reference should be made.

There can be a tendency to assume that a new venture requires a new legal
entity, and that therefore a new project should be commenced in a new
company. This is not necessarily the case. There are a limited number of
situations where a limited company might be appropriate. These are:

Page 11



APPENDIX 1

(a) Where there is trading to be carried out under the provisions of section 95 of
the Local Government Act 2003. Section 95 provides a specific power to
trade but the Act says that such trading must be carried out through a
limited company. It must be noted that not all trading by KCC is necessarily
under the provisions of Section 95. There are other cases where trading can
be carried on under other powers (and where therefore a limited company
may not be needed). Examples of these other powers are:

i.  Where what is being done is the provision of goods and/or services
to another public body under the provisions of the Local Authorities
(Goods and Services) Act 1970, whether a particular organisation
is a public body for the purposes of that Act is specified in
regulations.

ii. Where what is being done is incidental to the main function that is
being carried out. An example of this might be a library
occasionally selling books as part of a promotion of reading. This
power will be fairly tightly interpreted. If the main purpose of the
activity is to raise money that will not be considered incidental to
the original function.

iii. Where what is being done is use of surplus capacity. An example
might be a council landscape service having raised too many plants
and selling off the surplus to the public. If the activity requires the
taking on of additional staff or the procurement of new services or
equipment then it will almost certainly not come within this
category.

(b) Where for some other specific reason it is advised that a limited
company be formed. Typically these reasons will include the wish to
take the activity out of the mainstream of KCC activity — either so as to
encourage external funding or involvement, or to permit employment of
staff outside KCC’s usual terms and conditions for directly employed
staff, e.g. Kent Top Temps.

27. Whatever power is being used, and whether a company is being formed or not,

care must be taken not to exceed the scope of activity permitted by such
powers.

28. More detail on companies generally can be found in the advice note “Local

Authority Companies” prepared by the Corporate Director of Finance and
Procurement and the Director of Governance and Law to which reference
should be made.

Author’'s name and title:

Date:

Page 12



Agenda ltem 5

By: John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Support
Andy Wood, Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement

To: Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group - 28
September 2012

Subject: East Kent Opportunities LLP

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To provide a report on East Kent Opportunities LLP as requested at the
Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group meeting on 4 July 2012.

FOR ASSURANCE

INTRODUCTION

1. At the last meeting of the G&A Trading Activities Sub Group on 4 July 2012, it was
agreed that a report on East Kent Opportunities LLP be presented at the Sub Group’s
next meeting, together with a list of all the LLPs and any Joint Arrangements that are
Not an Entity (JANEs) that the County Council was involved in.

2. East Kent Opportunities LLP is the only LLP / JANE that the County Council is
involved in.

3. A briefing on the East Kent Opportunities (EKO) Accounts was offered to all Members
by Cath Head. This was undertaken on the 15 May 2012.

4. This report provides an update on East Kent Opportunities LLP, and its Annual Report
and Financial Statements for 2011/12 are attached for Members’ review and
consideration.

UPDATE ON EAST KENT OPPORTUNITIES

5. Background - Kent County Council (KCC) and Thanet District Council (TDC) wished to
bring forward the economic development and regeneration of the sites known as
Eurokent and Manston Business Park. A Member Agreement was signed on the 22
August 2008 and a joint arrangement vehicle was set up, the East Kent Opportunities
LLP (EKOLLP), which was incorporated on the 4 March 2008. KCC and TDC have
50:50 ownership, control and economic participation in the joint arrangement. KCC
and TDC contributed 38 acres of land each to EKOLLP. The land was valued for
stamp duty land tax (SDLT) at £5.5m (KCC contribution) and £4.5m (TDC
contribution). The powers used are the 'well-being powers' provided to local
authorities in Part | of the Local Government Act 2000.

Page 13



6. The key developments and issues to note during 2011/12 are as follows:

vi.

Vii.

The Manston site has continued to be marketed and there have been several
expressions of interest. Due to both the current economic climate and risk
aversion of the lending banks, at present no initial expressions of interest have
been converted to a completed sale.

In recent months the level of interest in the business park has increased and
EKOLLP has secured a sale of 1 acre of land, subject to planning. This deal will
enable significant workforce expansion of a large international manufacturing
company already based in the area.

The poor take-up of land sales and subsequent development is a situation which
is shared by nearly all other Business Parks in the Country/County at present.
The significant number of high quality industrial and commercial premises
available on the second hand market, including those at Manston Business Park,
make the construction of new premises a less viable business decision.

It is hoped that once the first sale at Manston is completed, whilst a small plot, it
will act as an incentive to bring renewed interest and demonstrate to the market
that Manston Business Park is a viable business location.

The Eurokent site is the subject of a major outline mixed use planning application
which proposes commercial, community and retail space and up to 550 new
homes. The application was registered in October 2011 and has been the subject
of extensive negotiations with the Local Planning Authority.

A range of additional information has been required by the LPA regarding Highway
matters and natural habitat provisions, and survey information tied to changes to
the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework has caused delays in the
determination of the application.

It is envisaged that the application will be determined in October 2012.

7. East Kent Opportunities LLP’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for 2011/12
are attached, and the key points can be summarised as follows:

ii.

In 2011/12, in the EKOLLP accounts, the net assets of the joint arrangement are
£10m with an operating loss before members’ remuneration and profit shares
available for discretionary division among members of £0.40m.

The accounts were approved at the last EKO Management Committee on 1
August 2012 and are currently out for signing.

RECOMMENDATION

8. Members are recommended to note the contents of this report for assurance, and to
note East Kent Opportunities LLP’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for
2011/12 (attached).

Cath Head, BSS, Finance & Procurement, September 2012

Page 14



Registered number: 0C335231

East Kent Opportunities LLP

Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Page 15



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Contents

Page
Information 1
Members' report 2-3
Independent auditors’ report 4-5
Profit and loss account 6
Balance sheet 7
Notes to the financial statements 8-12
The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements:
Detailed profit and loss account and summaries 13-14

Page 16



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Designated Members
Kent County Council
Thanet District Council

LLP registered number
0C335231

Registered office
Sessions House Room S.3.08, County Hall, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1XG

Auditors
Reeves & Co LLP, 37 St Margaret's Street, Canterbury, Kent, CT1 2TU

Page 17
Page 1



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Members' report
For the year ended 31 March 2012

The members present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of East Kent
Opportunities LLP (the LLP) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal activities

The principal object of the LLP is to provide, acquire and develop Manston, KCC Eurokent and TDC Eurokent
and any other properties in Kent the members believe appropriate investments.

Designated Members
Kent County Council and Thanet District Council were designated members of the LLP throughout the period.
Members' capital and interests

Each member's subscription to the capital of the LLP is determined by their share of the profit and is
repayable following retirement from the LLP.

Details of changes in members' capital in the year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in the financial
statements.

Members are remunerated from the profits of the LLP and are required to make their own provision for
pensions and other benefits. Profits are allocated and divided between members after finalisation of the
financial statements. Members draw a proportion of their profit shares monthly during the year in which it is
made, with the balance of profits being distributed after the year, subject to the cash requirements of the
business.

Members' responsibilities statement

The members are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law, as applied to LLPs, requires the members to prepare financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law the members have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law). Under company law, as applied to LLPs, the members must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the LLP and of the profit or loss of
the LLP for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the members are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
o make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the LLP will continue in business.

The members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the entity's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the LLP
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the LLP and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Page 18
Page 2



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Members' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Auditors

The auditors, Reeves & Co LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. The Designated
members will propose a motion re-appointing the auditors at a meeting of the members.

This report was approved by the members on and signed on their behalf, by:

Kent County Council
Designated member

Page 19
Page 3



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Note
Turnover 1
Administrative expenses
Operating loss 2

Interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges

Loss for the financial year before members' remuneration
and profit shares available for discretionary division
among members

The notes on pages 8 to 12 form part of these financial statements.

Page 20
Page 6

2012 2011
£ £

85,257 -
(479,513) (353,344)
(394,256) (353,344)
101 40
(6,835) (774)
(400,990) (354,078)




East Kent Opportunities LLP
Registered number: 0C335231

Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
£ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10,165,489 10,165,489
Current assets
Debtors 5,716,144 5,224,870
Cash at bank 144,076 9,014
5,860,220 5,233,884
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year (816,850) (3583,838)
Net current assets 5,043,370 4,880,046
Total assets less current liabilities 15,208,859 15,045,535
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year (5,247,859) (5,084,535)
Net assets attributable to members 9,961,000 9,961,000
Represented by:
Equity
Members' other interests - Other reserves
classified as equity under FRS 25 9,961,000 9,961,000
9,961,000 9,961,000
Total members' interests
Amounts due from members (included in
debtors) (5,617,117) (5,216,127)
Members' other interests 9,961,000 9,961,000

4,343,883 4,744,873

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to LLPs
subject to the small LLPs regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied by The Limited Liability
Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 and in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the members and were signed on their
behalf on

Thanet District Council
Designated member

Kent County Council
Designated member

The notes on pages 8 to 12 form part of these financial statements.

Page 21
Page 7



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

1.

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) and
the requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting by Limited Liability
Partnerships".

Turnover

Turnover comprises of grants received which are recognised in the profit and loss account in the
period in which the expenditure towards which they relate is incurred.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Land is recorded at its open market value at the date of the last valuation carried out by
professional valuers.

Members' Participation Rights

Members' participation rights are the rights of a member against the LLP that arise under the
members' agreement (for example, in respect of amounts subscribed or otherwise contributed,
remuneration and profits).

Members' participation rights in the earnings or assets of the LLP are analysed between those that
are, from the LLP's perspective, either a financial liability or equity, in accordance with the FRSSE
(IAS 32) Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and UITF abstract 39 Members' shares
in co-operative entities and similar instruments. A members' participation right results in a liability
unless the right to any payment is discretionary on the part of the LLP.

Amounts subscribed or otherwise contributed by members, for example members' capital, are
classed as equity if the LLP has an unconditional right to refuse payment to members. If the LLP
does not have such an unconditional right, such amounts are classified as liabilities.

Where profits are automatically divded as they arise, so the LLP does not have an unconditional
right to refuse payment, the amounts arising that are due to members are in the nature of liabilities.
They are therefore treated as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account in the relevant year. To
the extent that they remain unpaid at the year end, they are shown as liabilities in the Balance
Sheet.

Conversely, where profits are divided only after a decision by the LLP or its representative, so that
the LLP has an unconditional right to refuse payment, such profits are classed as an appropriation
of equity rather than as an expense. They are therefore shown as a residual amount available for
discretionary division among members in the Profit and Loss Account and are equity appropriations
in the Balance Sheet.

Other amounts applied to members, for example remuneration paid under an employment contract
and interest on capital balances, are treated in the same way as all other divisions of profits, as
described above, according to whether the LLP has, in each case, an unconditional right to refuse
payment.

All amounts due to members that are classified as liabilities are presented in the Balance Sheet
within 'Loans and other debts due to members' and are charged to the Profit and Loss Account with
'Members' remuneration charged as an expense'. Amounts due to members that are classified as
equity are shown in the Balance Sheet within '"Members' other interests'.

Page 22
Page 8



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

2.

Operating loss

The operating loss is stated after charging:

Auditors' remuneration

Tangible fixed assets

Cost
At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012

Depreciation
At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012

Net book value
At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

2012 2011

4,500 6,600

Freehold
property
£

10,165,489

10,165,489

10,165,489

The historical cost is based on an independent professional valuation of the land which was carried out
in September 2008 by Savills (L&P) Limited, Chartered Surveyors.

Debtors

Other debtors
Amounts due from members

2012 2011

£ £

99,027 8,743
5,617,117 5,216,127
5,716,144 5,224,870

Page 23
Page 9



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

5. Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year
2012 2011
£ £
Trade creditors 33,157 53,266
Amounts owed to members 619,297 190,000
Social security and other taxes 17,085 -
Other creditors 147,311 110,572
816,850 353,838
6. Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year
2012 2011
£ £
Other loans 5,247,859 5,084,535

Included within other loans is £5,247,859 (2011: £5,084,535) due to Kent County Council for
reimbursement of costs associated with a building project.

Page 24
Page 10



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

7. Reconciliation of members' interests
Loans and
debts due to
members
less any
Members' Total amounts due
capital members' from
(classified as Other other membersin
equity) reserves interests debtors Total
£ £ £ £ £
Members' interests:
balance at 1 April 2010 9,961,000 - 9,961,000 (4,862,049) 5,098,951
Loss for the year
available for
discretionary division
among members - (354,078) (354,078) - (354,078)
Members' interests after
loss for the year 9,961,000 (354,078) 9,606,922 (4,862,049) 4,744,873
Allocated profit for
period - 354,078 354,078 (354,078) -
Members' interests:
balance at 1 April 2011 9,961,000 - 9,961,000 (5,216,127) 4,744,873
Loss for the year
available for
discretionary division
among members - (400,990) (400,990) - (400,990)
Members' interests after
loss for the year 9,961,000 (400,990) 9,560,010 (5,216,127) 4,343,883
Allocated profit for
period - 400,990 400,990 (400,990) -
Members' interests at 31
March 2012 9,961,000 - 9,961,000 (5,617,117) 4,343,883

8. Contingent liabilities

Under the terms of the agreement with KCC, there exists a provision for claims under the Land
Compensation Act. This provision is estimated at £200,000 (2011: £693,223). The Members are of the
opinion that there may be possible future obligations arising from past events but that the occurence of
these obligations will only be confirmed by future events outside of the control of the Members. Thus
the provision is treated as a contingent liability.

Page 25
Page 11



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

9.

Related party transactions

In the opinion of the members there is no controlling party as defined by Financial Reporting Standard
for Smaller Entities.

Included in trade creditors at 31 March 2012 is £26,416 (2011: £38,271) due to Kent County Council for
expenses paid for on behalf of the limited liability partnership.

Also included in creditors due less than one year is an amount of £619,297 (2011: £190,000) due to
Kent County Council and Thanet District Council in respect of short term financing made available to
East Kent Opportunities LLP.

Page 26
Page 12



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Detailed trading and profit and loss account

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Turnover
Less: Overheads

Administration expenses

Operating loss

Interest receivable
Interest payable

Loss for the year available for discretionary division

among members

Page 27
Page 13

Page

14

14

14
14

2012 2011
£ g

85,257 -
(479,513) (353,344)
(394,256) (353,344)
101 40
(6,835) (774)
(400,990) (354,078)




East Kent Opportunities LLP

Schedule to the detailed accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Turnover
Grant income

Administration expenses

Management charges
Computer costs
Advertising and promotion
Legal and professional
Auditors' remuneration
Accountancy fees

Bank charges

Sundry expenses

Repairs and maintenance
Spine road costs

Thanet project

Interest receivable
Bank interest receivable

Interest payable
Other loan interest payable

2012 2011
£ £
85,257 -
2012 2011
g £
28,227 13,209
95 93
3,900 -
183,395 181,828
4,500 6,600
1,951 1,600
148 35
767 3,265
7,950 10,406
163,323 136,308
85,257 -
479,513 353,344
2012 2011
£ £
101 40
2012 2011
£ £
6,835 774

Page 28
Page 14



Agenda ltem 6

By: John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Support
Andy Wood, Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement

To: Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group - 28
September 2012

Subject: KCC’s Dormant Companies

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To report on KCC’s dormant companies, as requested at the Governance
and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group meeting on 4 July 2012.

FOR ASSURANCE

INTRODUCTION

1. At the last meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub
Group on 4 July 2012, it was agreed that a report on KCC’s dormant companies be
presented at the Sub Group’s next meeting. It was recommended that the requisite
action be taken to dissolve the dormant companies, unless there were found to be
appropriate reasons for any of them to remain in existence.

2. KCC'’s five dormant companies are as follows:

- Invicta Services Ltd.

- Kent Training Centres Ltd.
- Kentish Fare Ltd.

- Invicta Innovations Ltd.

- Kent Access Ltd.

3. This report provides an update on the progress that has been made in dissolving the
dormant companies.

PROCESS FOR DISSOLVING DORMANT COMPANIES

4. By way of background information, the process for dissolving a dormant company is,
in outline, as follows:

i. An application for dissolution under section 1003 of the Companies Act 2006 is
made by completing and submitting a Form DS1 (Striking off application) for the
dormant company, together with a £10 fee, to Companies House. Note: the
Form DS1 must be signed by the majority of directors.

Page 29



Vi.

i. Members of the company (shareholders) must be warned before the application

is made as they are entitled to object to the company being struck off.

ii. All organisations and parties who may have an interest in the company's affairs

should be notified by sending them a copy of the application; examples of such
parties would be HMRC, employees, and any directors of the company who did
not sign the Form DS1.

. On receipt of the application for dissolution by Companies House, notice of the

proposed dissolution is published in the London Gazette to allow any interested
parties the opportunity to object.

Where there are no reasons to delay, the Registrar strikes the company off the
register not less than 3 months after the date of the notice.

The company is dissolved on publication of a further notice stating this in the
London Gazette.

PROGRESS TO-DATE

5. KCC Finance engaged KCC Legal Services to drive the company dissolution process.
The table below shows the progress made to-date (i.e. as at the time of writing this

report):
Company Current status
Invicta Services Ltd Form DS1 lodged (by Commercial Services) with Companies
House on 3/7/12
Invicta Innovations Ltd Form DS1 lodged with Companies House on 20/8/12
Kent Access Ltd Form DS1 lodged with Companies House on 16/8/12
Kentish Fare Ltd See Paragraph 6 below
Kent Training Centres Ltd | Form DS1 lodged with Companies House 16/8/12

Note: With the exception of Kentish Fare Limited (see paragraph 6 below), the
completion of the remaining steps in the process (i.e. steps iv to vi in paragraph 4 above)
should result in KCC’s dormant companies being dissolved and struck off the Companies
House register by the end of November 2012. Towards the end of November, KCC Legal
Services will contact Companies House to seek confirmation that the companies have
been dissolved.

6. Kentish Fare Limited is the predecessor of Produced in Kent Limited, albeit a
separately registered company. Produced in Kent Limited owns the domain name
“kentishfare.co.uk” and that, together with Kentish Fare Limited, forms the Intellectual
Property of Produced in Kent Limited. To protect this Intellectual Property, the
Directors of Kentish Fare Limited have recommended the company is not dissolved,
and instead that ownership is transferred to Produced in Kent Limited. This course of
action is supported by KCC’s Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement, and the

Page 30




recommendation is to be placed on the agenda ‘For Approval’ at the next board
meeting of Produced in Kent Limited in October 2012.

RECOMMENDATION

7. Members are recommended to note the contents of this report for assurance, and to
note the progress in dissolving KCC's dormant companies.

Guy Record, BSS, Finance & Procurement, September 2012

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Agenda ltem 7

By: John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Support
Andy Wood, Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement

To: Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group - 28
September 2012

Subject: Statutory Accounts for those companies in which KCC has an interest

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To present the latest available Statutory Accounts for those companies in
which KCC has an interest.

FOR ASSURANCE

INTRODUCTION

1. At the G&A Trading Activities Sub Group meeting on 4 July 2012, Members requested
that they receive copies of the latest available Statutory Accounts for those companies
in which KCC has an interest at the next Sub Group meeting in September 2012.

2. For background information, this report provides summaries of the principal activities
of those companies in which KCC has an interest, as well as the key financial
highlights from their latest available Statutory Accounts.

3. Copies of the latest available Audited or Unaudited (if Audited not yet available)
Statutory Accounts are attached for Members’ review and consideration. The 2010/11
Statutory Accounts are provided in cases where the 2011/12 Accounts are not yet
available.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4. The table below shows which sets of Statutory Accounts (2010/11 or 2011/12) have
been received and attached to this report, any relevant comments and brief synopses
of the companies’ principal activities, together where applicable with their website
addresses.

Page 33



Background Information

Company Name Statutory Audited / Comments Principal Activities / Website
Accounts Unaudited Address
Received
2010111 2011/12
Association of 2011/12 To provide an independent forum
Tourist Attractions Accounts to be | for the owners of visitor
in Kent Ltd v U prepared in attractions in Kent
December
2012
Groundwork Kent 2011/12 To build sustainable communities
& Medway Accounts to be | in areas of need through joint
v A prepared in environmental action
October 2012
http://www.groundwork-
km.org.uk/
Aylesham & To support the regeneration of
District Community Aylesham
Workshop Trust v A
http://www.ayleshamworkshopstr
ust.org.uk/
The-Individual KCC no longer
Learning-Company has an interest;
became an
independent
organisation in
December
2000
The North Kent 2011/12 To provide design support,
Architecture Centre Accounts will bringing the value of good design
Ltd v A be available in | to as many people as possible
November
2012 http://architecture-centre.org/
Visit Kent Ltd 2011/12 To promote, market, advertise
Accounts will and develop nationally and
v A be prepared in | internationally the Kent tourist
October 2012 industry
http://www.visitkent.co.uk/
Locate in Kent Ltd To stimulate the local economy
by encouraging companies to
A relocate to Kent
v
http://www.locateinkent.com/

Page 34




Company Name Statutory Audited / Comments Principal Activities / Website
Accounts Unaudited Address
Received
2010/11  2011/12
Trading Standards To provide consumer advice via a
South East Ltd call centre, and training to trading
v A standards professionals
https://www.tsse.org.uk/default.as
px
East Kent Spatial To promote economic
Development development and regeneration
Company v U
http://www.eksdc.co.uk/
Produced in Kent To increase public awareness of
Ltd produce produced in Kent
v A
http://www.producedinkent.co.uk/
Business Support 201112 To improve the competitiveness
Kent Community Accounts to be | of SMEs through impartial
Interest Company v A prepared by the | delivery of a variety of services,
end of and by providing access to
September information, skills, knowledge and
2012 advice they need to succeed
http://www.bsk-cic.co.uk/
Kent County Temporary employment agency
Trading Ltd and employment business. Also,
v A provider of bus services, facilities
management services, and
services to care homes
Kent County To provide supply services to
Supplies Ltd care homes in respect of medical
v A & hygiene consumables
https://www.kcswebshop.co.uk/
Kent County To provide facilities management
Facilities Ltd services
v A http://www.kcfacilities.co.uk/
Kent Top Temps Temporary employment agency
Ltd and employment business
v A http://www.kenttoptemps.co.uk/

Page 35




KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

5. The table below shows the key financial highlights from the Statutory Accounts

attached:

Company Name Financial Turnover/ | Profit/Surplus Retained Net

Year Income before Tax Profit/Surplus | Assets

£k £k £k £k
Association of Tourist 2010/11 N/A N/A N/A 11.6
Attractions in Kent Ltd
Abbreviated
Accounts

Groundwork Kent & 2010/11 1,634.9 N/A 42.7 217.7
Medway
Aylesham & District 2010/11 205.4 N/A (43.6) 1,902.8
Community Workshop
Trust
Thelndividuall -
Company
The North Kent 2010/11 438.7 7.1 6.3 135.7
Architecture Centre Ltd
Visit Kent Ltd 2010/11 1,565.4 6.4 6.4 162.1
Locate in Kent Ltd 2011/12 959.1 16.6 16.1 493.5
Trading Standards 2010/11 2,499.8 1.7 1.3 25.0
South East Ltd
East Kent Spatial 2011/12 720.3 61.4 50.7 2,227.7
Development Company
Produced in Kent Ltd 201112 237.0 (7.8) (7.8) 19.0
Business Support Kent | 2010/11 5,076.7 (224.6) (226.7) 379.3
Community Interest
Company (see Note 1)
Kent County Trading 2011/12 37,7411 887.3 689.8 2,010.3
Ltd
Kent County Supplies 2011/12 657.4 346.3 257.8 (1.7)
Ltd
Kent County Facilities 2011/12 3,373.9 253.0 213.3 557.9
Ltd
Kent Top Temps Ltd 2011/12 34,233.2 290.7 221.3 1,456.8

Page 36




Note 1 - The pre-tax deficit of £224.6k in 2010/11 contrasts with a pre-tax surplus of
£256.5k in 2009/10. A three year contract to provide the Business Link service, funded
by the South East England Development Agency, was completed successfully on 31
March 2010. The loss of the Business Link contract to a national service provider had a
significant impact on the scale of the group, resulting directly in a reduction in turnover
from £9,275.1k in 2009/10 to £5,076.7k in 2010/11. The year to 31 March 2011 was very
much one of transition requiring a substantial realignment of the organisation which gave
rise to significant one-off costs that contributed to the reported deficit. The 2010/11
Statutory Report and Accounts (attached) state that the group has made good progress
in reorganising its operations to address the challenges of this new environment, resulting
in a reduction in headcount from 103 to 47, and has been successful in securing some
new contracts to sustain its future business. KCC does not hold any shares in Business
Support Kent Community Interest Company, but it does contract with the company, and
has representation on the Board by Barbara Cooper, Director of Economic Development
at KCC.

RECOMMENDATION

6. Members are recommended to note the contents of this report for assurance, and to
note the latest available Statutory Accounts (attached) for those companies in which
KCC has an interest.

Guy Record,
BSS, Finance & Procurement

September 2012

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



REGISTERED NUMBER: 02608373 (England and Wales)

Abbreviated Unaudited Accounts for the Year Ended 31 August 2011

for
Association of

Tourist Attractions
in Kent Limited

////////////////////////////////////////////

’/201

Page 39




Association of
* Tourijst Attractions
in Kent Limited (Registered number: 02608373)

Contents of the Abbreviated Accounts
for the Year Ended 31 August 2011

Page
Company Information i
Abbreviated Balance Sheet 2
Notes to the Abbreviated Accounts 3

Page 40




Association of

* Tourist Attractions

in Kent Limited

Company Information
for the Year Ended 31 August 2011

DIRECTORS:

SECRETARY:

REGISTERED OFFICE:

REGISTERED NUMBER:

ACCOUNTANTS:

J Gardner

G Hukins

A Morse

Mrs A Watt
Peter d’ Aguilar
Mrs S Hursch

Mrs A Watt

Rudge Cottage
Speldhurst
Tunbndge Wells
Kent

TN3 OLE

02608373 (England and Wales)

LAMEY and CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
RIDGE COTTAGE

BARDEN ROAD
SPELDHURST

TUNBRIDGE WELLS

Kent

TN3 OLE

Page 1

Page 41




.

Association of
Tourist Attractions

in Kent Limited (Registered number: 02608373)

Abbreviated Balance Sheet
31 August 2011

31811
£
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 2,100
Cash at bank 17,670
19,770
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 8,204
NET CURRENT ASSETS 11,566
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,566
RESERVES
Capital reserve 10,154
Profit and loss account 1,412
11,566

The company 1s entitled to exemption from audit under Section 477 of the Compames Act 2006 for the year ended

31 August 2011

The members have not required the company to obtamn an audit of 1its financial statements for the year ended

31 August 2011 1n accordance with Section 476 of the Companies Act 2006

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for

(a) ensuring that the company keeps accounting records which comply with Sections 386 and 387 of the Companies

Act 2006 and

(b) preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of
each financial year and of 1its profit or loss for each financial year in accordance with the requirements of Sections
394 and 395 and which otherwise comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to financial

statements, so far as applicable to the company

The abbreviated accounts have been prepared i accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act

2006 relating to small companies

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 December 2011 and were signed on its behalf

by

Mrs A Watt - Durector

The notes form part of these abbreviated accounts

31810

14,694

14,694

1,556

13,138

13,138

Page 2

Page 42




Asgociation of
* Tourist Attractions

in Kent Limited (Registered number: 02608373)

Notes to the Abbreviated Accounts
for the Year Ended 31 August 2011

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and 1in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008)

Turnover
Turnover represents net tnvoiced sales of goods, excluding value added tax

Deferred tax
Deferred tax 1s recogmsed 1n respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date

2 COMPANY STATUS
The Company 1s a private Company limuted by guarantee and consequently does not have a share capital Each of

the Directors 1s hable to contribute an amount not exceeding £1 towards the assets of the Company n the event
of liquidation

Page 3

Page 43

.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



S
w@&
&

CHANGING PLACE:
CHANGING LIVE!

Groundwork Kent & Medway
2010-2011 Annual Report

4 %\"o
Vi Y
v/ Y]

A A/
N
S
INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

Page 45



Groundwork Kent & Medway

(A company limited by guarantee)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTENTS
Page Number
Report of the directors 1-7 |
Reference and administrative details of the charity, its 1-2
trustees and advisors
Structure, governance and management 3
Objectives, aims and public benefit 4
Achievements and performance 5
Financial review 5-6
Plans for the future 6
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities 6
Statement as to Disclosure of Information to Auditors 7
Appointment of auditors 7
Report of the independent auditors 8
Consolidated statement of financial activities | 9
Consolidated balance sheet 10
"

Balance sheet

Notes fo the financial statements 12 - 19

Page 46



The Directors submit their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2011,

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS OF THE CHARITY, ITS
TRUSTEES AND ADVISORS o

The name of the Company is Groundwork Kent & Medway; referred to as “the Company” in this
report. Groundwork Kent & Medway is a member of the Federation of Groundwork Trusts.

Principal Office and
Registered Office:
Telephone:
Facsimile:

e-mail:

Website:

Company Registration No:

Charity Registration No:

Company Members:

Nominated Directors:

Clir Ann Allen
Cir John Cubit
Clir John Cubitt

- Cir Jane Cribbon
Clir Cindy Davis
Clr David Simmons
Mr Richard Harman
Clir Roy Hunter
Cir Peter Hicks
Mr Anthony Jones
Clir Patricia Thurlow

48 Canterbury Street
GILLINGHAM
ME7 5UN

(01634) 855166
(01634) 855177
gkm@groundwork.org.uk
www.groundwork-km.org.uk
3068263

1050417

Dartford Borough Counci
GlaxoSmithKline plc

Gravesham Borough Council

Kent County Council

Lafarge Cement UK pic

Medway Council

mhs homes

Swale Borough Council

Swale Housing Association

The Federation of Groundwork Trusts

Ward Homes Ltd

Kent County Council Resigned 25" July 2011
Appointed 25" July 2011

Gravesham Borough Council. Resigned 8" May 2011
Appointed 17" May 2011

Swale Borough Council Resigned 10" May 2010

Appointed 19" May 2010

The Federation of Groundwork Trusts

Medway Council Resigned 19™ May 2010

The Federation of Groundwork Trusts
Dartford Borough Council

Page 1

Page 47

Appointed 9" September 2010



Co-opted Directors:
Mr Charles Brangwin
Mr Paul Ciark

Mr David Cunningham

Mr Mark Heeley
Mr David Scudder

Mr David Simms

Mr Frank Webb

Mr Peter Raby
Chairman:
Company Secretary:
General Manager

Auditors:

Solicitors:

Bankers:

mhs homes

Member of Parliament for Gillingham

Mace Ltd

Workman LLP

M-real UK Services Ltd
Lafarge Cement UK pic

Glaxo SmithKline

Mr Richard Harman
Ms Claire Woodcock
Mr ian Martin

Goatcher Chandler
Chartered Accountants
10 Overcliffe
Gravesend

Kent .

DA11 OEF

Dakers Green Brett
Captains House
Pembroke
Chatham Maritime
Kent

ME4 4UF

National Westminster Bank Plc
117 High Street

Gillingham

Kent

ME7 1AG

Page 48

Resigned 27" May 2010

Resigned 18" November 2010

Page 2



STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Structure of the Charity

Groundwork Kent & Medway is a charity and a company limited by guarantee. The governing documents
are its Memorandum and Articles of Association which were last amended at the Annual General
Meeting of the members of the Company on 6 November 2006 with the prior approval of the Charity
Commission. "

The subsidiary, Groundwork Environmental Services (Kent) Limited, did not trade during the year. But

has been consolidated into this report and accounts.

The Directors

The Directors are the trustees of Groundwork Kent & Medway in accordance with the Charities Act 1993
and they are also the directors of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. The Board
is made up of seven nominated directors (one each nominated by Dartford Borough Council, Gravesham
Borough Council, Kent County Council, Medway Council and Swale Borough Council and two nominated
by the Federation of Groundwork Trusts) and up to thirteen co-opted directors. The co-opted directors
have been invited to join the board by the nominated directors to broaden the skills base of the board or
to secure specialist expertise, They have the same voting rights and responsibilities as the nominated
directors. The nominated directors serve a term decided by the Company member nominating them up
to a maximum of 3 years. The co-opted directors serve a term of up to three years. Nominated and co-

opted directors can be appointed for further terms,

Induction and training

pies of the goveming documents and key policy documents and a
copy of the Federation’s Governance Handbook. The General Manager provides an induction session
when new directors are appointed and all directors are encouraged to participate in governance training

provided by the Federation at regional venues.

New members are provided with co

Organisational Structure and decision making process

The Board normally meets four times a year and does not have any committees with delegated powers.
There is one working group comprising board members and staff, chaired by a board member. This is

the Finance and Property Group. This Group normally meets quarterly.
The Board has delegated day to day operation of the charity to the General Manager, the powers
delegated being set out in a written document. The Board has also established Financial Regulations

and a number of policies within which the Board and staff have to operate.

Risk Assessment

A Corporate Risk Assessment was undertaken by the Board, management and staff in ea]rly 2002 and is
updated annually. The assessment includes plans for managing, evaluating and monitoring major risks.
The Board considers that appropriate steps have been taken to assess and control these risks.

Statement of Recommended Practice “Accounting and Reporting by Charities”

The ‘Statement of Recommended Practice “Accounting and Reporting by Charities” (revised 2005Y

(SORP 2005) has been compiied with.

Page 3
Page 49



OBJECTIVES, AIMS AND PUBLIC BENEFIT

Groundwork Kent & Medway is a member of the Federation of Groundwork Trusts which comprises
around 40 independent charitable companies with a main office in Birmingham co-ordinating activities

and a regional office in London.

Groundwork Kent & Medway operates for the public benefit in the Kent County Council and Medway
Council local authority areas.

Objects as set out in the Memorandum of Association

The objects of the Company are firstly to promote the conservation, protection and improvement
of the physical and natural environment anywhere in the area of Kent & Medway and secondly to
provide facilities in the interests of social welfare for recreation and leisure time occupation with
the objective of improving the conditions of life for those living in or working in or resorting to the
area of Kent & Medway and thirdly to advance public education in environmental matters and of

the ways of better conserving, protecting and improving the same wheresoever.

Our Vision is for a society made up of sustainable communities which are vibrant, healthy and safe;
which respect the local and global environment and where individuals and enterprise prosper.

Groundwork’s Purpose is to build sustainable communities in areas of need through joint
environmental action.
The Trustees have referred to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit when

reviewing the organisation's objectives and planning future activities. In particular, the Trustees
consider how planned activities will contribute to the charitable objectives set out above.

Groundwork Kent & Medway aims to be the partner of choice in delivering community and
.environmental regeneration for the public benefit throughout Kent & Medway particutarly in the

" Thames Gateway, East Kent and in other areas of need.

We aim to achieve this by focusing on:

» Land: Reconnecting people with their surroundings: Delivering high-quality projects to improve
open space based on sound design, management and ecological principles;

e Community. Building stronger neighbourhoods: Identifying and addressing social and
environmental needs by working with and through local communities;

Education: Learning, citizenship and sustainability: Raising awareness of environmental issues,
promoting sustainable living and encouraging responsible stewardship of the environment;

¢ Youth: Realising young people’s potential: Getting young people engaged in tackling local social
and environmental issues and

Employment. Supporting lfocal economies and tackling worklessness: Helping people to develop
their confidence, skills and experience in order to find work; contributing to the regeneration of
local neighbourhoods,

Successful projects often combine several of these strands as one of our strengths is taking and
integrated and holistic approach.

A small management and administration team provides central support services to build partnerships, to
develop high quality projects and develop the capabilities and self-confidence of all staff.

Page 4
Page 50



ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

2010 was the first full operating year foliowing the significant Trust restructure in 2009. This year has
produced a positive result and, whilst challenging, the staff morale remains high and confidence for the

future positive.
During the year the Trust delivered profects to a value of £1,634,926.

The Trust has continued to deliver a range of high quality projects including many that are multi year.
We continue to work with partners to deliver major programmes and manage important assets, including
Oare Gunpowder Works, Dartford Heath, Dartford Marsh, Gardening Skills, SparkIT, Sure Start
Community Involvement in Dartford, Environments for Everyone. Future Jobs Fund and the Gift Wrap
Service at Bluewater. We have now established the Trust in Margate and to some extent Thanet.

The Trust funds its programmes from a range of sources. These include the Department for
Communities and Local Government (DCLG), the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP), local
authorities, housing associations, the National Lottery and the private and voluntary sectors. The
continuing support of Dartford Borough Council, Gravesham Borough Council, Thanet District Council,
Kent County Council, Medway Council, Swale Borough Councii, GlaxoSmithKline, Lafarge Cement UK
ple, MHS homes, Swale Housing Association and Ward Homes Itd has been a key factor in the
Company’s success and the Board attaches considerable importance fo maintaining and enhancing

these relationships.

These activities reflect the commitment of the charity’s professional and enthusiastic team with diverse
skills. The staff are continuing to develop new projects for the benefit of local communities. in January
1999, the Company was recognised as an Investor in People, reflecting its approach to developing and
training its staff to meet its objectives. The accreditation is due for review in December 2011.

The Company owns its premises at 48 Canterbury Street, Gillingham which are a significant asset. This
property is now on the market with a view to improving the Company’s long term cash position.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The results for the year are set out on pages 10 to 21 of the financial statemenits.

The net incoming resources for the year amounted to £42,675 as set out in the financial statements. It is
planned to increase reserves in future years in line with the Company’s reserves policy. :

Reserves Policy

The Company maintains reserves mainly to fund the delay in the receipt of income with a small cushion
to absorb short- term setbacks. The Company's policy is to establish unrestricted reserves (excluding
fixed assets such as premises and equipment) sufficient to cover three months fee income based on the
budget for the forthcoming financial year. For the financial year commencing 1 April 2010 this would
result in reserves as defined above in the region of £180,000 being required. At 1 April 2010 actual
reserves {(excluding fixed assets) feli short of this The Company will aim to retain a surplus each year

to increase reserves to the required level by 31 March 2013,

Reserves are monitored and reported to the Board on a quarterly basis and the reserves policy is

reviewed on an annual basis.

Page 5
Page 51



Property Revaluation
The Company owns the freehold of its principal offices at 48, Canterbury Street, Gillingham.

Rogers Stevens & Chance, Chartered Surveyors carried out a revaluation and reported that the open
market value with vacant possession on 31% March 2009 was £265,000 and this figure is now

reflected in the balance sheet.

Funds

The Company has a number of funds which are described in note 1 (e) in the financial statements,
Unrestricted funds do not include payments received in advance and held pending completion of project
work which would form part of restricted funds. The company has not designated any funds. In
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice on Accounting by Charities (SORP 2005),
income is recognised to the extent that the service has been delivered or eamed. When the payment has
been received in advance for expenditure which must take place in a future accounting period or when
the payment is dependent on the fulfiment of a contract, payments are deferred until the company
becomes entitled to the resources. Restricted reserves can only be used in accordance with the funder's
instructions for agreed programmes of work and cannot therefore form part of the unrestricted funds that

are under the contro! of the charity’s trustees.

PLANS FOR THE FUTURE

The budget for 2011-2012 has been approved by the Board and includes the target £1.2m for incoming
resources to be realised during the year. The planned increase in reserves from this plan is £20k.
Further the sale of the building at Canterbury Street should increase cash reserves by some £180k.

Whilst a significant proportion of this funding has been secured, the balance is in various stages of
negotiation. This will be one of the factors controlling the ievel of activity during the year and will affect all
of the principal activity programmes. However, progress in developing projects themselves, including
consultation, design and securing approvals will also determine the level of activity.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).
The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial

statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of

fraud and other irregutarities.

Page 6
Page 52



STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information {(as defined by Section 234ZA of
the Companies Act 1985) of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all
the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant

information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

A resolution proposing that Goatcher Chandler be re-appointed as auditors of the Company will be put to
the Annual Genera! Meeting.

This report was approved by the Board on 26th October 2011

Mr. R%\rd&

rman
Director:

Dated: 2ot O™ 20 |

G:\FINANCEWccounts\2010-11\GKM Accounts2010-11.doc

Page 7
Page 53



Independent Auditors' Report to the members of
GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

This rebort is issued in respect of an audit carried out under section 495 of the Companies Act 20086.

We have audited the financial statements of Groundwork Kent & Medway for the year ended 31st

March 2011 which comprise the Consolidate Financial Activities, Cpnsolidated Income and Expenditure
Account, Consolidated Balance Sheet and related notes..

These financial Statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the charity's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 495 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the
charity's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of
Groundwork Kent & Medway for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
Trustees Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and for being satisfied that
the charity's financial statements give a true and fair view. ,

Our responsibility Is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are
properly prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given
in the Trustees Annual Report is consistent with the financial statements.

In addition we report {o you if, in our opinion, the charity has not kept adequate accounting records, if the
charity's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, if we have not
received all the information or explanations we require for our audit, or if disclosure of trustees' renemeration

specified by law are not made.
We read the Trustees' Annual Report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any

apparent misstatements within it.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) issued by

the Auditing Practices Board. An Audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. [t also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the trustees in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the charity's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed. :

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain ali the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the

financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements:

- give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of
the state of the company and group's affairs as at 31st March 2011 and of their incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended and

- have been properly prepared in accordance with the United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice and '
- have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
- the information given in the Trustees' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Canth - Datelmzﬁ \\BW 201

James Goatcher
Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of :
Goatcher Chandler Chartered Accountants epgg%egigtered Auditor 10 Overcliffe Gravesend Kent  DA11 OEF

Paae 8



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities
(Incorporating an Income and Expenditure Account)

For the Year Ended 31st March 2011

Note

INCOMING RESQURCES
incoming resources from
generated funds
Voluntary income
Activities for generating funds
Investment income
Incoming resources from charitable
activities
Other incoming resources

TOTAL INCOMING RESOURCES

RESOURCES EXPENDED
Cost of generating funds
Cost of generating voluntary income

Charitable activities
Govemance costs
TOTAL RESOURCES EXPENDED

NET INCOME / (EXPENDITURE)
BEFORE TRANSFERS

Transfers between funds
NET MOVEMENTS IN FUNDS
Fund balances brought forward

FUND BALANCES CARRIED FORWARD

oy W

~ &

Unrestricted Restricted

Al of the above results are derived from continuing activities.

Page 55

Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
108,500 . 109,500 145,680
2,328 - 2,328 4,564
17 - 17 88
- 1,516,555 1,516,555 1,298,600
6,526 . 6,526 37,930
718,371 1,616,555 1,634,026 1,486 862
a78 - 378 1,388
283,335 1,302,434 1585769 1,476,627
6,104 - 6,104 6,580
280,817 1,302,434 1,502,251 1,484,505
(171,448) 214,121 42,675 2,267
214,121 (214,121 . -
42,675 - 42675 2,267
158,661 . 158,661 156,394
201,336 - 201,336 156,661
Page 9

The notes form part of these financial statements



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets

Investment
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors

Cash at bank

CREDITORS : Amounts falling due
within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS
CREDITORS : Amounts falling due

after one year

TOTAL ASSETS

FUNDS
Income funds

Unrestricted funds

Restricted funds

TOTAL FUNDS

As at 31st March 2011
2011
Note £ £
g 292,116
10

11

12

13

18

15

261,821

292,116

258,646
3,175

(284,669)
(22,848)
(51,612)

217,656

217,656

N ————

217,656

Approved on behalf of the Board and signed on its behaif

VLt

26th October 2011

The notes form E’Qé’gf ?neese financial statements

Director and Trustee

2010
£ £

301,341

1
301,342

254,893
1,717

256,610

(302,106)

(45,496)
(80,865)

174,981

174,981

174,981

Page 10



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Balance Sheet

As at 31st March 2011
2011
Note £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 9 292,116
investment 10 100
292,216

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors " 258,646
Cash at bank 3,160

261,806
CREDITORS : Amounts faliing due

within one year 12 {284,853)
NET CURRENT ASSETS (23,047)
CREDITORS : Amounts falling due
after one year 13 (51,612)

TOTAL ASSETS 217,557
FUNDS
Income funds
Unrestricted funds 15 217,557
Restricted funds 15 -

TOTAL FUNDS

217,557

Approved on behalf of the Board and signed on its behalf

Wl Mo

26th October 2011

The notes form E;?rggf ﬁzese financial statements

Director and Trustee

2010

£
301,341

101
301,442

(45,695)

(80,865)
174,882

174,882

174,882

Page 11



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2011

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice, Accounting and Reporting by Charities 2005 (SORP 2005)
applicable accounting standards and the Companies Act 2006 as modified by the
revaluation of Fixed Assets.

The Company has taken advantage of exemption in Fianancial Reporting Standard No.1
from preparing a Cashflow Statement given that it is a small company.

Company status
The Company and its subsidiaries comprise a small group.

The Company is limited by guarantee. The guarantors are the Members of the
Company which are; Dariford Borough Council, Glaxo SmithKline plc, Gravesham
Borough Council, The Federation of Groundwork Trusts, Kent County Council, Lafarge
Cement plc, Medway Council, mhs homes, Swale Borough Council, Swale Housing

Association and Ward Homes Limited,

The liability in respect of the guarantee, as set out in the Memorandum of Association,

is limited to £1 per member of the Company. The Company has availed itself of
paragraph 3 (3) of Schedule 4 of the Companies Act and adapted the Companies Act

formats to reflect the special nature of the Company's activities.

Incoming resources

In accordance with SORP 2005, income is recognised to the extent that the service has
been delivered or eamed. When the payment has been received in advance for
expenditure which must take place in a future accounting period or when the payment
is dependent on the fulfiiment of a contract, payments are deferred until the company

becomes entitled to the resources.

Fund accounting . _
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the directors in
furtherance of the general objectives of the Charity.

Designated funds comprise general funds which have been set aside at the
discretion of the directors for specific purposes. The purpose and use of the
designated funds is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Restricted funds are funds subject to specific restrictive conditions imposed by
donors or by the purpose of the appeal. The purpose and use of the restricted

funds is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

All income and expenditure is shown in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Funds are transferred from restricted to unrestricted at the year end on the basis that
no restrictions exist on the income and expenditure recognised. Income that has not been
fully delivered or earned is deferred.

Grants for Core Funding

Grants for core funding are funds provided to support the management and
administration of the charity.

Gifts in kind

The values attributed to gifts in kind are based on a reasonable estimate of

their value to the Charity, or the amount actually realised.
Assets given for use by the Charity, are recognised as incoming resources when

receivable.

Page 58
Page 12



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2011

Resources expended

The cost headings comprise expenditure, including staff costs, directly
attributable to the activity and are recorded on an accruals basis. Where
costs cannot be directly attributed they have been allocated to activities on a

basis consistent with use of the resources,
Support costs comprise all services supplied centrally identifiable as wholiy or mainly in
support of charitable expenditure and include an appropriate proportion of generai
overheads.

They are aliocated on the basis of their use with the aim of ensuring
that those costs remaining within administration relate to the management of the
Charity's assets, organisational administration and compliance with constitutional

and statutory requirements,

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost including any incidental expenses of

acquisition.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calcuiated to write
off the cost on a straight line basis over their expected useful economic lives as
follows :

Qver 50 years

Building

Building refurbishments ‘ Over 10 years
Computer equipment Over 5 years
Fumiture, tools and equipment Over 5 years
Motor vehicles Over 4 years
Pensions

The Charity contributes toward employees’ personal pension schemes and the
pension charge represents the amounts payable by the Charity to the

schemes in respect of the period and are charged to the Income and Expenditure
Account when payabile.

Operating leases

Rentals applicable to operating leases are charged to the income and
expenditure account over the period in which the cost is incurred.

Assets purchased under finance lease are capitalised in fixed assets. Obligations
under such agreements are included in creditors. The difference between the
capitalised cost and the total obligation under the lease represents the finance charges,

Finance charges are written-off to the Income and Expenditure Account over the period
of the lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on fixed asset contracts.

Page 59
Page 13



Page 60



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2011
INCOMING RESOURCES FROM GENERATED

FUNDS Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
Voluntary income
Grants for core funding 109,500 - 109,500 145,680
109,500 - 109,500 145,680
Activities for generating funds
Rental income 2,328 - 2,328 4,564
2,328 . - 2,328 4 564
Investment income
Bank interest 17 - 17 88
17 - 17 88
INCOMING RESOURCES FROM CHARITABLE
ACTIVITIES Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
Community projects - 356,564 356,564 266,647
Land projects - 159,635 159,635 704,779
Education projects - 84,628 84,628 130,297
Youth projects - 17,636 17,636 8,866
Employment projects - 528,892 528,892 176,861
Business projects - - - 4,150
Other projects - - - 4,000
- 1,147,355 1,147,355 1,295,600
income from projects was provided by :
Central Government - 414,965 414,965 155,873
Public Sector - 21,288 21,288 29,385
Loca! Government - 359,537 359,837 347,032
European Funding - 10,998 10,998 -
Private Sector - 708,002 708,002 740,409
Lottery Funding - 1,765 1,765 18,401
Landfill Tax - - - 7,500
- 1,516,555 1,516,555 1,298,600

T o —— T i

Page 61

Page 14



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2011
4 RESOURCES EXPENDED ON CHARITABLE

ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted Restricted :
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £

Community projects - 278,716 278,716 170,765
Land projects - 202,313 202,313 615,518
Education projects - 420,888 420,888 51,499
Youth projects - 8,025 6,025 11,058
Employment projects - 394,492 394,492 154,122
Business projects - - — 29,534
Other projects - - - 350
Support costs 283,335 - 283,335 443,781

283,335 1,302,434 1,585,769 1,476,627

Expenditure on projects comprised :

Direct Staff Indirect
costs costs costs 2011 2010
£ £ £ £ £

Community projects 12,308 266,407 - 278,716 170,765
Land projects 115,658 86,755 - 202,313 615,518
Education projects 385,621 35,267 - 420,888 51,499
Youth projects 1,462 4,563 - 6,025 11,058
Employment projects 62,082 332,410 - 394,492 154,122
Business projects - - - - 28,534
Cther projects - - - - 350
Support costs - 174,271 109,064 283,335 443,781

577,032 899,673 109,064 1,585,769 1,476,627

Included in support costs were :

Management and support salaries and on costs 174,271 281,449
Redundancy costs - 57,568
Premises 27,505 30,676
Administration 56,724 49,817
Depreciation - tangible fixed assets - owned 16,578 11,082
Operating lease rentals - other 8,257 12,289
STAFF COSTS 2011 2010
' £ £
Wages and salaries 817,616 674,972
Social security costs 61,594 65,660
Pension costs 18,541 18,289
Benefits 1,022 7,629
899,673 766,550

No employee eamned £60,000 pa or more.
The trustees neither received nor waived any emoluments during the year (2010 : £Nil).

No trustee received any expenses during the year (2010 : £Nil).

Staff numbers

The average number of employees, analysed by function was : 2011 2010
No. No.

Direct charitable activities 48 24

Management and administration of the charity 5 6
53 28

Page 62
Page 15



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2011

OTHER INCOMING RESOURCES

Grants
Charitable donation

COST OF GENERATING FUNDS

Cost of generating voluntary income

Fundraising

GOVERNANCE COSTS

Meeting costs
Legal and professional
Audit fees

Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
- - - 25,000
6,526 - 6,526 12,930
6,526 - 6,528 37,830
Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
378 - 378 1,388
378 - 378 1,388
Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
1,004 - 1,004 822
120 - 120 068
4,980 - 4,980 4,790
6,104 - 6,104 6,580

INCOME FROM SUBSIDIARY'S TRADING ACTIVITIES

GKM owns 100 ordinary shares of £1 each in a wholly owned subsidiary, Groundwork

Environmental Services (Kent) Limited (GES), a company incorporated in England and Wales.
The company was dormant throughout the year,

Page 63

Page 16



Page 64



10

GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 31st March 2011

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - Group and Charity

Cost

As at 1st April 2010
Additions

Disposals

As at 31st March 2011

Depregiation

As at 1st April 2010
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31st March 2011

Net Book Value
As at 31st March 2011

As at 31st March 2010

The Company's freehold premises are formall

-8th November 2001.

The Company's freehold pro
31st March 2009. This valu

Freehold Building  Furniture, tools Computer Motor
Property Refurbishment & equipment equipment  vehicles Total
265,000 8,000 6,928 27,559 30,612 338,099
- - - 1,858 5,495 7,353
265,000 8,000 5,528 29 417 36,107 345,452
3,300 2,400 4,502 1 4,244 12,312 38,758
3,300 800 1,732 5,126 5,620 16,578
6,600 3,200 6,234 19,370 17,932 53,336
258,400 4,800 694 10,047 18,175 292,118
261,700 5,600 2,426 13,315 18,300 301,341

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

GKM owned 100 ordinary shares of £1 each in a
Environmental Services (Kent) Limited (GES),

Wales.

wholly owned subsidiary, Groundwork
a company incorporated in Engiand and

GKM also wholly owned subsidiaries, Grassroots Environmentai Enterprises Limited and
Groundwork Services (MS) Limited both were incorporated in England and Wales, On 30th March 2010
Grassroots Environmenta! Enterprises Limited was formally dissolved and on 13th Aprit 2010 Groundwork

Services (MS) Limited was also formally dissolved
Summary Balance Sheets of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Current assets
Current labilities
Net Assets

Share capital
Retained profits
Net Assets

31st March 2011

J1st March 2010

y charged to its banker under 1st Legal Charge dated

perty was valued by Rogers, Stevens & Chance , Chartered Surveyors, on
e has been reflected in the accounts.

GES GS {Ms) GES Grassroots GS (MS)
188 - 8,881 157 1
- - {9,682) - -
198 - 199 157 1
100 - 100 - 1
89 98 187 -
198 - 159 157 1

Page 65

Page 17



11

12

13

GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 31st March 2011

DEBTORS 2011 2010
Group Charity Group Charity
£ £ £ £
Trade debtors 209,140 209,140 151,296 151,296
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - - 768
Prepayments 11,828 11,828 6,864 6,864
Accrued income 37,678 37,678 98,733 96,733
258,646 258,646 254,893 255,661
CREDITORS : Amounts falling due
within one year 2011 2010
Group Charity Group Charity
£ £ £ £
Trade creditors 35,566 10,640 11,324 11,324
Other taxation and social security 45,745 45,745 35,609 35,509
Accruals 5,800 5,900 5,815 5815
Deferred income 156,457 181,383 160,584 150,584
Other creditors 1,950 1,950 442 442
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - 184 - -
Bank overdraft 10,540 10,540 65,501 65,501
Bank locans 4,523 4,623 8,943 8,943
Commercial morigage 23,988 23,988 23,088 23,088
284,669 284,853 302,108 302,106
CREDITORS : Amounts falling due
after one year 2011 2010
Group Charity Group Charity
£ £ £ £
Bank loans - - 4527 4,527
Commercial morigage 51,612 51,612 76,338 76,338
51,612 51,612 B0,865 80,865
Analysis as follows:
Between one and two years 28,510 28,510 32,931 32,831
Between two and five years 23,102 23,102 47,934 47,934
Five years or more - - - -
51,612 51,612 80,865 80,865
Page 18

Page 66



14

15

16

17

18

GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 3tst March 2011

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
At 31st March 2011 the company has annual commitments under non-canceliable leases
as follows :
2011 2010
Group Charity Group Charity
£ £ £

Cther operating leases (non Jand and buildings)

Expiring:
Between two and five years 8,257 8,257 12,289 12,288
STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Balance Balance

1st Aprii : 31st March

2010 income  Expenditure Transfers 2011
£ £ £ £ £

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
General funds 158,662 118,371 (289,817) 214,121 201,237
Revaluation reserve 16,320 - - - 16,320
Trading companies 89 - - - 99
Total unrestricted funds 174,581 118,371 (289,817) 214121 217,656
RESTRICTED FUNDS
Project funding - 1,516,655 (1,302,434) (214,121) -
Total restricted funds - 4,516,655 (1,302,434) (214,121) -
TOTAL FUNDS ' 174,981 1,634,926 (1,592,251) - 217,656

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Unrestricted Restricted Total

Fund balances at 31st March 2011 are funds funds funds 2010

represented by : £ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets 292,116 - 292,116 301,341
1 - 1 1

investment

Current assets 261,820 - 261,820 256,610
Current liabilities {284,669) - (284,669) (302,108)
(51,612) - {51,612) {80,865)

Long term liabllities
Total Net Assets 217,656 - 217 656 174,981

REVALUATION RESERVE

As explained in note 9, the Company's freehold property was independently revalued on 31st March 2009
therefore creating a Revaluation Reserve of £16,320.

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Groundwork Environmental Services (Kent} Limited (GES) provides advisory and
consuitancy services on all issues concerning the environment. The results of the subsidiary, which
did not trade during the year, have been consolidated in these financial statements. The Charity has

issued a letter of continued support to its subsidiary undertaking.
The charity had one other subsidiary undertaking; Groundwork Services (MS) Limited which was dissolved

on 13th Aprit 2010.

Page 67
Page 19



GROUNDWORK KENT & MEDWAY

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Detailed Income and Expenditure Account
For the Year Ended 31st March 2011

PROJECT INCOME
Central Government
Public Sector

Local Authority
European Union
Private Sector

| ottery funding
Landfill Tax
Managed Contracts

DIRECT COSTS
Direct project costs
Project salaries
Pensions and benefits

SURPLUS ON PROJECTS

OTHER INCOME
Central Government
Local Authority
Private Sector
Charitable donations
Rental income
Interest receivable
Grants

OVERHEADS

Management and support salaries
Redundancy costs

Pensions and benefits

Training and recruitment

Mortgage interest
_Hire purchase and bank loan interest
Premises cosis

Insurance

Telephone, fax and internet

Postage, stationery and office supplies
Office equipment leasing and maintenance
Motor and travelling expenses
Marketing and publications

Auditors remuneration

Legal and professional

Network and board meetings

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Sundry expenses

Depreciation

SURPLUS FOR THE.YEAR

2011
£ £
414,965
21,288
359,537
10,998
338,802
1,765
369,200
7516,555
577,032
716,496
8,006
T (1,302,434)
514,121
65,000
14,000
30,500
6,526
2,328
17
118,371
162,714
11,557
2,984
2,262
276
25,243
14,295
6,357
11,119
10,308
10,653
378
4,980
120
1,004
8,988
16,578
(289,817)

42675

Page 68

2010
£ £
155,873
29,385
347,032
307,216
18,401
7,500
433,193
7,298,600
547,745
474 842
10,259
(1,032,846)
265,754
101,180
14,000
30,500
12,930
4,564
88
25,000
— 188,262
265,790
57,568
15,659
3,505
2,835
1,326
27,841
13,463
5,264
11,044
9,549
10,838
1,388
4,790
968
822
800
6,317
11,982
(451,749)

2,267



Company registration number: 03114198
Charity registration number: 1050794

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

BATCHELOR COOP chartered accountants
THE NEW BARN MILL LANE EASTRY smow@ﬁ%%@? CT13 0JW



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Contents

Reference and Administrative Details 1to 2
Trustees' Report 3to4
Independent examiner's report 5
Statement of financial activities 6
Balance Sheet 7t08
Notes to the financial statements 9to 16

The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements:

Statement of financial activities per fund 17 to 24

Page 70



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Reference and Administrative Details

Charity name

Charity registration number

Company registration number

Principal office

Registered office

Trustees

Secretary

Solicitor

Bankers

Page 1

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
1050794
03114198

Ackholt Road
Aylesham
Kent

CT3 3AJ

Ackholt Road
Aylesham
Kent

CT3 3AJ

S Bennet

L M Ives

Clir L Keen

L J Brazier

Rev R Fisk

D Jennings

W Field

L Jeavons

K Rogers

A Hockley

J Honnor

S Manion

M Townsend (Resigned 28 September 2010)
R Thompson  (appointed 15 May 2011)

Mr D Garrity M.B.E., Company secretary

Furley Page
52-54 High Street
Whitstable

Kent

CT51BG

Lloyds TSB Bank PLC
49 High Street
Canterbury

Kent

CT12SE

Page 71



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Reference and Administrative Details

Accountant Batchelor Coop Ltd
The New Barn
Mill Lane
Eastry
Sandwich
CT13 OJW

Patron G Prosser

Page 2 Page 72



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Trustees' Report

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust had a successful year in 2010/2011 and again performed in
accordance with our charitable aims.

We have continued to assist in terms of helping other organisation within the village to regenerate Aylesham
and bring in modern facilities.

We have been working to assist the Aylesham & Snowdown Welfare Scheme and had a successful opening
of the £2.5 million Aylesham Welfare Leisure centre.

The centre has all of the modern facilities with a state of the art 3g synthetic pitch and a multi games area.

The changing rooms are appreciated by the local rugby and football teams with the referees having their
own rooms.

We have appointed a not for profit leisure company Freedom Leisure to run the centre and have created
seven jobs and we will address the healthy living agenda.

The centre also has a state of the art gymnasium and the response has been great with over 275 people
signed .

The social area is also up and running for the creative arts and there will be a joint Snowdown Brass Band
,Snowdown Male voice choir and fireworks display on the Christmas carol evening.

There are more women and children members than ever , years ago there was a check off system of
deduction from miners wages and the family was only members by virtue of the mans membership.

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust continues to work with HCA and East Kent Spatial
Development Company in their ambition in bringing up to 400 jobs to the area after the disappointing
decision not to proceed with the Snowdown Colliery development.

The partnership has built the 5 workshop units and they are ready for occupation.

We have funded an employment through the Coalfield Regeneration Trust, East Kent Spatial Development
Company and the Workshop Trust which will be delivered by Aylesham Neighbourhood Project.

The project objectives is to bring real paid work to the people of Aylesham and to actively assess the skills of
candidates and help them get skills and qualification for work.

The office accommodation, workshops and training in the project that will create up to 400 jobs.

Aylesham Community Conference Centre has performed according to our business plan and although in a
demanding sector we continue to be successful. Our conference administration officer monitors client
requirement and we continue to improve the service we give.

The recession is making the provision of services very challenging but we have made provision for this
eventuality in the preceding years.

The small business units are full and have an interesting group of business operating from them. They have
a White Mill veterinarian practice a hairdresser, employment agency, stonemason, machine repair company
and Marine software who service the shipping industry with health & safety and maintenance programmes.

Miners Way Business has no empty units and some of the business have ceased to operate and others are
struggling in the current economic climate.

We have 10 units occupied and the break even point is five units occupied. This trust activity is an important
contributor to our balance sheet and a job generator in the area but we are supporting the struggling
businesses.

The maintenance of the buildings is an ongoing investment and we continue to maintain and upgrade the
facilities overseen by the maintenance officer.

We continue to work with a Learn Direct company Want to Learn who are committed to delivering courses in
our computer room they attract a good number of local people to carry out computer training. Want to Learn
are very proactive and are providing very good learning opportunities for local people.

Page 3 Page 73



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Trustees' Report

We continue to train our own staff and we have been encouraging staff to go on training courses Mr Keith
Garrity, Mrs Lisa Pope.

We are also serving the local organisations and we host Silver Song Club, NHS Blood service, a slimming
club, yoga, Zumba , A.A meeting, and allow each organisation in the village one free event in the hall per
year.

We have the Aylesham Minibus Club the 16 seater minibus can be hired at very reasonable rates to local
organisations which assist them greatly with their transport issues which are a major problem living in a rural
area.

We have entered into a partnership with Aylesham Carnival Committee to run the mini bus whish costs us
about £2,300/year to run.

We allowed the Carnival Committee to keep all hiring’s fees and they will fund the mini bus through the
hiring’'s and grant applications, the Parish Council did not contribute this year but are committed to the
project for next year.

Aylesham Workshop Trust grants have been popular again this year and we have been funding football and
bowls team shirts with our sponsorship logos on them, and are also sponsoring Bettshanger Bowls club
entry into a competitive Kent bowling league. We are confident that this year we will spend all of our £10,000
grant allocation even in the recession.

There is still a need for office accommodation in the Aylesham area and if funds become available we may
be interested in filling this pent up demand.

It is my judgement that the next three years will be very difficult on the business and economic front but we
as a trust have capital reserves and a plan to see us through.

We have a unique opportunity with Homes & Community Agency’s Coalfield programme to equip the
Aylesham area with the business infrastructure to be ready for the next economic up turn.

The challenge is to up skill our people and train them for the jobs at the end of this recession. The crying
need is for a working population with a higher educational standard and higher skills to match to potential
employers needs.

The economic future is uncertain but it is my opinion that the trust is in a good position to for fill its charitable
aims and support Aylesham’s transition from a large village to a town.

We have had a very busy year and | would like to thank all of our trustees for their work and support in a
very challenging time, especially our chair Sam Bennett and our treasurer Lonnie Brazier.

| would like to record my thanks to our staff Lisa Pope, Keith Garrity, Lesley Sellwood and Kenny Devine,
they have worked hard for our reputation of excellent service at Aylesham & District Community Workshop
Trust and they are the people who enhance our reputation with our clients every day of the week.

The challenges ahead are great but we have the skills and determination to work with our partners to
regenerate Aylesham.

Small company provisions

This report has been prepared in accordance with the small companies' regime under the Companies Act
2006.

Approved by the Board on 23 November 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr D Garrity M.B.E.
Secretary

Page 4 Page 74



Independent Examiner's Report to the Trustees of

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

| report on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31 March 2011, which are set out on pages 6 to
16.

Respective responsibilities of trustees and examiner

The trustees (who are also the directorsof the company for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for the preparation of the accounts. The trustees consider that an audit is not required for this year under
section 43(2) of the Charities Act 1993 (the 1993 Act) and that an independent examination is needed.

Having satisfied myself that the charity is not subject to audit under company law and is eligible for
independent examination, it is my responsibility to:

- examine the accounts under section 43 of the 1993 Act;

- follow the procedures laid down in the General Directions given by the Charity Commission under
section 43(7)(b) of the 1993 Act; and

- state whether particular matters have come to my attention.

Basis of independent examiner's report

My examination was carried out in accordance with the General Directions given by the Charity
Commission. An examination includes a review of the accounting records kept by the charity and a
comparison of the accounts presented with those records. It also includes consideration of any unusual
items or disclosures in the accounts, and seeking explanations from you as trustees concerning any such
matters. The procedures undertaken do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an audit and
consequently no opinion is given as to whether the accounts present a 'true and fair view' and the report is
limited to those matters set out in the statement below.

Independent examiner's statement
In connection with my examination, no matter has come to my attention:
(1)  which gives me reasonable cause to believe that in any material respect the requirements:
- to keep accounting records in accordance with section 386 of the Companies Act 2006; and

- to prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records, comply with the accounting
requirements of section 396 of the Companies Act 2006 and with the methods and
principles of the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by
Charities

have not been met; or

(2) to which, in my opinion, attention should be drawn in order to enable a proper understanding of the
accounts to be reached.

......................................... The New Barn

Mark A Batchelor Mill Lane

Batchelor Coop Ltd Eastry

Chartered Accountants Sandwich
CT13 0JW

23 November 2011

Page 5 Page 75



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of Financial Activities (including Income and Expenditure Account) for

the Year Ended 31 March 2011

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2011 Funds 2010
Note £ £ £ £
Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated
funds
Voluntary income 2 1,490 - 1,490 6,486
Activities for generating funds 3 59,118 - 59,118 57,269
Investment income 4 63 - 63 52
Incoming resources from charitable
activities 5 144,735 174 144,735 149,656
Total incoming resources 205,406 174 205,406 213,463
Resources expended
Charitable activities 6 188,993 26,673 215,492 224,659
Governance costs 9 33,481 - 33,481 39,343
Total resources expended 222,474 26,673 248,973 264,002
Net expenditure before transfers (17,068) (26,499) (43,567) (50,539)
Transfers
Gross transfers between funds 8,795 (8,795) - -
Net movements in funds (8,273) (35,294) (43,567) (50,539)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 398,475 1,547,850 1,946,325 1,996,864
Total funds carried forward 390,202 1,512,556 1,902,758 1,946,325

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 6 Page 76



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2011

Registration number: 03114198

2011 2010
Note £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 1,443,626 1,493,043
Investments 14 612,000 629,000
2,055,626 2,122,043

Current assets
Debtors 15 42,194 40,555
Cash at bank and in hand 84,060 109,407

126,254 149,962
Creditors: Amounts falling due
within one year 16 (30,656) (67,958)
Net current assets 95,598 82,004
Total assets less current
liabilities 2,151,224 2,204,047
Creditors: Amounts falling due
after more than one year 17 (248,466) (257,722)
Net assets 1,902,758 1,946,325
The funds of the charity:
Restricted funds in surplus 1,512,556 1,547,850
Restricted funds in deficit
Farm - -
Total restricted funds 1,512,556 1,547,850
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted income funds 390,202 398,475
Total charity funds 1,902,758 1,946,325

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 7 Page 77



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2011

......... continued

For the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the charity was entitled to exemption from audit under section
477 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies.

The members have not required the charity to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question in
accordance with section 476.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect
to accounting records and the preparation of accounts.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to
the small companies regime and with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April
2008).

Approved by the Board on 23 November 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

L Jeavons
Trustee

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 8 Page 78



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

1  Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities (SORP 2005)',
issued in March 2005, the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) and
the Companies Act 2006.

Fund accounting policy

Unrestricted income funds are general funds that are available for use at the trustees' discretion in
furtherance of the objectives of the charity.

Restricted funds are those donated for use in a particular area or for specific purposes, the use of
which is restricted to that area or purpose.

Further details of each fund are disclosed in note 21.

Incoming resources

Grants that provide core funding or are of a general nature are recognised where there is entitlement,
certainty of receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability.

Investment income is recognised on a receivable basis.

Income from charitable activities includes income recognised as earned (as the related goods or
services are provided) under contract.

Resources expended

Liabilities are recognised as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the charity to
the expenditure. All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under
headings that aggregate all costs related to the category.

Charitable expenditure comprises those costs incurred by the charity in the delivery of its activities and
services for its beneficiaries. It includes both costs that can be allocated directly to such activities and
those costs of an indirect nature necessary to support them.

Grants payable are payments made to third parties in the furtherance of the charitable objectives.
Where the charity gives a grant with conditions for its payment being a specific level of service or
output to be provided, such grants are only recognised in the SoFA once the recipient of the grant has
provided the specific service or output.

Grants payable without performance conditions are only recognised in the accounts when a
commitment has been made and there are no conditions to be met relating to the grant which remain in
the control of the charity.

Provisions for grants are made when the intention to make a grant has been communicated to the
recipient but there is uncertainty about either the timing of the grant or the amount of grant payable.

Governance costs

Governance costs include costs of the preparation and examination of the statutory accounts, the costs
of trustee meetings and the cost of any legal advice to trustees on governance or constitutional
matters.

Support costs

Support costs include central functions and have been allocated to activity cost categories on a basis
consistent with the use of resources, for example, allocating property costs by floor areas, or per
capita, staff costs by the time spent and other costs by their usage.

Page 9 Page 79



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued
Irrecoverable VAT
Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended for which it was incurred.
Fixed assets
Individual fixed assets costing £50 or more are initially recorded at cost.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on tangible fixed assets so as to write off the cost or valuation, less any
estimated residual value, over their expected useful economic life as follows:

Plant and machinery 25% reducing balance
Fixtures and fittings 15% reducing balance
Freehold property Not depreciated

Motor vehicles 25% reducing balance
Leasehold improvements Straight line over 50 years
Investment asset Straight line over 40 years
Investments

Fixed asset investments are included at market value at the balance sheet date.

Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds
and their market value at the start of the year, or their subsequent cost, and are charged or credited to
the statement of the financial activities in the period of disposal.

Unrealised gains and losses represent the movement in market values during the year and are credited
or charged to the statement of financial activities based on the market value at the year end.

Pensions

The charity operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions are charged in the
statement of financial activities as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Page 10 Page 80



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

2  Voluntary income

Donations and legacies
Appeals and donations

3  Activities for generating funds

Income from "Miners Way"
Rental income

4 Investment income

Interest on cash deposits

Unrestricted

5 Incoming resources from charitable activities

Rental income

Page 11

Restricted Total Funds Total Funds
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
1,490 - 1,490 6,486
Unrestricted Restricted Total Funds Total Funds
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
59,118 - 59,118 57,269
Unrestricted Restricted Total Funds Total Funds
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
63 - 63 52
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ £ 2011 2010
£ £
144,735 - 144,735 149,656
Page 81



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

6

10 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

.... continued

Details of charitable activities

Support costs

Employment costs
Establishment costs
Telephone

Printing, posting and stationery
Sundry and other costs

Motor expenses

Accountancy fees

Auditors' remuneration

Legal and professional costs
Interest payable

Grantmaking

Governance costs

Support costs allocated

Activities Grant
undertaken  funding of 2011 2010
directly activities £ £
£ £

206,484 9,008 215,492 224,659

Costs of
generating Total

funds
£ £
4,307 4,307
2,185 2,185
1,964 1,964
15 15
86 86
522 522
1,130 1,130
5,172 5172
18,100 18,100
33,481 33,481
Grants to
institutions
£
9,008
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ £ 2011 2010
£ £
33,481 - 33,481 39,343

No trustees received any remuneration during the year.

Page 12

Page 82



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

11 Net expenditure

Net expenditure is stated after charging:

2011 2010
£ £ £ £
Auditors' remuneration - audit
services - 3,320
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 57,797 63,451
Loss/(profit) on sale of intangible
fixed assets 1,270 -

12 Taxation

No provision for taxation is included in the financial statements as the company is a charity entitled to
the exemption from tax afforded by Section 505, ICTA 1988.

Page 13 Page 83



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

13 Tangible fixed assets

Cost

As at 1 April 2010
Disposals

As at 31 March 2011

Depreciation

As at 1 April 2010
Eliminated on
disposals

Charge for the year
As at 31 March 2011

Net book value

As at 31 March 2011
As at 31 March 2010

14 Investments held as fixed assets

Market value

As at 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011

Market value

As at 1 April 2010
Charge for the year
As at 31 March 2011

Net book value
As at 31 March 2011
As at 31 March 2010

All investment assets were held in the UK.

Page 14

Freehold
interest in Long
land and leasehold and Plant and
buildings other machinery
(including interests in including Fixtures,
heritage land and motor fittings and
assets) buildings vehicles equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
426,790 1,297,713 46,492 209,301 1,980,296
- - (15,824) (1,277) (17,101)
426,790 1,297,713 30,668 208,024 1,963,195
- 319,540 22,675 146,925 489,140
- - (9,148) (1,221) (10,369)
- 27,196 4,253 9,349 40,798
- 346,736 17,780 155,053 519,569
426,790 950,977 12,888 52,971 1,443,626
426,790 978,173 23,817 62,376 1,491,156
Investment
properties
£
680,000
51,000
17,000
68,000
612,000
629,000
Page 84



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued
15 Debtors
2011 2010
£ £
Trade debtors 41,989 38,879
Other debtors 205 1,424
Prepayments and accrued income - 252
42,194 40,555
16 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2011 2010
£ £
Trade creditors 8,984 54,172
Taxation and social security 8,969 998
Other creditors 9,256 8,690
Accruals and deferred income 3,447 4,098
30,656 67,958
17 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
2011 2010
£ £
Other creditors 248,466 257,722
Included in the creditors are the following amounts due after more than 5 years:
2011 2010
£ £
After more than five years by instalments 204,290 216,498

18 Members' liability

The charity is a private company limited by guarantee and consequently does not have share capital.
Each of the members is liable to contribute an amount not exceeding £10 towards the assets of the

charity in the event of liquidation.

19 Pension scheme

Defined contribution pension scheme

The charity operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the period
represents contributions payable by the charity to the scheme and amounted to £1,372 (2010 -

£1,512).

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or end of the financial year.

Page 15 Page 85



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

... continued

20 Related parties

Controlling entity

The charity is controlled by the trustees who are all directors of the company.

21 Analysis of funds
At 1 April Incoming Resources At 31
2010 resources expended Transfers March 2011
£ £ £ £ £
General Funds
Unrestricted income fund 398,475 205,406 (222,474) 8,795 390,202
Restricted Funds
Land and buildings 706,349 - (6,663) - 699,686
Workshop 561,613 - (7,486) - 554,127
Verandah 238,155 - (6,616) - 231,539
Telecentre 10,229 - (1,355) - 8,874
Farm 8,621 174 - (8,795) -
Minibus 17,167 - (4,553) - 12,614
Windows 5,716 - - - 5,716
1,547,850 174 (26,673) (8,795) 1,512,556
1,946,325 205,406 (248,973) - 1,902,758
22 Net assets by fund
Unrestricted Restricted Total Funds  Total Funds
Funds Funds 2011 2010
£ £ £ £
Tangible assets 285,349 1,158,277 1,443,626 1,493,043
Investments - 612,000 612,000 629,000
Current assets 126,254 - 126,254 149,962
Creditors: Amounts falling due
within one year (21,400) (9,256) (30,656) (67,958)
Creditors: Amounts falling due
after more than one year - (248,466) (248,466) (257,722)
Net assets 390,203 1,512,555 1,902,758 1,946,325
Page 86

Page 16



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

Unrestricted Unrestricted
income fund income fund

2011 2010
£ £
Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated funds
Voluntary income 1,490 500
Activities for generating funds 59,118 57,269
Investment income 63 52
Incoming resources from charitable activities 144,735 149,656
Total incoming resources 205,406 207,477
Resources expended
Charitable activities 188,993 175,729
Governance costs 33,481 39,343
Total resources expended 222,474 215,072
Net expenditure before transfers (17,068) (7,595)
Transfers
Gross transfers between funds 8,795 -
Net movements in funds (8,273) (7,595)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 398,475 406,070
Total funds carried forward 390,202 398,475

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 17 Page 87



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Resources expended
Charitable activities

Total resources expended

Net movements in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Land and Land and
buildings buildings
2011 2010

£ £

6,663 9,573
6,663 9,573
(6,663) (9,573)
706,349 715,922
699,686 706,349

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 18

Page 88



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Resources expended
Charitable activities

Total resources expended

Net movements in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Workshop Workshop
2011 2010

£ £

7,486 22,710
7,486 22,710
(7,486) (22,710)
561,613 584,323
554,127 561,613

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 19

Page 89



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Resources expended
Charitable activities
Total resources expended

Net movements in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Verandah Verandah
2011 2010

£ £

6,616 6,616
6,616 6,616
(6,616) (6,616)
238,155 244,771
231,539 238,155

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 20

Page 90



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Resources expended
Charitable activities

Total resources expended

Net movements in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Telecentre Telecentre
2011 2010

£ £

1,355 1,586
1,355 1,586
(1,355) (1,586)
10,229 11,815
8,874 10,229

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 21

Page 91



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Incoming resources
Incoming resources from charitable activities
Total incoming resources

Resources expended
Charitable activities

Total resources expended

Net expenditure before transfers
Transfers

Gross transfers between funds
Net movements in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Farm Farm
2011 2010
£ £

174 -
174 -

- 2,568

- 2,568

174 (2,568)
(8,795) -
(8,621) (2,568)
8,621 11,189
- 8,621

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 22

Page 92



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Resources expended
Charitable activities

Total resources expended

Net movements in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Minibus Minibus
2011 2010

£ £

4,553 5,607
4,553 5,607
(4,553) (5,607)
17,167 22,774
12,614 17,167

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 23

Page 93



Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued
Windows Windows
2011 2010
£ £
Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated funds
Voluntary income - 5,986
Total incoming resources - 5,986
Resources expended
Charitable activities - 270
Total resources expended - 270
Net movements in funds - 5,716
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 5,716 -
Total funds carried forward 5,716 5,716

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 24 Page 94



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Page 95



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

CONTENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Page
Company Information 1
Report of the Directors 2
Report of the Independent Auditors 4
Profit and Loss Account 6
Balance Sheet 7
Notes to the Financial Statements 8
Profit and Loss Account 12

Page 96



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

COMPANY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

DIRECTORS: Ms C Delage
R Holdsworth
S Gaimster
B M Shaw
K D Burbidge
M D Bodkin

SECRETARY: C Lamb

REGISTERED OFFICE: The Historic Dockyard
Main Gate Road
CHATHAM
Kent
ME4 4TZ

REGISTERED NUMBER: 03284438 (England and Wales)

SENIOR STATUTORY
AUDITOR: lan Ellis BSc FCA

AUDITORS: McCabe Ford Williams
Registered Auditors
Chartered Accountants
Bank Chambers
1 Central Avenue
SITTINGBOURNE
Kent
ME10 4AE

Pagpe! 97



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the company in the year under review was that of continuing to deliver design support, including
design advice on high profile projects throughout the region, training for key decision makers, including planning
authority members and officers and housing association staff, assisting with the selection and appointment of designers,
writing good practice guidance and working with schools - all to develop an understanding of the importance of good
design within the community.

DIRECTORS
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 April 2010 to the date of this report.

Ms C Delage
R Holdsworth
S Gaimster
B M Shaw

K D Burbidge
M D Bodkin

Other changes in directors holding office are as follows:
J McCready - resigned 30 April 2010

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors
are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company
will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought
to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

Pggeé 98



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

AUDITORS
The auditors, McCabe Ford Williams, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 relating
to small companies.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

Pagps399



REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of North Kent Architecture Centre Limited for the year ended 31 March 2011
on pages six to eleven. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page two, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors, including "APB Ethical Standard - Provisions Available for Small Entities
(Revised)", in the circumstances set out in note ten to the financial statements.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the financial statements to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable
to Smaller Entities; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Prage 4 00



REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime
and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Report of the Directors.

lan Ellis BSc FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of McCabe Ford Williams
Registered Auditors

Chartered Accountants

Bank Chambers

1 Central Avenue

SITTINGBOURNE

Kent

ME10 4AE

Date: e

Paggeb 101



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Notes
TURNOVER 2
Administrative expenses
Other operating income
OPERATING PROFIT 3
Interest receivable and similar income
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 4

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

31.3.11
£

438,690

437,271

1,419

5,552

6,971

100

7,071

740

6,331

The notes form part of these financial statements

Plage 61 02

31.3.10
£

557,560

548,943

8,617

5,628

14,145

58

14,203

3,126

11,077




NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2011
31.3.11 31.3.10
Notes £ £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 5 - 1,344
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 6 46,425 51,381
Cash at bank and in hand 171,457 158,366

217,882 209,747
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 7 82,221 81,761
NET CURRENT ASSETS 135,661 127,986
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 135,661 129,330
RESERVES
Other reserves 9 41,785 41,785
Profit and loss account 9 93,876 87,545

135,661 129,330

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act
2006 relating to small companies and with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on ........cccccoevevevieercvrernnenen, and were signed on
its behalf by:

R Holdsworth - Director

The notes form part of these financial statements

Page 103



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as management are confident that sufficient funds
will continue to be available to enable the company to operate for the foreseeable future.

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

Turnover
Turnover represents grants received and also invoiced sales of service, excluding value added tax.

Grants are received from Kent County Council, Medway Council and CABE Regional Programme and are
accounted for on a receivable basis.

Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful

life.
Fixtures and fittings - 33% on cost
Computer equipment - 33% on cost

Fixed asset additions costing below £1,000 are written off to the income and expenditure account in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

Hire purchase and leasing commitments
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the
period of the lease.
2. TURNOVER
The turnover and profit before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the company.

3. OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging:

31.3.11 31.3.10
£ £
Depreciation - owned assets 1,344 1,285
Auditors remuneration 2,565 2,300

Directors' remuneration and other benefits etc

Directors receive no emoluments or any other benefits.

Pagre8104 continued...



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

4. TAXATION

Analysis of the tax charge
The tax charge on the profit on ordinary activities for the year was as follows:

31.3.11 31.3.10
£ £
Current tax:
UK corporation tax 740 2,404
Underprovision previous year - 722
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 740 3,126

Factors affecting the tax charge

The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The difference
explained below:

S

31.3.11 31.3.10
£ £

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 7,071 14,203
Profit on ordinary activities
multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 21% (2010 - 21%) 1,485 2,983
Effects of:
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (192) (615)
Expenditure disallowed for tax purposes 473 36
Under/(Over)provision in previous year - 722
General provision written back (1,026) -
Current tax charge 740 3,126

Deferred tax has not been recognised in the accounts as its recoverability can not currently be assessed with
any certainty.

Pggé 105 continued...



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

5. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures
and Computer
fittings equipment Totals
£ £ £
COST
At 1 April 2010 7,700 33,227 40,927
Disposals (4,409) (15,977) (20,386)
At 31 March 2011 3,291 17,250 20,541
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2010 7,700 31,883 39,583
Charge for year - 1,344 1,344
Eliminated on disposal (4,409) (15,977) (20,386)
At 31 March 2011 3,291 17,250 20,541
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2011 - -
At 31 March 2010 - 1,344 1,344
6. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
31.3.11 31.3.10
£ £
Trade debtors 37,025 3,604
Other debtors - 1,985
Prepayments & accrued income 9,400 45,792
46,425 51,381
7. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
31.3.11 31.3.10
£ £
Trade creditors 8,193 648
Taxation 740 2,404
Other taxes and PAYE taxes 10,634 13,466
Accruals & Deferred Income 62,654 65,243
82,221 81,761

Paggd 0106 continued...



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

10.

1.

12.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The following operating lease payments are committed to be paid within one year:

31.3.11
£
Expiring:
Between one and five years 25,009
RESERVES
Profit
and loss Other
account reserves
£ £
At 1 April 2010 87,545 41,785
Profit for the year 6,331
At 31 March 2011 93,876 41,785

APB ETHICAL STANDARD - PROVISIONS AVAILABLE FOR SMALL ENTITIES

31.3.10

25,009

Totals
£

129,330
6,331

135,661

In common with many other businesses of our size and nature we use our auditors to assist with the preparation

of the financial statements.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

There is no ultimate controlling party. The board of trustees and the management team are responsible for the

strategic and operational decisions of the charity.
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

The company is limited by guarantee. The guarantors for the company are:
Chatham Historic Dockyard Trust
Gravesham Borough Council
Kent County Council
Medway Council
University of Greenwich

Page! 107



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

Turnover
Grant income
Project income

Other income
Rents received
Deposit account interest

Expenditure

Materials

Rent & rates

Light and heat

Insurance

Wages

Hire of plant and machinery
Telephone

Post, printing and stationery
Advertising and promotions
Motor, travel and subsistence
IT software & support
Repairs and renewals
Cleaning and laundry
Sundry expenses
Subscriptions

Disallowed VAT
Consultancy fees

Legal & professional fees
Auditors remuneration
Conferences

Catering

Finance costs
Bank charges

Carried forward

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

31.3.11
£

15,000
423,690

5,552
100

110
25,551

7817
305,435
442
5,696
9,719
1,632
10,400
3,233
(4,812)
2,447
2,616
2,448
4,051
49,638
350
2,565
2,602
3,671

Péage 1208

438,690

5,652

444,342

435,611

8,731

316

8,415

31.3.10
£

15,000
542,560

5,528
58

1,199
25,012
1,189
6,888
369,860
231
5,332
13,282
1,621
14,415
2,475
423
2,475
1,824
1,772
1,113
83,200
2,492
2,300
4,141
6,192

557,560

5,586

563,146

547,436

15,710

222

15,488



NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

Brought forward

Depreciation
Computer equipment

NET PROFIT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

31.3.11
£

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Pagee!d 09

8,415

1,344

7,071

31.3.10

15,488

1,285

14,203




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



Registered number: 04400592

Visit Kent Limited

(A company limited by guarantee)

Directors' report and financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2011

B

*AOPSHOFT*
23 28/12/2014 #56
COMPANIES HOUSE

Page 111

Companie’ Howe Copy



Visit Kent Limited

{A company limited by guarantee)

Company Information

Directors

Company number

Registered office

Auditors

Bankers

N Bunting

C Carmichael

W Ferns

A Cottrell

S Curtis (resigned 25 February 2011)
K Lynes

J Delaney

S Matthews-Marsh

T Bruton

Brigadier M J Meardon RM

R Hales

M Bedingfield {resigned 2 February 2011)
J Bunnett (appointed 15 March 2011)
R Cooper (appainted 15 March 2011)

04400592

28-30 St Peter's Street
Canterbury

Kent

CT1 2BQ

Reeves & Co LLP

Statutory Auditor & Chartered Accountants
37 St Margarets Street

Canterbury

Kent

CT1 2TU

National Westminster Bank Plc
11 The Parade

Canterbury

Kent

CT1 2SG

Page 112




Visit Kent Limited
{A company limited by guarantee)

Contents

Directors' report
Independent auditors’ report
Profit and loss account
Balance sheet

Notes to the financial statements

Page 113

Page

1-2
3-4



Visit Kent Limited
(A company limited by guarantee}

Directors' report
for the year ended 31 March 2011

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011
Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responstble for preparnng the directors' report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicabie law and requlations

Caompany law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdem Accountng Standards and applicable law) Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that penod In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+« make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the
cempany will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

Principal activities

The company's principal activity Is to carry on business and activities as may promote, market, advertise and
develop nationally and internationally the tourist industry in the county of Kent and all the bodies, entities,
persons assoclated and involved therein

Directors
The directors who served dunng the year were

N Bunting

C Carmichael

W Ferns

A Cottrell

S Curtis (resigned 25 February 2011)
K Lynes

J Delaney

S Matthews-Marsh

T Bruton

Brigadier M J Meardon RM

R Hales

M Bedingfield (resigned 2 February 2011)
J Bunnett {appointed 15 March 2011)
R Cooper (appointed 15 March 2011)

Pagg,bi4




Visit Kent Limited
{A company limited by guarantee)

Directors' report
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Provision of in<nd services

During the pericd Visit Kent Limited had a very close working relationship with the Kent County Council
(KCC) WVisit Kent Limited benefited from the services of secondees to a total value of £35,544 dunng the
year to 31 March 2011 (2010 £35,000) In addition services valued at £415400 (2010 £400,000) were
provided by a number of private sector investors  Visit Kent Limited 15 grateful to the providers of these
services, without which much of the work undertaken could not have been achieved

Provision of information to auditors

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this directors' report 1s approved has confirmed that

» so far as that director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are
unaware, and

» that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any
information needed by the company's auditors in connection with preparing therr report and to establish
that the company's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The auditors, Reeves & Co LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the
Companies Act 2006

In prepaning this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemptions provided by
section 415A of the Companies Act 2006

This report was approved by the board on 2§ ow or 200\ and signed on its behalf
J Bunnett
Director

Page 2

Page 115



Visit Kent Limited
(A company limited by guarantee)

Profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Note
Turnover 1
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Operating profit 2
Interest receivable and similar income
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 4
Profit for the financial year 9

The notes on pages 7 to 10 form part of these financial statements

Page 5

Page 116

2011 2010
£ £
1,565,381 1,091,729
(1,446,527) (994,918)
118,854 96,811
(112,758) (81,752)
6,096 15,059
335 293
6,431 15,352
(71) (62)
6,360 15,290




Visit Kent Limited
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors' report to the members of Visit Kent Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Visit Kent Limited for the year ended 31 March 2011, set out on
pages 5 to 10 The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in therr preparation 1s applicable law
and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective Apnl 2008) (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entihies)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose Tothe
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibibty to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinton on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit inveolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This Includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonatleness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors' report to identify
matenal inconsistencles with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements ¢or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our gpinion the financial statements

= give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of ts profit for the
year then ended,

» have been properly prepared In accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting
Practice applicable to Smaller Entities, and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our cpinion the information given n the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements



Visit Kent Limited
{A company limited by guarantee)

independent auditors' report to the members of Visit Kent Limited
Matters on which we are required to repor"t by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, In our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

» the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies
regime and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the directors' report

Raaves ¥ Co Ll-()

P

Peter Manser FCA DChA (Senior statutory auditer)
for and on behaif of

Reeves & Co LLP

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

Canterbury

Date 22.{\2] 201

Page.1d§



Visit Kent Limited

(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number 04400592

Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2011

Fixed assets
Tangble Fixed Assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Profit and loss account

Note £
5
6 279,365
175,798
455,163
7 (306,062)
9

2011

12,968

149,101

162,069

162,069

162,069

179,374
203,170

382,544

(230,530)

2010

3,695

152,014

155,709

155,709

155,709

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to companies
subject to the small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective Apnl 2008)

The financial statements were approved and authonsed for i1ssue by the board and were signed on its

behalfon 2\ Deceminersr 2011

J Bunnett
Director

The notes on pages 7 to 10 form part of these financial statements

Page 6
Page 119




Visit Kent Limited
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial staterments
for the year ended 31 March 2011

1 Accounting policies

11

12

13

14

15

16

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and In
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008}

Cash flow

The financial statements do not include a cash flow statement because the company, as a small
reporting entity, is exempt from the requirement to prepare such a statement under the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entites (effective Apnl 2008)

Turnover

Turnover comprises revenue recognised by the company tn respect of services supplied, exclusive
of Value Added Tax and trade discounts

Interreg income

Grant funding from Europe (Interreg) 1s only recognised when the relevant claim has been
submitted in circumstances where the Board are confident that the claim will be accepted

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation Depreciation is provided at rates

calculated to wnite off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
expected useful hves on the following bases

Office equipment - 20% straight ine
Computer equipment - 33% straight line
Furniture and fittings - 20% straight ine

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight (ine basis
over the lease term

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are recognised on a
straight line basis over the penod until the date the rent is expected to be adjusted to the prevailing
market rate

Going concern

The company has considerable financial resources together with a number of future investors and
campaigns from which it 1s expected to dernive a significant amount of income As a consequence,
the directors believe that the company 15 well placed to manage its business nsks successfully
despite the current uncertain economic outlook

The directors have considered the impact of the government cuts on local authonty spending and
have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational

existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparng the annual financial statements

Page 7
Page 120




Visit Kent Limited
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

2 Operating profit
The operating profit is stated after charging

201 2010
£ £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
- owned by the company 4,718 2,683
Auditors' remuneration 3,700 4,100
3 Directors' remuneration
2011 2010
£ £
Aggregate emoluments 101,000 88,333
4, Taxation
2011 2010
£ £
UK corporation tax charge on profit for the year 71 62

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

In October 2004 the Inland Revenue agreed that the company was not trading for the purposes of the
Taxes Acts and as such would not be llable to corporation tax on any temporary surplus ansing from its
activites The company, would however, remain liable to tax on any investment income ansing

Factors that may affect future tax charges

There were no factors that may affect future tax charges

Page 8
Page 121




Visit Kent Limited
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

5 Tangible fixed assets
Office Computer
equipment equipment Total
£ £ £
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 7,646 41,638 49,284
Additions 4,900 9,206 14,106
Disposals (2,281) (5,272) (7,553)
At 31 March 2011 10,265 45,572 55,837
Depreciation
At 1 Aprl 2010 6,138 39,451 45,589
Charge for the year 1,282 3,436 4,718
On dispesals (2,169) {5,269) {7,438)
At 31 March 2011 5,251 37,618 42,869
Net book value
At 31 March 2011 5,014 7,954 12,968
At 31 March 2010 1,508 2,187 3,695
6 Debtors
2011 2010
£ £
Trade debtors 138,412 156,484
Interreg debtors 111,524 -
Other debtors 29,429 22,890
279,365 179,374
7 Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year
2011 2010
£ £
Trade creditors 93,441 131,278
Corporation tax 70 62
Social security and other taxes - 6,551
Other creditors 212,551 92,639
306,062 230,530

Page 9
Page 122




Visit Kent Limited
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

10.

1.

12

Company status

The company 1s a prnivate company mited by guarantee and consequently does not have share capital
Each of the members i1s lable to contnbute an amount not exceeding £1 towards the assets of the
company in the event of iqudation

Reserves
Profit and
loss account
£
At 1 Apnl 2010 155,709
Profit for the year 6,360
At 31 March 2011 162,069

Contingent liabilities

The company's entitlement to Interreg grant funding (see note 1 3} 1s dependant on it meeting certain
"key delivery outcomes” as specified within the grant documentation  In the opinion of the directors the
company has continued to meet these "key delivery outcomes" Therefore whilst failure to adhere to
these requirements could result in an obligation to repay part of the funds, no attempt has been made to
quantify the amcunt of this contingent hability as in the opinion of the directors the likelihood of the
company being obliged to make any repayment i1s neglgible

Following a recent routine inspectation into its VAT affairs, the company 15 currently in negotiation with
HM Revenue & Customs in respect of the VAT treatment of certain matters The directors are confident
of a successful outcome to these negotatiations  However the timing of the resolution of these
negotiations and the potential financial effect on the company 1s unknown at this stage As a resuit of
these uncertainties the company has not recognised any potential hability in the financial statements that
may anse as a result of these negotiations

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2011 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows

Land and bulldings

2011 2010
£ £

Expiry date:
Between 2 and 5 years 25,000 11,500

Controlling party

tn the opinion of the directors there 1s no one ultimate controlling party

Pagg,das




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



Registered number: 03230721

LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

HEDLEY DUNK LIMITED
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
Trinity House
3 Bullace Lane
Dartford
Kent
DA1 1BB

Page 125




LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantse)

COMPANY INFORMATION

DIRECTORS P Wookey
A King
D C Brooks Wilson
G Harris
R Cooper
Sir C B Gough (deceased 25 April 2012)
| A Legg
M F Stevens
K G Lynes {deceased 30 March 2012)
S A Neal
N A Fenton
A Blevins
W Morris
B Cooper
M Dance (appointed 18 June 2012)

COMPANY SECRETARY S Draper

COMPANY NUMBER 03230721

REGISTERED OFFICE 35 Kings Hill Avenue
Kings Hill k.
West Malling
Kent &
ME19 4DC§ i

/

AUDITORS Hedley Dunk Lxmlted
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
Tnnlty House
3 Bullace Lane
Dartford:
Kent
DA1 1BB

Page 126




LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
{A company limited by guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations. s

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basig unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the company will continue in business. P

/

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accountlng records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial stateménts comply with the Companies Act 2008. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. -

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES .

A

The principal activity of the company during the year‘was:to‘encourage companies to relocate to Kent from other
areas of the UK and overseas, thereby increasing the prosperity of the area through economic development and
employment opportunities. The company actlvely markets the area and provides a competitive support package
for potential investors.

DIRECTORS
The directors who served during the year were:

P Wookey

A King

D C Brooks Wilson

G Harris

R Cooper

Sir C B Gough (deceased 25 April 2012)
| ALegg

M F Stevens

K G Lynes {deceased 30 March 2012)
S A Neal

N A Fenton

A Blevins

W Morris

B Cooper

Pdgee b7




Directors' report

Independent auditors’ report

Profit and loss account

Balance sheet

Notes to the financial statements

The following pages do not form part of the statutory financia‘f

Detailed profit and loss account and summarles

LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

CONTENTS

P

Page 128

Page

10-11




LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

DIRECTORS® REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors' report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors
are Unaware, and

. that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of
any information needed by the company's auditors in connection with preparing their report and to
establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Hedley Dunk Limited, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the
Companies Act 2008.

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemptions provided by
section 415A of the Companies Act 20086. :

This report was approved by the board on R N and signed on its behalf.

S Draper
Secretary

P5§ee 29




LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Locate in Kent Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012, set out on
pages 5 to 9. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ report and for no cther purpose. Ta the fullest
exient permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. AT

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ R.\_'-,

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and dlsclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or errot. This includes an assessment of: Whether the accountang poI[cnes are appropriate to the companys
accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentatlon of the financial statements. In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors’ report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements. If we . become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our raport,.

UNQUALIFIED OPINION ON FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the financial statements: ™ ‘
. give a true and fair view of the state of the companys affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its profit for the

year then ended,;
. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice applicable to Smaller Entities; and
. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the informatiocn given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Pafa9¢30




LEOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2008 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

) the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies

regime and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Directors' report.

Jason Outram FCA DChA (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of
Hedley Dunk Limited

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

Trinity House
3 Bullace Lane
Dartford

Kent

DA1 1BB
Date:

PEgee 131



LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £
TURNOVER 1 959,114 1,207,770
Cost of sales (217,071) (235,672)
GROSS PROFIT 742,043 972,098
Administrative expenses (728,251) (819,297)
OPERATING PROFIT 2 13,792 152,801
Interest receivable and similar income 2,826 2,131
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 16,618 154,932
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 4 (565) {448)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 16,053 154,484

£
£

The notes on pages 7 to 9 form part of these financial staterﬁép_ts.'

Pagedt¢32




LLOCATE IN KENT LIMITED

{A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 03230721

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £ £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 5 - 819
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 8 47,415 15,355
Cash at bank and in hand 498,888 578,058
546,303 583,414
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within
one year 7 {52,811) (1186,794)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 493,492 478,620
NET ASSETS A 493,492 477,439
CAPITAL AND RESERVES i w
Profit and loss account 9 P 4@3,492 477,439
£ 493,492 477,439

The financial statements have been prepared in accordéiléé with the special provisions relating fo companies
subject to the small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The financial statements were approved and aut

fete

sgg:-for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

fuce.

P Wookey ‘ M Dance
Director Director

The notes on pages 7 to 9 form part of these financial statements.

PHgee £33



l.OCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after char‘g'ipg':;

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

Turnover

Turnover comprises revenus recognised by the company in respect of gocds and services supplied
during the year, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less thelr estimated residual value, over their
expected useful lives on the following bases: A

Office equipment - 50%/stra‘ight |i‘h’é;.‘.'

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated.in forelgn Féncies are translated into stertling at rates

of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date:

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the
transaction. 7 : i

Exchange gains and losses are reé:ogms'gd'lq:the Profit and loss account.

2012 2011
‘ £ £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned by the company 819 892
Auditors' remuneration 4,687 4,905
Pension costs 37,673 39,025
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

2012 2011
£ £
Aggregate emoluments 121,081 134,280

Paberd 34



TAXATION

LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

UK corporation tax charge on profit for the year

TANGIELE FIXED ASSETS

Cost

At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2012

Net book value
At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

DEBTORS

Trade debtors
Other debtors

CREDITORS:

Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Corporation tax

Social security and other taxes

Deferred income

Accruals and other creditors

P5§e 35

2012 2011
£ £

565 448
Office

equipment

£

96,027

95,208

819

96,027

819

2012 2011

£ £
6,000 9,797
41,415 5,558
47,415 15,355
2012 2011

£ £
15,905 69,613
565 448
9,777 13,254
5,000 3,000
21,564 30,479
52,811 118,724




10.

11.

12.

LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

COMPANY STATUS

The company is a private company limited by guarantee and consequently does not have share capital.
Each of the members is liable fo contribute an amount not exceeding £1 towards the assets of the
campany in the event of liquidation.

RESERVES
Profit and
loss account
£
At 1 April 2011 477,439
Profit for the year 18,053
At 31 March 2012 493,492

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The company operates a defined contributions pens;i__{:_\_n gf,éheme.'The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the company in an independéritly administered fund. The pension cost charge
represents contributions payable by the company to the fund'and amounted to £37,673 (2011 - £39,025).

h M\.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2012 the company had @_r‘iﬁué]:

;ommitments under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows: e

£ T 2012 2011
‘ i £ £
Expiry date: Sl A
Within 1 year L 30,039 30,028
Between 2 and 5 years ‘ 682,581 90,084
After more than 5 years - 2,602

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions with members have occuired during the year:

Kent Devslopers Group - Contribution £70,989 (2011 £86,760)

Kent County Council - Contribution £800,000 (2011 £850,000)

Kent County Council - Recharge of director's and marketing personnel services £211,160
(2011 £230,831)

Pag&?9 36




TURNOVER
Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT
LESS: OVERHEADS

Administration expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Interest receivable

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Pag&ads710

Page

11
1

11

2012 2011
£ £
959,114 1,207,770
(217,071) (235,672)
742,043 972,098
(728,251) (819,297)
13,792 152,801
2,826 2,131
16,618 154,932




LOCATE IN KENT LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

SCHEDULE TO THE DETAILED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
£ £
TURNOVER
Contribution from members 959,114 1,207,770
2012 2011
£ £
COST OF SALES
Marketing and promotional expenses 217,071 235,672
2012 2011
£ £
ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Direciors emoluments 121,081 134,260
Staff salaries 301,799 349,100
Staff national insurance 32,624 35,085
Staff pension costs - money purchase schemes 37,673 39,025
Staff training 5,351 5,981
Travel and subsistence 21,443 25,036
Printing, postage and stationery 3,013 4,099
Telephone and fax 6,075 4,002
Subscriptions and membetrships 2,822 1,680
Legal and professicnal 1,253 433
Auditors' remuneration 4 687 4,805
Bank charges 997 1,128
Rent, rates and water 38,255 40,498
Light and heat 1,000 993
Insurances 9,575 12,612
Repairs and maintenance 4,521 4,637
Depreciation - office equipment 819 892
Seconded marketing support 90,079 99,256
Other staff expenses 646 754
Car hire 6,894 20,715
Office administration 318 487
New office move - 1,419
Furniture leasing 4,324 4,421
Office equipment rental 186 1,006
Support costs 31,941 29,652
Disallowable VAT - {2,899)
Difference on foreign exchange 868 230
728,251 819,297
2012 2011
£ £
INTEREST RECEIVABLE
Bank interest receivable 2,826 2,131

Page H®g 11




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
FOR

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

Page 139



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)

CONTENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Page
Company Information 1
Report of the Directors 2
Report of the Independent Auditors 4
Profit and Loss Account 5
Balance Sheet 6
Notes to the Financial Statements 7
Profit and Loss Accounts 10

Page 140



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

DIRECTORS:

SECRETARY:

REGISTERED OFFICE:

REGISTERED NUMBER:

SENIOR STATUTORY
AUDITOR:

AUDITORS:

COMPANY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

R A H Briggs
T K Carter

D R Cross

P J Deacon

P Exeter

K E Ford

M Golledge

K G Holyer

B E Johnson
K Law

G R Macpherson
S M F Murphy
J Player

C D Robinson
S J Ruddy

R J Sexton

R N Strawson
M J Thornton
R I Webb

G Jackson

M Butler

S Crawley

V De Haan

P J Emmett

N C Fitzpatrick

| G Gilmore

A Gregory

G J Jackson

J Kerman
ZLys

L Mooney

J C Peerless-Mountford
A L Poole

M V Rolfe

M J Sanders

G M Stedman
P J Thomas

| K Treacher

J S Woodhouse

Surrey County Council, Fairmount House

Bull Hill
Leatherhead
Surrey

KT22 7AY

05259365

Mr J L Hyde

CG LEELTD

Chartered Certified Accountants

Registered Auditors

Ingram House
Meridian Way
Norwich
Norfolk

NR7 O0TA

Page 1

Page 141



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activities of the company in the year under review were those of providing consumer advice services via a call centre
and providing training to trading standards professionals. The objective is to facilitate continuous improvement in the delivery of
trading standards services throughout the Southeast of England and to promote a fair and safe trading environment, encouraging
enterprise and enhancing consumer confidence. The company operates on the principal that all income shall be applied solely
towards the promotion of the company objectives.

DIRECTORS
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 April 2010 to the date of this report.

R A H Briggs
C P Denard

K G Holyer

B E Johnson
S M F Murphy
R J Sexton

G D Watson
R D Stone

G R Macpherson
M J Sanders
T K Carter

P J Deacon

P J Emmett

N C Fitzpatrick
K E Ford
ZLlys

A L Poole

C D Robinson
S J Ruddy

P J Thomas
M J Thornton
M Golledge

P Exeter

J S Woodhouse
L V Corrie

| K Treacher
S S Edmunds
R | Webb

M Butler

G Jackson

J Player

Other changes in directors holding office are as follows:

C G Bainbridge - resigned 31 March 2011
N Snape - resigned 31 March 2011

K F Eaglestone - resigned 31 March 2011
S P Richardson - resigned 21 May 2010
N Badley - resigned 21 May 2010

N N Strick - resigned 7 December 2010

L Mooney - appointed 25 January 2011

J Kerman - appointed 25 January 2011

K Law, V De Haan, J C Peerless-Mountford, G M Steadman, A Gregory, R N Strawson, M V Rolfe, S Crawley, D R Cross and | G
Gilmore were appointed directors after 31 March 2011 but prior to the date of this report.

L V Corrie, G D Watson, C P Denard, S S Edmunds and R D Stone ceased to be directors after 31 March 2011 but prior to the date
of this report.

Page 2

Page 142



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

RESERVES POLICY

The directors regularly review the company's reserves and allocation of funding to safeguard the company's service commitment in
the event of delays, contractual risks or reduction in statutory income due to changes in government policy in the trading standards
sector.

Due to inevitable fluctuation in funding from year to year, the directors consider it prudent that there should be sufficient reserves to
ensure that the company's core activities can continue. At the year end, included within other creditors in accordance with the
accounting policy detailed in note 1, are reserves of £394,229 (2010 - £388,969).

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue
in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of
which the company's auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a
director in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are
aware of that information.

AUDITORS

Under section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, CG LEE LTD will be deemed to have been reappointed as auditors 28 days after
these financial statements were sent to members, or 28 days after the latest date prescribed for filing the accounts with the registrar,
whichever is earlier.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small
companies.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

Page 3

Page 143



REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Trading Standards South East Limited for the year ended 31 March 2011 on pages six
to eleven. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Financial Reporting
Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller
Entities).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state
to them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page four, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors, including
"APB Ethical Standard - Provisions Available for Small Entities (Revised)", in the circumstances set out in note nine to the financial
statements.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the financial statements
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give atrue and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of its profit for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller
Entities; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our

opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime and take
advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Report of the Directors.

Mr J L Hyde (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of CG LEE LTD
Chartered Certified Accountants
Registered Auditors

Ingram House

Meridian Way

Norwich

Norfolk

NR7 0TA

Date: oo

Page 4

Page 144



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011 2010
Notes £ £

TURNOVER 2,499,796 2,078,882
Administrative expenses 2,499,796 2,078,882
OPERATING PROFIT 2 - -
Interest receivable and similar income 1,649 1,980

1,649 1,980
Interest payable and similar charges - 16
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION 1,649 1,964
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 3 346 416
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 1,303 1,548

The notes form part of these financial statements

Page 5

Page 145



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)

BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2011
2011 2010
Notes £ £
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 5 552,658 346,780
Cash at bank 760,151 930,934
1,312,809 1,277,714

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 6 1,287,809 1,254,017
NET CURRENT ASSETS 25,000 23,697
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 25,000 23,697
RESERVES
Profit and loss account 7 25,000 23,697

25,000 23,697

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006
relating to small companies and with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on .......c.ccceceeieeiieiieenienieenenne and were signed on its behalf
by:

R J Sexton - Director

The notes form part of these financial statements

Page 6

Page 146



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

Turnover
Turnover represents the net value of services provided, excluding value added tax. Any unmatched surplus revenue at the
end of the year is carried forward within creditors.

Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful life.

Plant and machinery etc - 33% on cost

Deferred tax

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. In accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 19, provision is made for deferred tax in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not
reversed by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is more likely than not that the
deferred tax asset will be recovered. Deferred tax is measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax balances are not discounted.

Grants receivable
Revenue grants received are matched against the expenditure to which they relate.

Grants received in respect of capital expenditure are credited to the deferred income account and are released to the profit
and loss account by equal instalments over the expected useful lives of the assets.

Any unmatched surplus revenue grants at the end of the period are carried forward in creditors.
OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging:

2011 2010
£ £
Directors' remuneration and other benefits etc - -
TAXATION
Analysis of the tax charge
The tax charge on the profit on ordinary activities for the year was as follows:
2011 2010
£ £
Current tax:
UK corporation tax 346 416
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 346 416

A review during 2008 by HM Revenue & Customs on the tax status of the company established that the operating activities
of the company are non-commercial and therefore not subject to corporation tax. However, it was concluded that current
and future investment income is subject to corporation tax and on this basis a provision for the tax liability on this income
has been made within the financial statements.

Page 7 continued...

Page 147



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Plant and
machinery
etc
£
COST
At 1 April 2010
and 31 March 2011 1,963
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2010
and 31 March 2011 1,963
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2011 -
DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2011 2010
£ £
Trade debtors 92,881 114,068
Other debtors 459,777 232,712
552,658 346,780
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2011 2010
£ £
Trade creditors 340,107 110,973
Taxation and social security 346 44,102
Other creditors 947,356 1,098,942
1,287,809 1,254,017
RESERVES
Profit
and loss
account
£
At 1 April 2010 23,697
Profit for the year 1,303
At 31 March 2011 25,000

APB ETHICAL STANDARD - PROVISIONS AVAILABLE FOR SMALL ENTITIES

In common with many other businesses of our size and nature we use our auditors to prepare and submit returns to the tax
authorities and assist with the preparation of the financial statements.

Page 8 continued...

Page 148



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the year the following transactions took place with the members of the company, under normal commercial terms:

10.

Sales Debtors
2011 2010 2011 2010
£ £ £ £

Bracknell Forest Borough Council 6,631 8,684 378 3,400
Brighton & Hove City Council 2,129 10,142 582 2,196
Buckinghamshire County Council 13,834 23,276 - 12,142
East Sussex County Council 12,683 14,758 - 588
Hampshire County Council 9,246 25,796 - 7,327
Isle of Wight Council 2,864 6,781 - -
Kent County Council 57,232 40,711 9,212 1,175
Medway Council 10,363 8,663 - -
Milton Keynes Council 16,236 7,975 - 1,812
Oxfordshire County Council 9,893 21,445 - 10,349
Portsmouth City Council - 7,692 - -
Reading Borough Council 2,630 6,525 - 3,705
Slough Borough Council 4,498 10,081 - 3,482
Southampton City Council 26,429 7,760 24,000 4,293
Surrey County Council 66,508 30,290 15,078 14,991
West Berkshire District Council 13,810 10,139 219 7,932
West Sussex County Council 14,349 18,727 2,040 -
Royal Borough of Windsor &

Maidenhead 10,526 7,542 - 3,596
Wokingham District Council 438 9,263 - -

Purchases Creditors
2011 2010 2011 2010
£ £ £ £

Bracknell Forest Borough Council - - - -
Brighton & Hove City Council 1,070 - 620 -
Buckinghamshire County Council 980 1,175 980 -
East Sussex County Council - 17,340 - 5,445
Hampshire County Council 99,316 51,797 16,879 30,558
Isle of Wight Council 495 127 495 -
Kent County Council 1,801,372 1,151,876 175,874 17,658
Medway Council 8,223 5,042 - -
Milton Keynes Council 4,223 14,086 1,850 11,526
Oxfordshire County Council 16,108 11,895 4,968 -
Portsmouth City Council 11,737 6,995 7,876 -
Reading Borough Council 11,636 1,050 497 -
Slough Borough Council 7,350 6,633 - -
Southampton City Council 24,449 16,946 - 11,908
Surrey County Council 176,419 208,509 2,120 13,257
West Berkshire District Council 55 1,721 - -
West Sussex County Council 8,560 6,684 - 6,065
Royal Borough of Windsor &

Maidenhead

Wokingham District Council

2,738 2,111

LIMITED LIABILITY AND CONTROLLING INTEREST

The company is limited by guarantee and does not have any share capital.

contributions of £1. There is no ultimate controlling party.

Page 9

Page 149

587 1,570

The liability of the members is limited to



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Turnover

Other income
Deposit account interest
Bond interest

Expenditure

Direct operating activities
Staffing Costs

Consumer Direct call costs
Marketing

Refreshments and catering
Training expenses

Staff expenses

Company running costs
Sundry expenses

Other Consumer Direct expenses
Bank charges

Finance costs
Other interest payable

NET PROFIT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

2011
£ £

2,499,796
1,483
166

1,649

2,501,445
734,420
141,409
1,393,229
2,296
5,701
8,284
7,533
23,932
13,112
169,250
631

2,499,796

1,649

1,649

2010
£ £

2,078,882
1,975
5

1,980

2,080,862
377,742
180,587
1,208,120
20,261
2,528
9,428
10,337
24,607
1,547
243,305
419

2,078,882

1,980

16

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Pagg: 190

1,964



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

COMPANY RUNNING COSTS
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011

£
Turnover
CD management income 30,639
LA contributions 135,000
Project management income 2,988
Central Government Funding 10,401
Transfer - Tobacco - admin support 4,250
Transfer - Credit Fitness Checks 450
Transfer - GOWERS IP admin support -
Transfer - FSA admin support 1,000
E-Crime coordination income 12,000
BWC coordination income 5,000
Ports/LBRO admin support 11,250
Funding for organised training -
Sundry income 100,670
Transfer surplus to reserves (117,860)
Expenditure
Salary charges 116,763
Staff expenses 7,163
Telephone 2,000
Postage and stationery -
Catering 2,473
Audit 2,750
Insurance 798
Accounting and professional fees 3,808
Staff training 784
Premises costs 12,000
Office equip and computer costs -
Miscellaneous expenses 5,201
KCC CD contributions -
Legal fees 15
Website hosting costs 3,052
Organised training expenses 350
Members & Senior Managers events -
Transfer to Intel 38,000

195,157

Finance costs
Bank charges

NET PROFIT

195,788

631

631

2010

39,350
109,952

21,500
6,000
1,000
2,000

750

4,575

(11,390)

125,696
7,544
1,266

400
2,528
3,150
1,101
5,169
2,157

12,000

720
1,112
4,000

20
6,256
200

173,737

173,319

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Rage 161

419

419



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

CONSUMER DIRECT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Turnover

Cost per call income - OFT
Marketing and events income
Quality Bonus

Low payment income

Other income

Transfer deficit/(surplus) to reserves

Expenditure

Cost per call costs

Marketing and events costs
Trader tracking costs

Quality Bonus

Low volume payment

Trsfr to company running costs
Other expenditure

NET PROFIT

2011

1,393,553
(10,207)
150,926

20,343
7,964
1,562,579

1,393,229
101

150,926

18,000
324

1,562,579

2010

1,247,471
10,286
132,478
55,908
23,782

(22,453)

1,208,120
47
(1)
132,478
55,908
39,350

11,570

1,447,472

1,447,472

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Page: 152



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

REGIONAL INTELLIGENCE CAPABILITY

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Turnover

SELT project funding

Internal transfer from Tobacco
Internal transfer from Gowers
Gowers reserve for database
E-Crime project funding

LA contributions

Ports/LBRO contributions
Transfer surplus to reserves

Expenditure

Salary charges

Staff expenses

Telephone

Staff training

Contractor costs

Office equipment and computer costs

NET PROFIT

2011

4,165

4,000
38,000
2,475

(21,832)

18,546
370
392

7,500

26,808

26,808

2010

13,913
10,000
21,504
20,000

(15,410)

46,864
2,167
346
196

435

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Rage 13

50,007

50,007



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

GOWERS IP
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011 2010
£ £ £ £

Turnover
LA contributions - -
Transfer deficit to reserves - 54,023

- 54,023
Expenditure
Consultancy - -
Stakeholder events - -
Training - 820
Salary costs & expenses - 8,028
IT/database costs - 431
Promotional materials / publicity - -
Officer Training - -
LA Strategic Assesssments & Mapping - -
Market Operators Exercise - 1,510
Work with Customs & Excise - 21,504
Administration support - 2,000
Consultants expenses - (270)
Transfer to Regional Intel Capability - 20,000
Catering - -

- 54,023
NET PROFIT - -

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Pagge a4



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

BWC

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Turnover

Income from LAs

Income for sale of goods

BWC Scheme fee

Surrey admin

Web development

Transfer (surplus)/deficit to reserves

Expenditure

TSI Conference costs

Promotional activities/website hosting
Staff expenses

Consultants

Website

Staff costs

Card processing charges

NET PROFIT

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

2011

7,750
17,425
168
5,300
25,000

(28,175)

509
16,622
2,195

1,660

6,100
382

Rage 55

27,468

27,468

4,048
19,737
426
5,000

29,211

29,211



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

FSA
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011 2010

£ £ £ £
Turnover
Food bid 90,067 -
Feed bid 22,053 -
FSA Grant - 119,322
Transfer deficit to reserves 28,556 29,129

140,676 148,452

Expenditure
LA sampling costs 139,676 93,607
Administration support 1,000 54,844

140,676 148,452

NET PROFIT -

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Prgg: 186



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

CREDIT FITNESS CHECKS
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011 2010
£ £ £ £
Turnover
OFT income 12,921 13,754
Transfer deficit/(surplus) to reserves 1,324 (4,515)
14,245 9,239
Expenditure
LA visit costs 13,795 8,239
Administration support 450 1,000

14,245 9,239

NET PROFIT - -

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Fage 157



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

Turnover
DoH Grant

Transfer deficit/(surplus) to reserves

Expenditure
LATP costs
Promotional activities

Project co-ordination / intel collation

Consultants costs
Consultants expenses
Innovation

Trade newsletter activity
Detection & Disruption
Enforcement checks
Contingency

Vending machine activity
Pictorial warning activity
Counterfeit warning activity
Online project activity
Capacity

Administration support
Miscellaneous
Engagement, regional events

NET PROFIT

TOBACCO CONTROL
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011

169,114
58,919

110,172

9,851

781

9,027
191
2,350

2010

201,819

(129,240)

228,033

22,370
477
8,000
9,200
343
730
6,445

5,945
1,650
840
7,403
338
8,000

839
228,033

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Pagg: 1158

72,579

72,579



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

Turnover

TSI subscriptions

RFU income

Lexis Nexis subscriptions
IHS subscriptions

BIS Market Surveillance
Transfer deficit to reserves

Expenditure
Miscellaneous

Project costs

TSI Products

Lexis Nexis subscriptions
IHS subscriptions

BIS Market Surveillance

NET PROFIT

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

MISCELLANEOUS & ADHOC PROJECTS

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011

60,949

84,994
4,785
25,000
3,470

3,612
63,579
84,994

4,785
22,228

Rage 199

179,198

179,198

2010

68,341
1,000

10,865

435
11,430
68,341

80,206



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

HOLDING

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Turnover
Transfer deficit to reserves

Expenditure

Transfer to company running costs
Committed to LAs but not reimbursed
Reimbursement of LA money

NET PROFIT

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Pagé: 10

2011
£ £
50,338
50,338
2,493
(4,250)
52,095
50,338

6,400

6,400

2010
£ £
6,400
6,400



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

Turnover

BIS income

LBRO income

Transfer surplus to reserves

Expenditure

Sampling
Coordination/administration
Transfer to Intel
Miscellaneous

Sampling LA Ports work

NET PROFIT

PORTS & ERTS

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011

22,750
22,750

(689)

7,918
11,250
2,475

23,168

44,811

44,811

2010

25,000
7,500

(24,945)

164
7,391

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
Page 161

Page 21

7,555

7,555



TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

E-CRIME

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Turnover

Regional coordination/TP

Intel

Website development

LA TP & Surveillance

Transfer deficit/(surplus) to reserves

Expenditure

Regional coordination/TP
Intel collation

Equipment

Room hire/catering

LA TP & Surveillance

NET PROFIT

2011

3,500

3,628
10,000

12,724

10,000
5,500
1,123
3,228

10,000

2010
£ £

10,000

4,000

851

(14,851)
29,852
29,852

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Page 162

Page 22



Registered number: 04410176

East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Directors' report and financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012

Page 163



East Kent Spatial Development Company

(A company limited by guarantee)

Company Information

Member Organisations

Directors

Company secretary & Chief
executive officer

Company number

Registered office

Auditors

Bankers

Kent County Council (KCC)

University of Kent (UoK)

Locate in Kent (LiK)

Thanet District Council (TDC)

Dover District Council (DDC)

Shepway District Council (SDC)
Canterbury City Council (CCQC)

Homes and Communities Agency (HCA)

C Barron (UoK) (appointed 7 September 2011)
D Everitt (UoK) (appointed 7 September 2011)
P Watkins (DDC) (appointed 1 August 2011)

P Wookey (LiK) (appointed 7 September 2011)
A Clifton-Holt (SDC) (appointed 5 January 2012)
J Gilbey (CCC) (appointed 27 April 2011)

| Johnston (TDC) (appointed 5 January 2012)

D Spalding

04410176

Canterbury Innovation Centre
University Road

Canterbury

Kent

CT2 7FG

Reeves & Co LLP

Statutory Auditor & Registered Auditors
37 St Margaret's Street

Canterbury

Kent

CT1 2TU

NatWest Bank Plc
11 The Parade
Canterbury

Kent

CT1 25Q

Page 164



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Contents

Page
Directors' report 1-2
Independent auditors’ report 3-4
Profit and loss account 5
Statement of total recognised gains and losses 6
Balance sheet 7
Notes to the financial statements 8-17

Page 165



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Directors' report
for the year ended 31 March 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.
Directors' responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Principal activities

The company's principal activity is to promote the economic development and regeneration, with a view to
promoting the economic and environmental wellbeing, of an area within the districts of Thanet District Council,
Dover District Council, Shepway District Council and Canterbury City Council including, without limitation:

(a) primarily to undertake or procure the provision of infrastructure works and wider regeneration activities;
and

(b)  subject thereto to promote, provide and procure the provision of economic development activities and to
promote, provide and procure the provision of other appropriate support activities, including without limitation,
advice and training, in each case within or for the benefit of the Target Area.

Page 166
Page 1



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Directors' report
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Directors
The directors who served during the year were:

D Tucker (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)

R Bayford (TDC) (appointed 1 August 2011 & resigned 5 January 2012)
P Cusdin (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)

C Moore (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)

K Harvey (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)

J Sadler (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)

P Wookey (LiK) (appointed 7 September 2011)

K Lynes (KCC) (appointed 17 January 2012 & resigned 10 May 2012)
R Pascoe (SDC) (resigned 5 January 2012)

A Clifton-Holt (SDC) (appointed 5 January 2012)

C Smith (DDC) (resigned 1 August 2011)

J Gilbey (CCC) (appointed 27 April 2011)

| Johnston (TDC) (appointed 5 January 2012)

A Durowoju (HCA) (resigned 8 April 2011)

C Barron (UoK) (appointed 7 September 2011)

P Watkins (DDC) (appointed 1 August 2011)

D Everitt (UoK) (appointed 7 September 2011)

Provision of information to auditors

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors' report is approved has confirmed that:

e so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are
unaware, and

o that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any
information needed by the company's auditors in connection with preparing their report and to establish
that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors

Under section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, Reeves & Co LLP will be deemed to have been reappointed
as auditor(s) 28 days after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the latest date
prescribed for filing the accounts with the registrar, whichever is earlier.

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemptions provided by
section 415A of the Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board on 12 September 2012 and signed on its behalf.

J Gilbey (CCC)
Director

Page 167
Page 2



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Note
Turnover 1
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Operating profit 2
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 4
Profit for the financial year 13

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.

Page 168
Page 5

2012 2011
£ £
720,310 683,658
(381,212) (328,166)
339,098 355,492
(283,473) (320,932)
55,625 34,560
5,809 8,421
- (802)
61,434 42,179
(10,788) 52,603
50,646 94,782




East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Profit for the financial year

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties
Unrealised movement on valuation of other debtors

Associated movement in deferred tax arising from the
movement on valuation of other debtors

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.

Page 169
Page 6

2012 2011

£ g

50,646 94,782
400,000 282,750
568,542 329,338
(110,000) 190,000
909,188 896,870




East Kent Spatial Development Company

(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number: 04410176

Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 5 2,786 144
Investment property 6 2,200,000 1,800,000
2,202,786 1,800,144
Current assets
Debtors 7 5,506,179 6,679,725
Cash at bank 2,709,369 2,592,203
8,215,548 9,271,928
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 8 (603,952) (255,960)
Net current assets 7,611,596 9,015,968
Total assets less current liabilities 9,814,382 10,816,112
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 9 (7,586,668) (9,497,586)
Net assets 2,227,714 1 ,31 8,526
Capital and reserves
Revaluation reserve 13 2,200,000 1,800,000
Other reserves 13 (427,056) (885,598)
Profit and loss account 13 454,770 404,124

2,227,714

1,318,526

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to companies
subject to the small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its

behalf on 12 September 2012.

J Gilbey (CCC)
Director

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.

Page 170
Page 7



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

1. Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of the land and buildings and in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (FRSSE).

Cash flow

The financial statements do not include a Cash flow statement because the company, as a small
reporting entity, is exempt from the requirement to prepare such a statement under the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

Turnover

Turnover comprises income received in respect of the company's principal activities. It
incorporates two main elements; firstly income from investment properties, and secondly grants
released (see note 1.7).

Income from investment properties is credited to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the rental period.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at
rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,
over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Office Equipment - 33% straight line

Assets under the course of construction are included at cost less impairment. No depreciation is
provided until assets are brought into use. Assets under the course of construction will be
reclassified on completion to another tangible fixed asset heading or investment properties as
appropriate.

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the financial statements at market values based on the latest
valuation. A valuation was carried out by the Directors as at 31 March 2012, which was informed
by previous independent professional valuations undertaken by Cluttons LLP as at 15 February
2010 and 31 March 2011.

In accordance with the FRSSE, depreciation is not provided on investment properties that are held
as leaseholds having more than 20 years unexpired. This is not in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, which requires all tangible assets to be depreciated. This departure from the
requirements of the Act is, in the opinion of the Directors, necessary for the financial statements to
give a true and fair view and comply with applicable accounting standards which require
investment properties to be included in the financial statements at market value. Had the
provisions of the Act been followed, prior to grants being released as described in note 1.7,
revenue profits would have been reduced, the revaluation surplus would have been increased and
therefore net assets would have been unchanged.

Page 171
Page 8



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.6

1.7

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are recognised on a
straight line basis over the period until the date the rent is expected to be adjusted to the prevailing
market rate.

Grants
The company's activities are funded primarily by grant aid.

Grants by member organisations are given to finance the general administration of the company.
Such grants are recognised in the profit and loss account of the period in which they become
receivable.

Other grants receivable of a revenue nature are credited to the profit and loss account in the period
to which the expenditure, towards which they are intended to contribute, are incurred.

Grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as grants received in advance and are released
to the profit and loss account in the period during which any corresponding depreciation or
impairment of the costs is made.

Grants received in respect of investment properties have been deducted from the cost of those
assets. This is not in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, which requires assets to be shown
at their purchase price or production cost and hence grants and contributions to be presented as
deferred income. This departure from the requirements of the Act is, in the opinion of the Directors,
necessary to give a true and fair view as these assets do not have determinable finite lives and
therefore no basis exists on which to recognise grants and contributions as income. The effect of
this departure is that the cost of the investment property is £7,471,934 lower than it would
otherwise have been (2011: £6,264,677), but the valuation of the property is unchanged.

Grants receivable to finance loans made by the company are transferred from designated grants in
advance to unrestricted grants in advance in the period in which repayment of the other debtor to
which they relate is made.

Page 172
Page 9



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.8

1.9

Other debtors

Other debtors comprise loans made to a utility provider to finance new infrastructure works in East
Kent. The loans (utility loans) are index linked to RPI and are repayable as and when third parties
pay the utility provider to connect to the new utility infrastructure. The amount of utility loan
repayable is proportionate to the capacity connected as a percentage of the total capacity of the
new utility network.

In order to make these utility loans the company has received grants (see 1.7 above). At the point
of repayment, the grant made to finance the utility loan is transferred from designated grants in
advance to unrestricted grants in advance .

Although the company’s classification is small and it is not therefore required to implement the
provisions of FRS26 “Financial instruments: measurement”, the company has adopted FRS26 as
best practice on accounting for these utility loans. Accordingly the utility loans have been treated
as an "available for sale financial asset" and are measured at fair value. Fair value is taken as the
directors' best estimate of the discounted future income stream arising from the repayment of the
utility loans.

Any movement in the value of this estimate, other than from the draw down or repayment, is taken
to other reserves.

There is no certainty over the timing and percentage connection to the network that will be
achieved. As such there is significant uncertainty over the carrying value of utility loans. The
directors do not envisage 100% connection to the network and therefore they have made a
provision to reduce the value of utility loans to their estimated fair value. The accumulated
provision is shown as an other reserve, as disclosed in note 13.

Going concern

There is no certainty over the timing and future value of the other debtor loan repayments and
consequently the carrying value of the loans which are valued at the directors' best estimate of fair
value.

The recognition of the unrealised deficit relating to the revaluation of other debtors does not impact
on the company’s financial facilities. The company has started to receive repayments and expects
a positive cash flow in future years to arise from the other debtor balances. The company made a
profit on ordinary activities after taxation of £50,646 (2011: £94,782). The company has
£2,709,369 (2011: £2,592,203) included in cash at the bank. As a consequence the directors
believe that the company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the
current uncertain economic outlook.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has
adequate financial resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and
accounts.

Page 173
Page 10



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Deferred taxation

Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from all timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in the tax
computation.

Deferred tax is not provided on timing differences arising from the revaluation of fixed assets in the
financial statements.

A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than not that there
will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences
can be deducted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates expected to be effective at the
time the timing differences are expected to reverse.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are discounted.

2. Operating profit

The operating profit is stated after charging:

2012 2011
£ £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned by the company 608 72
Auditors' remuneration 5,050 4,900
During the year, no director received any emoluments (2011 - £NIL).

3. Exceptional items
The operating profit is also stated after charging / (crediting):
2012 2011
£ £
Impairment of tangible fixed assets (664,914) (241,276)
Release of grants towards tangible fixed assets 664,914 241,276

Assets under the course of construction have been impaired to the higher of their net realisable value
and their value in use. Corresponding releases have been made from grants received in advance. Both
the impairments and the grant releases have been charged to administration expenses within the profit
and loss account resulting in nil overall effect to the profit and loss account.

Page 174
Page 11



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

4.

Taxation

Analysis of tax charge/(credit) in the year

UK corporation tax charge on profit for the year
Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

2012 2011
£ g
10,750 7,089
38 (59,692)
10,788 (52,603)

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2011 - lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in

the UK of 20% (2011 - 20%). The differences are explained below:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2011 - 20%)

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goodwill
amortisation and impairment

Capital allowances for year in excess of depreciation

Utilisation of tax losses

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods

Current tax charge/(credit) for the year (see note above)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

2012 2011
£ £
61,434 42,179
12,287 8,436
168 337
(543) -
(1,162) (1,684)
38 (59,692)
10,788 (52,603)

The company has tax losses carried forward of £415,000 (2011: £990,000). These have resulted in the
recognition of a deferred tax asset. The tax losses will be utilised to reduce future taxable profits.

Page 175
Page 12



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

5. Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2011

Additions

Transfers to investment
properties

At 31 March 2012

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011

Charge for the year

Impairment (see note 3)

Transfers to investment
properties

At 31 March 2012

Net book value
At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

6. Investment property

Cost

At 1 April 2011

Grants received

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation

Transfers from Assets under the course of
construction

At 31 March 2012
Comprising

Revaluation surplus - 2010

Revaluation surplus - 2011
Revaluation surplus - 2012

At 31 March 2012

Page 176
Page 13

Furniture, Assets under
fittings and the course of
equipment construction

£

2,371
3,250

£

241,276
1,064,914

(1,207,258)

Total

243,647
1,068,164

(1,207,258)

5,621

98,932

104,553

2,227
608

241,276
664,914

(807,258)

243,503
608
664,914

(807,258)

2,835

98,932

101,767

2,786

2,786

144

144

Long term
Leasehold

investment

property
£

1,800,000
(400,000)
400,000

400,000

2,200,000

1,517,250

282,750
400,000

2,200,000



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

6. Investment property (continued)
The 2012 valuations were made by the Directors, on an open market value for existing use basis. The
valuation was informed by previous independent professional valuations undertaken by Cluttons LLP as
at 15 February 2010 and 31 March 2011.
The company's investment property is secured by way of a legal mortgage against the grants made by
SEEDA (see note 10).
7. Debtors
2012 2011
£ £
Due after more than one year
Other debtors 5,096,189 6,396,215
Deferred tax asset (see note 11) 62,500 150,000
Due within one year
Trade debtors 10,065 14,010
Grants receivable 151,153 3,248
Prepayments and accrued income 168,772 76,252
Deferred tax asset (see note 11) 17,500 40,000
5,506,179 6,679,725
Other debtors include loans made to a utility service provider to finance the installation of new network
infrastructure. The valuation principles of these loans and related uncertainties are described in note
1.8.
8. Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year
2012 2011
£ £
Grants received in advance (see note 10) 168,267 54,073
Trade creditors 132,188 18,250
Corporation tax 10,750 7,089
Other creditors 292,747 176,548
603,952 255,960

Included within other creditors are amounts totalling £42,276 (£42,276 in grants received in advance)
owed to SEEDA secured by way of a legal charge over the leasehold property.

Page 177
Page 14



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

9.

10.

11.

Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year
2012 2011
£ £
Grants received in advance (see note 10) 7,586,668 9,497,586
Grants received in advance
2012 2011
£ £
Unrestricted grants 1,983,424 1,737,724
Designated grants - other debtors 5,715,837 7,717,512
Designated grants - fixed assets 55,674 96,423
7,754,935 9,551,659

Unrestricted grants

These relate to those grants received by the company that the company is able to use for whatever
purpose it deems appropriate. The balance includes HCA funding of £300,430 (2011: £300,430) and
converted other debtor grants of £1,682,994 (2011: £1,437,294).

Designated grants - other debtors

These relate to grants received in order to finance the other debtor loans made by the company. They
are converted to unrestricted grants once the repayment of the other debtor falls due. The balance
includes Single Regeneration Budget funding administered through TDC of £1,412,540 (2011:
£1,945,533), funding from the HCA of £2,229,568 (2011: £3,070,849), and funding from the European
Regional Development Fund of £1,961,136 (2011: £2,701,130).

The balance also includes funding from the HCA in respect of recoverable deposits totalling £112,593
(2011: £NIL).

Designated grants - fixed assets
These relate to grants received in order to finance fixed assets of the company. The balance comprises
SEEDA funding of £nil (2011: £42,276) and funding from the HCA of £55,674 (2011: £54,147).

Deferred tax asset

2012 2011
£ £
At beginning of year 190,000 -
(Charge for)/released during year (110,000) 190,000
At end of year 80,000 190,000
The deferred tax asset is made up as follows:
2012 2011
£ £
Tax losses carried forward 80,000 190,000

Page 178
Page 15



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Company status

The company is a private company limited by guarantee and consequently does not have share capital.
Each of the members is liable to contribute an amount not exceeding £1 towards the assets of the
company in the event of liquidation.

Reserves
Revaluation Other Profit and
reserve reserves loss account
£ £ £
At 1 April 2011 1,800,000 (885,598) 404,124
Profit for the year 50,646
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold property 400,000
Movement on other reserves 458,542
At 31 March 2012 2,200,000 (427,056) 454,770

Other reserves represent the provision made to reduce utility loans to the directors' best estimate of fair
value. See accounting policy 1.8.

Contingent liabilities

The company has received grants contingent on meeting certain performance criteria. The Directors
are confident that the Company will meet these performance criteria.

Capital commitments

At 31 March 2012 the company had capital commitments as follows:

2012 2011
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 813,332 873,891

In respect of the commitment, the company had an agreement with the HCA that capital grant funding
would be made available to the company in respect of qualifying capital expenditure.

Related party transactions

During the year the company was refunded premises expenses totalling £955 (2011 charged: £8,679)
from TDC, a member of the company. Included within prepayments is an amount of £Nil (2011: £426)
relating to monies paid to TDC in advance.

During the year the company received grants from the HCA totalling £1,300,610 (2011: £244,524). The
unutilised balance remaining on grants received are shown in note 10.

During the year the company paid rates to CCC of £131,305 (2011: £117,918). At the year end the
company was owed £Nil (2011: £2,159).

Page 179
Page 16



East Kent Spatial Development Company
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

17. Controlling party

There is no controlling party for the company.

Page 180

Page 17



Company Registration No. 05505567 (England and Wales)

PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

DIRECTORS' REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Page 181



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors

Secretary
Company number

Registered office

Auditors

Business address

J Barnes

P Hannan

W Opie

S Clarke

A Wickham

M Regan

R Phillips

Professor P Gregory
A Church

Appointed 21 April 2011)
Appointed 20 July 2011)
Appointed 11 August 2011)
Appointed 26 January 2012)

—_~ o~ o~ o~

S Durling
05505567

Charcott Holm Farmhouse
Tonbridge Road

Hadlow

Tonbridge

Kent

TN11 OAH

Wilkins Kennedy FKC
Stourside Place
Station Road

Ashford

Kent

Charcott Holm Farmhouse
Tonbridge Road

Hadlow

Tonbridge

Kent

TN11 OAH

Page 182



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

CONTENTS
Page
Directors' report 1-2
Independent auditors' report 3-4
Profit and loss account 5
Balance sheet 6
Notes to the financial statements 7-9

Page 183



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the company continued to be that of increasing public awareness of produce which
has been produced in Kent.

Directors
The following directors have held office since 1 April 2011:

J Barnes

P Hannan

W Opie

Dr M Solomon (Resigned 20 July 2011)

S Clarke

A Wickham

M Regan (Appointed 21 April 2011)

T Piper (Resigned 20 July 2011)

R Phillips (Appointed 20 July 2011)
Professor P Gregory (Appointed 11 August 2011)
A Church (Appointed 26 January 2012)

Statement of directors' responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Page 184



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Statement of disclosure to auditors

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are
unaware. Additionally, the directors have taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as
directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the
company's auditors are aware of that information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies within
Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006.

On behalf of the board

W Opie
Director

Page 185
-2-



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Produced in Kent Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 set
out on pages 5 to 9. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 1 - 2, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors' Report
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its loss for the
year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice applicable to Smaller Entities; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Page 186
-3-



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE MEMBERS OF PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small
companies regime and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the directors’
report.

John Mcintyre (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Wilkins Kennedy FKC .

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor Stourside Place
Station Road
Ashford
Kent

Page 187
-4 -



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Operating (loss)/profit

Other interest receivable and similar
income

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities
before taxation

Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

(Loss)/profit for the year

Page 188

2012
£

236,969

(45,963)

191,006

(198,793)

(7,787)

25

(7,762)

(7,762)

2011
£

269,505

(57,672)

211,833

(203,547)

8,286

8,292

(669)

7,623

-5-



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Notes £ £ £ £

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 5 315 1,066

Current assets
Debtors 6 51,695 51,999
Cash at bank and in hand 77,840 41,640

129,535 93,639
Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year 7 (110,871) (67,964)

Net current assets 18,664 25,675
Total assets less current liabilities 18,979 26,741

Reserves

Profit and loss account 9 18,979 26,705
Members' funds 18,979 26,705
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies

subject to the small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 and with the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

Approved by the Board and authorised for issue on ...........ccccceeee..

W Opie
Director

Company Registration No. 05505567

Page 189
-6-



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Accounting policies

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
appropriate because there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt about the ability of the company to continue as a going concern.

Compliance with accounting standards

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), which have been applied
consistently (except as otherwise stated).

Turnover
Turnover represents amounts receivable for goods and services net of VAT and trade discounts.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to
write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful life, as follows:

Fixtures, fittings & equipment 33.3% Straight Line

Operating (loss)/profit 2012 2011
£ £

Operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible assets 316 1,234

Auditors' remuneration 2,015 3,500

Investment income 2012 2011
£ £

Bank interest 25 6

25 6

Taxation 2012 2011
£ £

Domestic current year tax

U.K. corporation tax - 669

Total current tax - 669

Page 190
-7-



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

5

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 April 2011
Disposals

At 31 March 2012
Depreciation

At 1 April 2011
On disposals

Charge for the year

At 31 March 2012

Net book value
At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

Debtors

Trade debtors
Other debtors

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Taxation and social security

Other creditors

Page 191

Fixtures,

fittings &
equipment

£

36,283

(16,439)

19,844

35,217

(16,004)

316

19,529

315

1,066
2012 2011
£ £
44,997 51,999
6,698 -
51,695 51,999
2012 2011
£ £
87,086 44,719
- 6,648
23,785 16,597
110,871 67,964

-8-



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

10

Company status

The company is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. Every member of the
company undertakes to contribute in a winding up a sum not exceeding £1 whilst they are a member, or
within one year after ceasing to be a member, towards debts and liabilities contracted before ceasing to
be a member.

Statement of movements on profit and loss account
Profit and
loss
account
£

Balance at 1 April 2011 26,741
Loss for the year (7,762)

Balance at 31 March 2012 18,979

Related party relationships and transactions

During the year, income of £122,104 (2011:£150,000) was receivable from Kent County Council in
respect of operational costs. Staff costs of £144,457 (2011: £151,843) were paid to that organisation of
which £71,333 remained payable at 31 March 2012. As at 31 March 2012, £42,345 (2011: £50,364) was
due from Kent County Council. Kent County Council is a member of the company.

Income receivable from Hadlow College for the year was £40,000 (2011: £50,000). Staff costs of £12,066
were paid to Hadlow College during the year. As at 31 March 2012, £2,700 (2011: £nil) was due to
Hadlow College. The premises occupied by the company during the year to 31 March 2012 were rented
from Hadlow College. Rent and service charges of £16,717 were paid to Hadlow College during the year.
Hadlow College is a member of the company.

Page 192
-9-



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Page 193



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Turnover

Receivable from Kent County Council

Receivable from Hadlow College
Membership income
LEADER income

Awards, festivals and events income

Miscellaneous income
Marketing income

Cost of sales

Kent Food and Drink Festival
Taste of Kent Awards

Newsletter

Members Marketing

LEADER Expenditure

Kent Show

Young Chef Award

Kent's Finest

Create a Fruit & Veg Masterpiece

Gross profit
Administrative expenses

Operating (loss)/profit

Other interest receivable and similar income

Bank interest received

(Loss)/profit before taxation

2012

£ £

122,104

40,000

29,666

41,457

3,107

635

236,969
11,216
12,441
4,142
530
8,129
5,226
3,705
574

(45,963)

191,006

(198,793)

(7,787)

25

(7,762)

2011

£ £

150,000

50,000

27,131

7,999

31,554

2,821

269,505
16,533
12,908
5,643
22
9,207
7,700
5,659

(57,672)

211,833

(203,547)

8,286

6

8,292

Page 194



PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Administrative expenses
Wages and salaries (excl. N.I.)
Staff training

Rent

Insurance

Cleaning

Repairs and maintenance
Printing, postage and stationery
PR and advertising

Telephone

Computer running costs

Travel expenses

Entertaining

Legal and professional fees
Audit fees

Bank charges

Bad and doubtful debts

Sundry expenses

Subscriptions

Depreciation on fixtures, fittings and equipment
Losses on tangible fixed assets scrapped

Page 195

2012
£

153,107
194
16,717
751
156
217
2,794
11,022
2,169
2,790
4,100
1,496
2,015
54

14
312
134
316
435

198,793

2011
£

151,865
1,116
13,577
578
156
3,679
16,353
2,014
3,163
3,846
333
990
3,500
59

888
196
1,234

203,547




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 196



\t‘v

252
Company Registration Number 3000723
REGISTRAR OF
COMPANIES
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT
COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR
315T MARCH 2011
2
E "AQOKPZC1”
A2 20/12/2011 #61

COMPANIES HOUSE

BURGESS HODGSON
Chartered Accountants & Registered Auditors
Camburgh House
27 New Dover Road
Canterbury
Kent
CT1 3DN

Page 197




BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

CONTENTS

The directors' report

Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders
Group income and expenditure account

Group statement of recognised gains and losses
Group balance sheet

Balance sheet

Group cash flow statement

Notes to the financial statements

Page 198

PAGES
1to 3
4to5
6

7

8

9

10

11to 19



Page 1
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the financial statements of the group for the
year ended 31 March 2011

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the group during the year was to improve the competitiveness of small and
medium sized enterpnises through the impartial delivery of a vanety of services and by providing
access to the information, skills, knowledge and advice they need to succeed

The group 1s also an active partner with a number of key stakeholders in Kent and throughout the
South East that seek to promote the economic prosperity of the region

The parent company’s status of Commumty Interest Company accords with the role the business has
In serving communities 1n Kent

The group benefits the following sections of the commumity through 1ts operations, services and the
application of 1its financial resources and through 1ts influence

1 Local communties primarily 1n Kent, particularly those in designated areas of social
deprivation, regeneration or growth, where stimulation of the enterprise economy will bring
positive benefits to the economic and social well being of the community

2 Individuals who need or want to start a business or commence self-employment, particularly
those from sections of the commumty who are under-represented or disadvantaged in the
enterprise economy

3 Small and Medium sized businesses and their employees, particularly those in designated
arcas of social deprivation, regeneration or growth Small and Medium sized businesses
account for the majority of new job creation and make a significant positive contribution to
the economy

Key Achievements

Financial

The group generated a pre-tax deficit on ordinary activities of £224,591 (2010 surplus of £256,451)
during the year The three year contract to provide the Business Link service, funded by SEEDA was
successfully completed on 31st March 2010

The loss of the Business Link contract to a national service provider has had a significant impact on
the scale of the group, directly resuling in a reduction 1n turnover from £9,275,082 in 2010 to
£5,076,700 1n this year The vear to 31st March 2011 was very much one of transition requiring a
substantial realignment of the organisation which gave rnise to sigmificant once-off costs that
contributed to the reported deficit

The group has made good progress 1n reorganising its operations to address the challenges of this new
environment, resulting in a reduction 1n headcount from 103 to 47, and has been successful n securing
some new contracts to sustain 1its future business

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Following the loss of the Business Link contract the group 1s continuing to run a number of projects,
which are primanly European-funded The group continues to be dependent on securing additional
project funding from Europe and the UK There are uncertainties associated with the economic
situation for both sources

Page 199




Page 2
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

THE DIRECTORS'REPORT {continued)
YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The trading results for the yvear and the group's financial position at the end of the year are shown 1n
the attached financial statements

Under the terms of the Memorandum and Articles of Association the company may not distnbute
profits to 1ts members

THE DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY
The directors who served the company during the year together with their beneficial interests 1n the
shares of the company were as follows

Ordinary Shares of £1 each

At At

31 March 2011 1 Apnl 2010

or later date

of appointment

M Adam {appoimnted 13 September 2011) - -
B W C Bond 2 2
R R Clewley 2 2
J W Faulkner  (resigned 10 May 2011) 2 2
S Holt {resigned 13 September 2011) - -
R C Jones (resigned 9 August 2011) - —
A J Ledger - -
J Ollis {appointed 13 September 2011) - -
E Russell {appownted 13 September 2011) - -
P Winter 2 2
S Wood — —

The directors have a non-beneficial interest in the shares that they hold

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The directors are responsible for preparning the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements 1n accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (Unmited Kingdom Accounting Standards and
apphicable law) The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and the group for that period In prepanng these financial statements, the
directors are required to

¢ select sumtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 15 inappropnate to

presume that the group will continue 1n business

Page 200




Page 3
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any tume the financial position of the group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities

In so far as the directors are aware
s there 1s no relevant audit information of which the group’s auditor 1s unaware, and
» the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor 1s aware of that information

AUDITORS
A resolution to re-appoint Burgess Hodgson as auditors for the ensuing year will be proposed at the
annual general meeting n accordance with seciion 485 of the Compames Act 2006

Registered office Signed by order of the directors
Foord Annexe
High Street
Rochester
Kent
ME1 1EW '
R R CLEWLEY

Approved by the directors on & L%VM&L/ 2o

Page 201




Page 4
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements of Business Support Kent
Commumnity Interest Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 on pages 6 to 19, which have been
prepared on the basis of the accounting policies set out on page 11

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with chapter 3 of part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audu work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's shareholder those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully n the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 1 to 2, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the group's circurnstances and have been consistenily applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial statements

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion the financial statements

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and parent company's affairs as at
31 March 2011 and of the group’s deficit for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

»  have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opimion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Page 202




Page 5
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2011

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, 1n our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

+  the financial statements are not m agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
s certamn disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

¢  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

/(/Méméz_»ﬁ\

Mark Laughton
{Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of

BURGESS HODGSON
Chartered Accountants
& Statutory Auditor
Camburgh House
27 New Dover Road
Canterbury
Kent
CT 1 3DN

23T Noveloar 2011

Page 203




Page 6

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

GROUP INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

GROUP TURNOVER

Cost of sales

GROSS SURPLUS

Administrative expenses

OPERATING (DEFICIT) / SURPLUS

Share of associate operating profit

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT)}/ SURPLUS
Interest recervable

Dividend receivable

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS ON ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

Tax on surplus / (deficit) on ordinary activities

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS AFTER TAX

Extraordinary Cost

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The notes on pages 11 to 19 form part of these financial statements

Note

3

Page 204

2011
£

5,076,700

2,577,320

2,499,380

2,741,690
(242,310)

1,514
(240,796)
16,205

(224,591)
(2,063)

(226,654)

(226,654)

2010
£

9,275,082

2,972,544

6,302,538
6,153,403

149,135

149,135
7.316

100,000

256,451

4,073

260,524

(89,405)

171,119




Page 7
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

GROUP STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

2011 2010
£ £

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR (226,654) 171,119
RESERVE TRANSFER ON
TERMINATION OF CONTRACT - (587.595)
TOTAL REALISED GAINS AND
LOSSES SINCE LAST ANNUAL
REPORT (226,654) (416,476)

The notes on pages 11 to 19 form part of these financial statements

Page 205




Page 8
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

GROUP BALANCE SHEET

315" MARCH 2011

2011 2010
Note £ £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 7 76,229 76,835
Investments 8 10
Investment 1n assoctate 1,534 -
Tangible Assets and Investments 77,763 76,845
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 9 2,266,021 2,090,542
Cash at bank 216,558 1,086,920

2,482,579 3,177,462
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due
within one year 10 (2,181,023) (2,648,334)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 301,556 529,128
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 379,319 605,973
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called-up equity share capital 13 8 8 '
Income and expenditure account 14 379,311 605,965
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 15 379,319 605,973 ’

These financial statements were approved by the directors on thczl/l/w@*hé/z’"and are signed on

their behalf by

R R CLEWLEY

Company Registration Number 3000723

The notes on pages 11 to 19 form part of these financial statements

Page 206




Page 9

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

BALANCE SHEET

315" MARCH 2011

Note £

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 7 76,229
Investments 8 50
Tangible Assets and Investments
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 9 2,300,619
Cash at bank 215,630

2,516,249
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due
within one year 10 (2,173,734)
NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called-up equuty share capital 13
Income and expenditure account 14
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 15

76,279

342,515

418,794

8
418,786

418,794

2010
£ £
76,522
40
76,562
2,130,358
1,081,616
3,211,974
(2,647,584)
564,390
640,952
8
640,944
640,952

These financial statements were approved by the directors on thezz/.%ye«-v& %iand are signed on

P )

R R CLEWLEY

their behalf by

Company Registration Number 3000723

The notes on pages 11 to 19 form part of these financial statements

Page 207




Page 10
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

2011 2010

Note £ £
NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 16 (831,743) 131,946
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS
AND SERVICING OF FINANCE 16 16,205 107,316
TAXATION 16 (1,459) (4,140)
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND
FINANCIAL INVESTMENT 16 (53,365) (69,918)
(DECREASEYINCREASE IN
CASH 16 (870,362) 165,204

The notes on pages 11 to 19 form part of these financial statements

Page 208




Page 11

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and 1n
accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the company and all group undertakings
These are adjusted, where appropriate, to conform to group accounting policies  Acquisitions are
accounted for under the acquisinon method The results of companies acquired or disposed of
are included 1in the income and expenditure account after or up to the date that control passes
respectively

An associate 15 an entty in which the group holds a participating interest and exercises
significant influence  Associates are included in the group’s balance sheet using the equity
method, which records the group’s mvestment at cost plus the appropriate share of the
associate’s results since acquisition

Turnover

The turnover shown 1n the income and expenditure account represents amounts mvoiced during
the year, exclusive of Value Added Tax Also included in turnover are grants recerved and
receivable from UK and European governments as the income relates to activities performed 1n
the year

Fixed assets
All fixed assets are imtially recorded at cost
Depreciation

Depreciation 1s calculated so as to wnite off the cost of an asset, less 1ts estimated residual value,
over the useful economic hife of that asset as follows

Fixtures & Fittings - 3 years straight line
Computer Equipment - 3 years straight hne
Leasehold Improvements - 3 years straight line

Operating lease agreements

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantuially all of the benefits and nsks of
ownership remain with the lessor are charged against income on a straight line basis over the
period of the lease

Pension costs

The group operates a defined contnibution pension scheme for employees The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the group The annual contnbutions payable are
charged to the income and expenditure account

Page 209




Page 12

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2011

2. TURNOVER

An analysis of group turnover is given below

United Kingdom

3. OPERATING DEFICIT

Operating deficit 1s stated after charging

Depreciation of owned fixed assets
Auditors' remuneration
- as auditors

4. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

2011
£

5,076,700

2011
53,961

9,600

2010
£

9,275,082

2010
£
148,197

9,560

The average number of staff employed by the group during the financial year amounted to

Number of administrative staff
Number of management staff
Number of programme staff

The aggregate payroll costs of the above were

Wages and salanes
Social security costs
Money purchase pension costs

5. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The directors' aggregate emoluments in respect of qualifying services were

Agpgregate emoluments
Value of group pension contributions to money
purchase schemes

Page 210

2011
No
5
4
38

47

201
£
1,797,307
175,707
79,337

2,052,351

2011
£
72,596

3,500

76,096

2010
No
10
11
82
103

2010
£
3,641,366
372,807
328,049

4,342.222

2010
£
143,980

13,139

157,119




Page 13

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH 2011

5.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS fcontinued)

The number of directors who are accruing benefits under group pension schemes was as follows

2011 2010
No No

Money purchase schemes 1 2
TAX ON SURPLUS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

2011 2010

£ £

Current tax
Under/(over) provision in prior year (78) (4,151)
Refund re 2007-08 - (1,459)
UK Corporation tax based on the results for the year
at 21% (2010 - 21%) 2,141 1,537
Total current tax 2,063 (4,073)

Business Support Kent Community Interest Company, due to its not for profit status, 1s exempt
from a charge to Corporation Tax on its surpluses or deficits The tax charge 15 based solely on
its mvestment mcome for the year

Page 211




Page 14
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2011

7. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Furniture Computer Leasehold
and Office Equipment Improvements Total
Equipment ‘
GROUP |
£ £ £ £
COST
At 1st April 2010 69,001 53,465 222,940 345,406
Additions 33,176 20,179 - 53,355
Disposals - (3,428) (166,093) (169,521)
At 31st March 2011 102,177 70,216 56,847 229,240
DEPRECIATION
At 1st April 2010 59,571 15,980 193,020 268,571
Charge for the year 11,828 21,015 21,118 53,961
Depreciation on Disposals - (3,428) (166,093) (169,521) !
At 31st March 2011 71,399 33,567 48,045 153,011
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31st March 2011 30,778 36,649 8,802 76,229
At 31st March 2010 9,430 37,485 29,920 76,835
COMPANY
£ £ £
COST
At 1st Aprl 2010 69,001 52,526 222,940 344,467
Additions 33,176 20,179 - 53,355
Disposals - (3,428) (166,093) (169,521)
At 31st March 2011 102,177 69,277 56,847 228,301
DEPRECIATION
At Ist Apni] 2010 59,571 15,354 193,020 267,945
Charge for the year 11,828 20,702 21,118 53,648
Depreciation on Disposals - (3,428) (166,093) (169,521)
At 31st March 2011 71,399 32,628 48,045 152,072
|
|
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31st March 2011 30,778 36,649 8,802 76,229
At 31st March 2010 9,430 37,172 29,920 76,522

Page 212

——————



Page 15

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

8.

INVESTMENTS
GROUP
Associate
£
COST
At 31% March 2010 10
Additions 1,524
At 31" March 2011 1,534
COMPANY
Group
companies
£
COST
At 31* March 2010 40
Additions 10
At 31% March 2011 50

Group companies

At 31° March 2011 Business Support Kent CIC held the whole of the allotted share capital of the
following companies

BSK Dhrect Limited (formerly Enterprise Taktix Limited) (provider of a knowledge transfer
platform)

Taktix Limited (dormant)

Business Link Kent Limited (dormant)

Associate

At 31% March 2011 Business Support Kent CIC held one third of the allotted share capital of
Skulls South East Limited Business Support Kent CIC exercises significant influence over Skills
South East Lumited and so the company has been treated as an associate in the consohdated
financial statements The group’s share of profit comprises one third of Skills South East
LLimited’s profits

The most recent audited financial statements of Skills South East Limited are for its financial
year ended 31* July 2010 at which date 1ts capital and reserves were £101,693 and 1ts loss for the
year then ended was £80,450 The company’s results for the year to 31% March 2011 and 1its
assets and habilities at that date have been consolidated using interim accounts

Page 213




Page 16

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

9.

10.

1.

DEBTORS

GROUP COMPANY

2011 2010 2011 2010

£ £ £ £
Trade debtors 90,026 163,066 90,026 162,850
Other debtors 10,520 527,926 5,985 527,783
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 48,133 40,175
Prepayments and accrued income 2,165,475 1,399,550 2,156,475 1,399,550

2,266,021 2,090,542 2,300,619 2,130,358

CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

GROUP COMPANY

2011 2010 2011 2010

£ £ £ £
Trade creditors 63,785 89,101 63,785 89,101
Corporation tax 2,141 1,537 2,141 1,537
VAT Payable 24,548 20,683 24,548 20,683
PAYE and social secunty 55,719 137,622 55,719 137,622
Accruals and deferred income 2,034,830 1,722,391 2,027,541 1,721,641
Contract termination hiability - 677,000 - 677,000

2,181,023 2,648,334 2,173,734 2,647,584

COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

At 31st March 2011 the group and company had annual commitments under non-cancellable

operating leases as set out below

Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year
Within 2 to 5 years

Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year
Within 2 to 5 years

Page 214

Assets Other Than Land & Buildings

201
£

25,152

25,152

Land & Buildings

2011
£

9,250

9,250

2010
£

25,207

25,207

2010

18,500

18,500




Page 17

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2011

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At the year end Business Support Kent Community Interest Company was owed £48,133 (2010
£40,175) by its subsichary company BSK-Direct Limited (formerly Enterpnise Taktix Limited)
Dunng the year Business Support Kent Community Interest Company made sales totalling
£36,705 (2010 £10,066) to 1ts subsidiary company BSK-Direct Limited  These sales
represented recharges of costs mitally paid by Business Support Kent Community Interest

Company on behalf of BSK-Direct Limited

BSK-Direct Lirited was under the control of the directors throughout the current and previous

year There 1s no overall controlling party

13. SHARE CAPITAL

COMPANY

Authorised share capital:

100 Ordinary shares of £1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of £1 each

14. RESERVES
GROUP

Balance brought forward
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

Balance carned forward

COMPANY

Balance brought forward
Retained surplus/{deficit) for the vear

Balance carned forward

Income and
expenditure
account

£
605,965
(226,654)

379,311

Income and
expenditure
account

£
640,944
(222,158)

418,786

There 15 a contingent habuity for both the group and the company of approximately £97,000
(2010 £97,000) in respect of a termination of a contract which 1s contingent upon staff
movements in the future which attached to the closure of the Business Link contract

Page 215




Page 18

BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2011

15 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

16.

GROUP
2011
£
Surplus/(Deficit) for the financial year (226,654)
Transfer of capital reserve on termination of contract -
Opemng shareholders' equity funds 605,973
Closing shareholders' equity funds 379,319
COMPANY
2011
£
Surplus/{Deficit) for the financial year (222,158)
Transfer of capital reserve on termination of contract -
Opening shareholders' equity funds 640,952
Closing shareholders’ equity funds 418,794

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2010
£
171,119
(587,595)

1,022,449
605,973

2010
£
169,600
(587,595)

1,058,947
640,952

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2011
£
Net operating (deficit) / surplus (240,796)
Depreciation 53,961
Share of associate’s operating profit (1,514)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors {175,479
Increase/(decrease) in creditors (467,915)
Asset disposals -
Liability for contract closure -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (831,743)

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

2011
£
Dividend Received — Skills South East Ltd -
Interest received 16,205
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and
servicing of finance 16,205

Page 216

2010
£
149,135
148,197

(688,817)
1,154,050
46,381

(677,000)
131,946

2010
£
100,000

7,316

107,316




Page 19
BUSINESS SUPPORT KENT COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH 2011

16. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

TAXATION
2011 2010
£ £
Taxation (1,459) (4,140)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENT

2011 2010
£ £
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets (53,355) {69,918)
Acquisition of fixed asset investments (10 -
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure (53,365) (69,918) ‘

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS

2011 2010

£ £
(Decrease)/Increase in cash in the period (870,362) 165,204
Movement 1n net funds in the period (870,362) 165,204
Net funds at 1 April 2010 1,086,920 921,716
Net funds at 31 March 2011 216,558 1,086,920

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

At At
1 Apr 2010 Cash flows 31 Mar 2011

£ £ £

Net cash -

Cash in hand and at bank 1,086,920 (870,362) 216,558
Net funds 1,086,920 (870,362) 216,558

Page 217




ooaszu\l S

CIC 34

Community Interest Company Report

For official use
(Please leave blank)

Please Company Name in | Business Support Kent Community Interest
f;;:zgﬁ;::nar full | Company

in bold black Company Number 03000723

capitals.

Year Ending 31 March 2011

This template illustrates what the Regulator of Community Interest Companies considers to
be best practice for completing a simplified community interest company report All such
reports must be delivered in accordance with section 34 of the Companies (Audit,
Investigations and Community Enterprise) Act 2004 and contain the information required by
Part 7 of the Community Interest Company Regulations 2005 For further guidance see
chapter 8 of the Regulator’s guidance notes and the alternate example provided for a more
complex company with more detailed notes

PART 1 - GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES AND IMPACT

In the space provided below, please insert a general account of the company’s activities in the
financial year to which the report relates, including a fair and accurate description of how they
have benefited the community, or section of the community, which the company 1s intended to
serve

At BSK we believe in helping businesses and individuals to make a real difference to therr
performance and profitability To this end, for the last four years we have focused on running
funded programmes In four key areas, sustainability, innovation and growth, competitiveness,
and knowledge transfer We have adapted our own business model whilst retaining the spint,
atmosphere, and enthusiasm of our outstanding people as we respond to change, and
encourage change in our business community. We provide a range of business development,
primanly subsidised, through European programmes such as regional ERDF, Interreg, CIP
and Lifelong Learning, local Authonties, primarily Medway and Kent County Councils and the
UK government, to commercially developed B2B activity such as our Kent2020 Vision Live
event Additionally we also provide bid writing and consultancy support for other like minded
groups wanting to draw down funding to support business growth and innovation

Continued on separate sheet.

(If apphcable, please just state “A social audit report covenng these points is attached’)

(Please continue on separate continuation sheet if necessary )

Page 218




PART 2 —- CONSULTATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS - Please indicate who the company’s
stakeholders are, how the stakeholders have been consulted and what action, If any, has the
company taken in response to feedback from its consultations? _If there has been no
consultation, this should be made clear.

Our SMEs customers form a major stakeholder group for the company They have been
consulted with through the Board’s Advisory Group, established in 2008 We also ensure that
all our programmes Include feedback opportunities for companies involved in our work and
use this to guide our activity Our second major stakeholder group comprises our funders,
which for 2010-2011 included SEEDA, European funding agencies, local Councils, public
service providers and DCLG Consultation and discussion was ongoing with all these groups
at all levels of the company

Continued on separate sheet

(If applicable, please just state “A social audit report covenng these points 1s aftached’)

PART 3 — DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION - if you have provided full details in your accounts
you need not reproduce it here Please clearly identify the information within the accounts
and confirm that, “There were no other transactions or arrangements in connection with the
remuneration of directors, or compensation for director’s loss of office, which require to be
disclosed” (See example with full notes) If no remuneration was received you must state that
“no remuneration was received” below

The directors' aggregate emoluments were-

£
Aggregate emoluments 72,596
Value of group pension contributions to money purchase schemes 3,500

PART 4 - TRANSFERS OF ASSETS OTHER THAN FOR FULL CONSIDERATION - Please
insert full detalls of any transfers of assets other than for full consideration e g Donations to
outside bodies If this does not apply you must state that “no transfer of assets other than for
full consideration has been made” below.

No transfer of assets other than for full considerationhas been made

(Please continue on separate continuation sheet if necessary )

(N.B. Please enclose a cheque for £15 payable to Companies House)

Page 219




PART 5 — SIGNATORY

The original report

must be signed by a Signed
director or secretary

of the company

You do not have to give any contact
information in the box opposite but if
you do, it will help the Registrar of
Companies to contact you If there 1s
a query on the form The contact
information that you give will be
vistble to searchers of the public
record

p.1

W&'g Date | 1 S 12 ({

[P

Office held (tick as appropriate) [X)Director [ |Secretary

DRSS O s

Cls4 SO0 4§ 1

AopDO ALlS Qbst(wc'c. Co AL

Telephone ~eec (O K9S

DX Number DX Exchange

When you have completed and signed the form, please send it to the Registrar of

Companies at:

For companies registered in England and Wales. Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

For companies registered in Scotland: Companies House, 4™ Floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139
Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, EH3 9FF DX 235 Edinburgh or LP — 4 Edinburgh 2

For comparnies registered in Northern Ireland: Companies House, 2nd Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38

Linenhall Street, Belfast, BT2 8BG

Page 220




CIC 34

CONTINUATION SHEET

Please Company Name in | Business Support Kent Community Interest
complete in full | Company
!ypescnpt, or 03000723
in bold black Company Number
capitals
Year Ending 31 March 2011

PLEASE CLEARLY INDICATE THE PART YOU ARE CONTINUING HERE
Page 1

CIC Annual Report 2010-2011

Part | General description of the company activities and impacts

At BSK we believe in helping businesses and individuals to make a real difference to their
performance and profitabihity To this end, for the last four years we have focused on running
funded programmes in four key areas, sustainability, innovation and growth, competitiveness,
and knowledge transfer We have adapted our own business model whilst retaining the spirit,
atmosphere, and enthusiasm of our outstanding people as we respond to change, and
encourage change in our business community. We provide a range of business development,
primarily subsidised, through European programmes such as regional ERDF, Interreg, CIP
and Lifelong Learning, local Authorities, primanly Medway and Kent County Councils and the
UK government, to commercially developed B2B activity such as our Kent2020 Vision Live
event Additionally we also provide bid writing and consultancy support for other like minded
groups wanting to draw down funding to support business growth and innovation

Highlights for the year ending March 31st included

. High Growth Coaching advice was provided by our Innovation and Growth Team to 84
companies: supporting them with planning, marketing, IP and access to finance. Over £7 4m
of iInvestment was raised to help Kent companies and 156 new jobs created

. BSK-CiC completed the South East Business Support Programme for the London 2012
Olympic and Paralympic Games in March 2011 This programme has supported over 23,000
companies to register on Competefour, with 10,261 being helped to improve their
performance and over 250 contracts won Overall South East companies have won £76.2m
worth of contracts via the Competefour portal (Full report http //www bsk-cic co.uk/high-
growth-observatory)

Page 221




CIC 34

CONTINUATION SHEET

Please Company Name in | Business Support Kent Community Interest
complete in full | Company
typescript, or 03000723
in bold black Company Number
capitals.
Year Ending 31 March 2011

PLEASE CLEARLY INDICATE THE PART YOU ARE CONTINUING HERE
Page 2

Part | General description of the company activities and impact

. Supported 6,889 customers across SE with new marketing opportunities from climate
change and specialist support to reduce thewr carbon footprint by cutting theur energy costs
. We continue to operate the Enterprise Europe South East — networking local

companies into over 600 European and International partners in 44 countries The
programme also ran and extremely positive matchmaking event for companies at Eco-build in
March 2011 and I1s supporting export activity through our 2 Seas Trade programme

. BSK-CiC jas many years of experenice in helping people start up and develop new
businesses During 2010-11 we ran Medway Councils start up programme and assisted 131
people to begin their own companies Excitingly, through our support work, we are also
seeing 85% of companies who begin trading still operating after therr first year, well above the
national average

. Supported the development of 42 new courses and through the Enviroskills
programme provided low carbon training to 1900 learners (For further details and a review of
skills gaps please go to

http //www bsk-cic co uk/low-carbon-observatory

We continue to support the Low Carbon construction sector with the opening of the Build 4
Demo Centre in Dover in March 2011 and to provide an information and development
programme for SMEs wanting to expand and diversify into the sustainable construction
market, including renewable energy

. Leading partner in the Kent University Student work programme offering £5000 to
support the development of an ‘Employability Points Programme’ and supporting an internship
during the summer of 2011

. BSK-CiC also run a major B2B event, Kent2020 Vision Live, which draws together over
4000 local businesses with each other, local authorities and training providers. This year
there was a strong emphasis on apprentices, with 80 companies signing up apprentices on
the day, 480 expressing further interest and 1 business actually employing one of the
Apprentice helpers at the show!

Page 222




CIC 34

CONTINUATION SHEET

Please Company Name in | Business Support Kent Community Interest
complete in full | Company
typescript, or 03000723
in bold black Company Number
capitals,
Year Ending 31 March 2011

PLEASE CLEARLY INDICATE THE PART YOU ARE CONTINUING HERE
Page 3
Part Ii Consultation with Stakeholders-

Our SMEs customers form a major stakeholder group for the company They have been
consulted with through the Board’s Advisory Group, established in 2008 We also ensure that
all our programmes include feedback opportunities for companies involved In our work and
use this to guide our activity Our second major stakeholder group comprises our funders,
which for 2010-2011 included SEEDA, European funding agencies, local Councils, public
service providers and DCLG Consultation and discussion was ongoing with all these groups
at all levels of the company

Our third stakeholder group Is our regional partners local authorities), HE and FE colleges,
Universities, Chambers of Commerce, government agencies (BIS, DECC & DEFRA),
environmental organisations, European programme partners such as CD2E in France, Voka
in Belgium and Enviu and Delft University in the Netherlands. Each were consulted with as
part of our ongoing retationship with them to understand their needs and requirements

The feedback from each of these three stakeholder groups has allowed us to:

. Seek funding for specialist support specifically to address the needs of our SME
customers
. Increase our ability to translate complex government policy on enterprise,

sustainability, competiveness and innovation into language that 1s understood by our SME
community and resulits in their taking action to improve their business

v Provide feedback to national pohcy makers on SME needs and become recognised as
experts in the areas of sustainability, enterprise and competitiveness

. Ensure the public sector continue to provide strateqic overview into BSK services that
meet therr own plans and objectives for sustainable economic growth

. Combine our recognised European bid expertise with understanding of policy need and
market failure to create powerful programme offers

Page 223




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 224



Registered number: 05242899

KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Barnes Roffe LLP, Chartered Accountants
16 - 17 Copperfields, Spital Street, Dartford, DA1 2DE
JH : 24 Auqust 2012

Page 225



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

COMPANY NUMBER

REGISTERED OFFICE

AUDITORS

L Coulson Esq

Ms D J Haigh (resigned 25 February 2012)

G Cooke (appointed 1 June 2011 & resigned 7 March 2012)
D N Jackson (appointed 7 March 2012)

L Coulson Esq

05242899

KCC Commercial Services Building
Gibson Drive

West Malling

Kent

ME19 4QG

Barnes Roffe LLP

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
16-17 Copperfields

Spital Street

Dartford

Kent

DA1 2DE

Page 226



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

CONTENTS

Directors' report

Independent auditors' report

Consolidated profit and loss account

Consolidated balance sheet

Company balance sheet

Consolidated cash flow statement

Notes to the financial statements

Page 227

10 - 21



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group and of the profit or loss of the group for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and the group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the group continued to be that of a temporary employment agency and employment
business. The group is also a provider of bus services, including school transport, facility management
services, and supplier of services to care homes.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Turnover for the group has increased during the year (up by 12%). The gross profit margin is 8% (down from
9.2% for the year ended 31 March 2011). Looking forward the gross profit margins are expected to improve.

In addition to this, the group's employment agency business, Kent Top Temps Limited, was last awarded
audited status from the Recruitment and Employment Confederation (REC) in November 2010, and will be
renewed in the forthcoming year. The award confirms that the company is continually fully compliant with
industry regulations and best practice. This is awarded to only an elite number of recruitment companies
nationwide, and demonstrates that the company is conducting their business lawfully and ethically. Kent Top
Temps are also a quality mark holder, which has been issued by REC and the Department of Education. This is
awarded in recognition of good practice in the recruitment, placement and development of supply teachers in
the education sector in England.

From October 2011, the Agency Workers Regulations Directive (AWR) started with a significant impact on
systems development, education of clients and agency workers, and additional administration required to
implement this directive. Kent Top Temps also successfully brought its weekly and monthly payroll in-house
during the year.

Page 228
Page 1



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONT'D)

Kent Top Temps Limited acheived bronze level status over and above the standard Investors In People (lIP)
award in July 2010.

The significant and ongoing increases in fuel prices and duty continue to have an impact on margins.
With regard to the facility management business, the directors note that the business traded at a satisfactory
level during the 2011/12 financial year. Trade levels continue to be satisfactory and a similar performance is

expected during the forthcoming financial year.

This is the second year of trading for the care homes services business and results are in line with the business
plan.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit for the year, after taxation, amounted to £689,745 (2011 - £503,021).
Dividends paid during the year amounted to £150,000 (2011: £125,000).
DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the year were:

L Coulson Esq

Ms D J Haigh (resigned 25 February 2012)

G Cooke (appointed 1 June 2011 & resigned 7 March 2012)
D N Jackson (appointed 7 March 2012)

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The market remains competitive and uncertain, but the directors remain confident that they will maintain their
current level of performance in the medium to long term.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key business risks and uncertainties affecting the group are considered to relate to the current economic
uncertainty and downturn (especially in the public sector), competition from national and independent
employment agencies, bus companies and facility management businesses, and legislative, world market and
taxation changes especially relating to fuel prices, which continue to be problematic and challenging.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The majority of employment vacancies were satisfied from Kent Top Temps Limited own resources, with the
balance being outsourced to recruitment agencies mainly based in Kent from the preferred suppliers list.

Given the economic conditions especially regarding fuel, there has been a review of marginal contracts and
action taken to reduce the ongoing risk, also taking into account a future 20% reduction due to BSOG
announced by the government this year.

The focus of the organisation is on its profitability and there are no other key performance indicators that would
benefit any reader of the accounts.

Page 229
Page 2



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The group's policy is to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils and at meetings,
matters likely to affect employees' interests.

Information on matters of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports, which seek
to achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the
groups performance.

DISABLED EMPLOYEES

All necessary assistance with initial training courses is given to employees with disabilities. A career plan is
developed to ensure suitable opportunities are available for each disabled person. Arrangements are made,
wherever possible, for retraining employees who become disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as
appropriate to their aptitudes and abilities.

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this directors' report is approved has confirmed that:

) so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company and the
group's auditors are unaware, and

. that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of
any information needed by the company and the group's auditors in connection with preparing their
report and to establish that the company and the group's auditors are aware of that information.

This report was approved by the board on and signed on its behalf.

L Coulson Esq
Secretary

Page 230
Page 3



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Kent County Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012,
set out on pages 6 to 21. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
group's and the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of
the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the directors'
report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2012
and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

° have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Page 231
Page 4



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Mario Cientanni (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Barnes Roffe LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

16-17 Copperfields

Spital Street

Dartford

Kent

DA1 2DE

Date:

Page 232
Page 5



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £
TURNOVER 1,2 37,741,129 33,839,414
Cost of sales (34,729,721) (30,724,586)
GROSS PROFIT 3,011,408 3,114,828
Administrative expenses (2,091,051) (2,398,178)
OPERATING PROFIT 3 920,357 716,650
Interest receivable and similar income 4,820 7,350
Interest payable and similar charges 6 (37,848) (46,113)
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 887,329 677,887
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 (197,584) (174,866)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 16 689,745 503,021

All amounts relate to continuing operations.

There were no recognised gains and losses for 2012 or 2011 other than those included in the profit and loss
Account.

The notes on pages 10 to 21 form part of these financial statements.

Page 233

Page 6



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 05242899

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within

one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: amounts falling due after

more than one year

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called up share capital
Profit and loss account

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

2012
Note £ £
8 2,995
9 228,777
10 2
231,774
11 30,849
12 7,354,344
983,643
8,368,836
13 (6,590,303)
1,778,533
2,010,307
14 -
2,010,307
15 2
16 2,010,305

17 2,010,307

2011

£ £

5,235

122,189

2

127,426
33,365
5,964,104
387,140
6,384,609
(4,891,473)

1,493,136

1,620,562

(150,000)

1,470,562

2

1,470,560

1,470,562

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

L Coulson Esq
Director

The notes on pages 10 to 21 form part of these financial statements.

Page 234

Page 7



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 05242899

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £ £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Investments 10 8 8
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash at bank 2 2
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within
one year 13 (8) (8)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (6) (6)
NET ASSETS 2 2
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 15 2 2

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 17 2 2

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

L Coulson Esq
Director

The notes on pages 10 to 21 form part of these financial statements.

Page 235

Page 8



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011

Note £ £

Net cash flow from operating activities 19 1,465,787 838,283
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 20 (33,028) (38,763)
Taxation (174,866) (213,943)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 20 (146,245) (112,202)
Equity dividends paid (150,000) (125,000)
CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING 961,648 348,375
Financing 20 (340,000) (50,000)
INCREASE IN CASH IN THE YEAR 621,648 298,375

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS/DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011

£ £

Increase in cash in the year 621,648 298,375
Cash outflow from decrease in debt and lease financing 340,000 50,000
MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT IN THE YEAR 961,648 348,375
Net debt at 1 April 2011 (328,005) (676,380)
NET FUNDS/(DEBT) AT 31 MARCH 2012 633,643 (328,005)

The notes on pages 10 to 21 form part of these financial statements.

Page 236

Page 9



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable accounting standards.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of Kent County Trading Limited and its subsidiary
undertakings ('subsidiaries’). In accordance with S405(2) of the Companies Act 2006 a dormant
subsidiary, Invicta Services Limited, is excluded from consolidation on the basis it is not material for
the purpose of giving a true and fair view.

Turnover

Turnover comprises revenue recognised by the group in respect of goods and services supplied
during the year, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts.

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation
Goodwill is the difference between amounts paid on the acquisition of a business and the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities. It is amortised to the Profit and loss account over its
estimated economic life.
Amortisation is provided at the following rates:
Development expenditure - 33% straight line
Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates

calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
expected useful lives on the following bases:

Plant & Machinery - 20% straight line

Motor vehicles - 12.5% / 25% straight line

Office equipment - 20% straight line
Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment.
Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Stocks and work in progress

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs.

Page 237
Page 10



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.9 Deferred taxation

Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from all timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in the tax
computation. A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than
not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at current tax rates.

1.10 Government grants

Government grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to
the Profit and loss account over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. Other grants are
credited to the Profit and loss account as the related expenditure is incurred.

1.11 Pensions

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents the
amounts payable by the group to the fund in respect of the year.

The group also operates a defined benefit pension scheme. The group is part of the Kent

County Council Pension fund providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. The scheme is a
multi employer scheme. The employer's contributions are affected by any surplus or deficit in the
scheme. However Kent Top Temps Limited is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. As such the pension charge

represents amounts payable by the group to the fund in respect of the year.

TURNOVER

An analysis of turnover by class of business is as follows:

2012 2011

£ £

Temps income 30,235,271 25,415,847
Travel income 3,997,917 4,994,920
Facility management income 3,373,872 3,357,638
Carehome supplies 134,069 71,009
37,741,129 33,839,414

All turnover arose within the United Kingdom.

Page 238

Page 11



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the group
Operating lease rentals:
- plant and machinery
Amortisation of deferred research and development expenditure

During the year, no director received any emoluments (2011 - £NIL).

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Fees payable to the group's auditor for the audit of the annual
accounts
Fees payable to the group's auditor and its associates in respect
of:
Other services relating to taxation

STAFF COSTS

Staff costs were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the year was as follows:

Temporary Staff
Permanent Staff
Facilities Management
Waste Management
Kent Scheme

2012 2011

£ £
39,657 19,652
472,716 166,811
2,240 9,152
2012 2011

£ £
21,245 23,132
2,775 1,300
2012 2011

£ £
11,032,079 12,549,765
749,576 758,150
14,005 20,689
11,795,660 13,328,604
2012 2011
No. No.

518 497

168 173

49 34

12 7

2 2

749 713

Page 239

Page 12



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

INTEREST PAYABLE

2012 2011

£ £

On bank loans and overdrafts 37,848 46,113
TAXATION

2012 2011

£ £

UK corporation tax charge on profit for the year 197,584 174,866

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2011 - lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 26% (2011 - 28%). The differences are explained below:

2012 2011
£ £
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 887,329 677,887
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 26% (2011 - 28%) 230,706 189,808
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goodwiill
amortisation and impairment (4,304) 14,590
Depreciation for year in excess of capital allowances (18,323) (17,568)
Group loss relief - (35,534)
Change in tax rates - 23,570
Marginal relief (10,495) -
Current tax charge for the year (see note above) 197,584 174,866

Factors that may affect future tax charges

There were no factors that may affect future tax charges.

Page 240

Page 13



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Develop-
ment
Group £
Cost
At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 29,720
Amortisation
At 1 April 2011 24,485
Charge for the year 2,240
At 31 March 2012 26,725
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 2,995
At 31 March 2011 5,235
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Plant & Motor Office
machinery vehicles equipment Total
Group £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 April 2011 54,918 66,544 28,857 150,319
Additions 2,000 144,245 - 146,245
At 31 March 2012 56,918 210,789 28,857 296,564
Depreciation
At 1 April 2011 14,555 7,804 5,771 28,130
Charge for the year 13,325 20,561 5,771 39,657
At 31 March 2012 27,880 28,365 11,542 67,787
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 29,038 182,424 17,315 228,777
At 31 March 2011 40,363 58,740 23,086 122,189
Page 241

Page 14



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

10.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Group
Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012

Net book value
At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

Subsidiary undertakings
The following were subsidiary undertakings of the company:

Name

Kent County Supplies Limited
Invicta Services Limited

Kent Top Temps Limited
Kent County Facilities Limited

Name Business

Kent County Supplies Limited Carehome supplier
Invicta Services Limited Dormant

Kent Top Temps Limited Employment agency
Kent County Facilities Limited Facility management

Investments
in
subsidiary
companies
£

Class of shares Holding

Ordinary 100 %
Ordinary 100 %
Ordinary 100 %
Ordinary 100 %

Country of
Incorporation

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

The aggregate of the share capital and reserves as at 31 March 2012 and of the profit or loss for the year
ended on that date for the subsidiary undertakings not consolidated were as follows:

Aggregate of
share capital
Name and reserves Profit/(loss)

Invicta Services Limited

£ £
2 -

Invicta Services Limited has not been consolidated as it is immaterial
Companies Act 2006 S405(2).

to the group in accordance with

Page 242

Page 15



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

10. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)
Investments
in
subsidiary
companies
Company £
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 8
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 8
At 31 March 2011 8
11. STOCKS
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£ £ £ £
Stock and work in progress 30,849 33,365 - -
12. DEBTORS
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£ £ £ £
Trade debtors 5,943,511 4,634,701 - -
Other debtors and prepayments 1,410,833 1,329,403 - -
7,354,344 5,964,104 - -
Page 243

Page 16



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

13.

14.

15.

CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due within one year

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£ £ £ £
Bank loans and overdrafts 150,000 25,145 - -
Other loans 200,000 540,000 - -
Trade creditors 3,390,283 2,128,829 - -
Corporation tax 197,584 174,866 - -
Social security and other taxes 1,127,324 711,342 - -

Other creditors 1,525,112 1,311,291 8 8

6,590,303 4,891,473 8 8

A loan to the value of £350,000 (2011: £540,000) is repayable on demand and is secured by a fixed
charge on all book debts and other debts and by a floating charge on the assets of Kent Top Temps

Limited.

CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£ £ £ £
Other loans - 150,000 - -

A loan to the value of £150,000 is repayable on demand and is secured by a fixed charge on all book
debts and other debts and by a floating charge on the assets of Kent County Supplies Limited.

SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted, called up and fully paid
2 Ordinary shares of £1 each

Page 244

2012 2011
£ £
2 2

Page 17



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

16.

17.

RESERVES

Group

At 1 April 2011
Profit for the year
Dividends

At 31 March 2012

Company

Profit for the year
Dividends

At 31 March 2012

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Group

Opening shareholders' funds
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 18)

Closing shareholders' funds

Company

Opening shareholders' funds
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 18)

Closing shareholders' funds

Profit and

loss account

£

1,470,560

689,745

(150,000)

2,010,305

Profit and

loss account

£

150,000

(150,000)

2012 2011

£ £
1,470,562 1,092,541
689,745 503,021
(150,000) (125,000)
2,010,307 1,470,562
2012 2011

£ £

2 2
150,000 125,000
(150,000) (125,000)
2 2

The company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act

2006 not to present its own profit and loss account.

The profit for the year dealt with in the accounts of the company was £150,000 (20711 - £125,000).

Page 245

Page 18



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

18.

19.

20.

DIVIDENDS
2012 2011
£ £
Dividends paid on equity capital 150,000 125,000
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2012 2011
£ £
Operating profit 920,357 716,650
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 2,240 9,152
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 39,657 19,652
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 2,516 (14,285)
Increase in debtors (1,390,240) (1,677,311)
Increase in creditors 1,891,257 1,784,425
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,465,787 838,283
ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS FOR HEADINGS NETTED IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2012 2011
£ £
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 4,820 7,350
Interest paid (37,848) (46,113)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing
of finance (33,028) (38,763)
2012 2011
£ £
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of intangible fixed assets - (6,720)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (146,245) (105,482)
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure (146,245) (112,202)
2012 2011
£ £
Financing
New secured loans - 150,000
Repayment of other loans (340,000) (200,000)
Net cash outflow from financing (340,000) (50,000)

Page 246

Page 19



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

21,

22,

23.

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

Other
non-cash
1 April Cash flow changes 31 March
2011 2012
£ £ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 387,140 596,503 - 983,643
Bank overdraft (25,145) 25,145 - -
361,995 621,648 - 983,643
Debt:
Debts due within one year (540,000) 340,000 (150,000) (350,000)
Debts falling due after more than
one year (150,000) - 150,000 -
Net debt (328,005) 961,648 - 633,643

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme and participates in a defined benefit pension
scheme. The assets of both schemes are held separately from those of the group in independently
administered funds. The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the group to these

funds and amounted to £14,005 (2011: £20,689).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2012 the group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2012 2011
Group £ £
Expiry date:
Within 1 year 34,139 22,635
Between 2 and 5 years 188,481 227,566
After more than 5 years 125,322 98,690

Page 247

Page 20



KENT COUNTY TRADING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

24,

25.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The group has taken advantage of the exemption allowed by Financial Reporting Standard 8, 'Related
party disclosures', not to disclose any transactions with members of the group headed by Kent County
Trading Limited on the grounds that at least 90% of the voting rights in the company are controlled within

that group and the company is included in the consolidated financial statements.

The group has a loan from Kent County Council of £350,000 (2071: £690,000). The loan is repayable on
demand and carries interest at a rate of 5% above the Bank of England's base rate, and is disclosed

within creditors due within one year.

During the year, the group traded with Kent County Council, the ultimate controlling party. The following

transactions occurred during the financial period:

Kent County Council 2012

£
Sales 33,227,915
Trade Debtors 5,644,665
Purchases 3,301,325
Trade Creditors 2,032,150
Loan Interest paid @ 5.5% 37,848

ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The ultimate controlling party is Kent County Council.

2011
£

29,262,277
4,253,920
3,159,407
1,142,818

46,113

Page 248

Page 21



Registered number: 05858177

KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Barnes Roffe LLP, Chartered Accountants
16 - 17 Copperfields, Spital Street, Dartford, DA1 2DE
JH : 24 Auqust 2012

Page 249



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

COMPANY NUMBER

REGISTERED OFFICE

AUDITORS

L J Faulkner Esq
Ms D J Haigh (resigned 25 February 2012)
G Cooke Esq (appointed 1 June 2011 & resigned 7 March 2012)

C F Sowerby Esq

05858177

Commerical Services Building
Gibson Drive

West Malling

Kent

ME19 4QG

Barnes Roffe LLP

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
16-17 Copperfields

Spital Street

Dartford

Kent

DA1 2DE

Page 250



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

CONTENTS

Page
Director's report 1-2
Independent auditors' report 3-4
Profit and loss account 5
Balance sheet 6
Notes to the financial statements 7-10
Detailed profit and loss account and summaries 11-12

Page 251



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

The director presents his report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.
DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The director is responsible for preparing the directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
director has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the director must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the director is required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the company will continue in business.

The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable him to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is to provide supply services to various care homes in respect of medical
and hygiene consumables.

DIRECTORS
The directors who served during the year were:

L J Faulkner Esq
Ms D J Haigh (resigned 25 February 2012)
G Cooke Esq (appointed 1 June 2011 & resigned 7 March 2012)

BUSINESS REVIEW

This is the second year of trading and the directors note that the company traded at a satisfactory level for the
2011/12 financial year. The directors anticipate that performance levels for the forthcoming year will show a
small operating surplus.

Dividends paid during the year amount to £125,000 (20711: £Nil).

Page 252
Page 1



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The director at the time when this directors' report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors
are unaware, and

. that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of
any information needed by the company's auditors in connection with preparing their report and to
establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

In preparing this report, the director has taken advantage of the small companies exemptions provided by
section 415A of the Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board on and signed on its behalf.

C F Sowerby Esq
Secretary

Page 253
Page 2



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Kent County Supplies Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012,
set out on pages 5to 10. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTOR AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Director's responsibilities statement, the director is responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit
and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the director; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Director's report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

° have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice applicable to Smaller Entities; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Page 254
Page 3



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of director's remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. the director was not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies

regime and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Director's report.

Mario Cientanni (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Barnes Roffe LLP

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
16-17 Copperfields

Spital Street

Dartford

Kent

DA1 2DE

Date:

Page 255
Page 4



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £

TURNOVER 1 657,431 71,009
Cost of sales (145,963) (47,5631)
GROSS PROFIT 511,468 23,478
Administrative expenses (156,958) (1562,622)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 2 354,510 (129,144)
Interest payable and similar charges (8,250) (5,413)
PROFIT/(LOSS) ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE

TAXATION 346,260 (134,557)
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities 3 (88,422) -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 9 257,838 (134,557)

The notes on pages 7 to 10 form part of these financial statements.

Page 256

Page 5



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 05858177

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £ £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 4 - 23,086
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 5 241,972 24,189
Cash at bank 41,869 23,491
283,841 47,680

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within

one year 6 (285,560) (55,323)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (1,719) (7,643)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES (1,719) 15,443
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after

more than one year 7 - (150,000)
NET LIABILITIES (1,719) (134,557)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 8 2 2
Profit and loss account 9 (1,721) (134,559)

SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT (1,719) (134,557)

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to companies
subject to the small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

L J Faulkner Esq
Director

The notes on pages 7 to 10 form part of these financial statements.

Page 257

Page 6



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

Turnover

Turnover comprises revenue recognised by the company in respect of goods and services supplied
during the year, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
expected useful lives on the following bases:

Office equipment - 20% straight line

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Deferred taxation

Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from all timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in the tax
computation. A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than
not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at current tax rates.

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

The operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging:

2012 2011
£ £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the company 5,771 5771
Auditors' remuneration 2,777 3,250

During the year, no director received any emoluments (2077 - £NIL).

Page 258
Page 7



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

TAXATION

UK corporation tax charge on profit/loss for the year

There were no factors that may affect future tax charges.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost

At 1 April 2011
Disposals

At 31 March 2012

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011
Charge for the year
On disposals

At 31 March 2012

Net book value
At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

DEBTORS

Trade debtors

Other debtors and prepayments

Page 259

2012 2011
£ £
88,422 -
Office
equipment
£
28,857
(28,857)
5,771
5,771
(11,542)
23,086
2012 2011
£ £
121,339 14,574
120,633 9,615
241,972 24,189

Page 8



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due within one year

Other loans

Trade creditors

Corporation tax

Social security and other taxes
Other creditors and accruals

2012 2011
£ £
150,000 -
16,174 7,131
88,422 -
19,027 693
11,937 47,499
285,560 55,323

A loan to the value of £150,000 is repayable on demand and is secured by a fixed charge on all book
debts and other debts and by a floating charge on the assets of the company.

CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Other loans

SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted, called up and fully paid
2 Ordinary shares of £1 each

RESERVES

At 1 April 2011
Profit for the year
Dividends: Equity capital

At 31 March 2012

Page 260

2012 2011
£ £

- 150,000

2012 2011

Profit and
loss account
£

(134,559)
257,838
(125,000)

(1,721)

Page 9



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

10.

1.

12,

13.

DIVIDENDS
2012 2011
£ £
Dividends paid on equity capital 125,000 -

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2012 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

2012 2011
£ £

Expiry date:
Between 2 and 5 years 7,166 3,132

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company has taken advantage of the exemption allowed by Financial Reporting Standard 8, 'Related
party disclosures', not to disclose any transactions with members of the group headed by Kent County
Trading Limited on the grounds that at least 90% of the voting rights in the company are controlled within
that group and the company is included in the consolidated financial statements.

The company has a loan from Kent County Council of £150,000 (2011: £150,000). The loan is repayable
on demand and carries interest at a rate of 5% above the Bank of England's base rate, and is disclosed
within creditors due within one year. During the year, the company traded with Kent County Council, the
ultimate controlling party. The following transactions occurred during the financial period:

2012 2011
£ £
Sales 21,933 28,971
Purchases 181,213 129,047
Trade debtors 3,035 4,581
Trade creditors 9,190 2,114
Loan interest paid @ 5.5% 8,250 5,413

ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The ultimate controlling party is Kent County Council, which owns 100% of the issued share capital of the
parent company, Kent County Trading Limited.

Page 261

Page 10



KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Page £ £

TURNOVER 12 657,431 71,009
Cost of sales 12 (145,963) (47,531)
GROSS PROFIT 511,468 23,478
Gross profit % 77.8 % 33.1%
LESS: OVERHEADS

Administration expenses 12 (156,958) (152,622)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 354,510 (129,144)
Interest payable 12 (8,250) (5,413)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 346,260 (134,557)

Page 262
This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements. Page 11




KENT COUNTY SUPPLIES LIMITED

SCHEDULE TO THE DETAILED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

TURNOVER

Sales
Catalogue advertising space

COST OF SALES

Purchases
Carriage

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Staff salaries

Staff national insurance
Motor running costs
Printing and stationery
Telephone and fax
Computer costs
Advertising and promotion
Legal and professional
Auditors' remuneration
Accountancy

Bank charges

Bad debts

Service charge
Insurances

Depreciation

(Profit)/loss on sale of tangible assets

INTEREST PAYABLE
Bank loan interest payable

Page 263

2012 2011
£ £
657,431 50,329
- 20,680
657,431 71,009
2012 2011
£ £
136,085 41,628
9,878 5,903
145,963 47,531
2012 2011
£ £
77,870 61,697
4,724 4,450
8,253 10,060
3,388 1,867
504 1,471
2,402 3,339
19,767 25,104
508 1,051
2,777 3,250
775 1,073
783 931
6,829 1,408
29,820 24,000
(4,528) 7,150
5,771 5,771
(2,685) -
156,958 152,622
2012 2011
£ £
8,250 5,413

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 12



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 264



Registered number: 05858178

KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Barnes Roffe LLP, Chartered Accountants
16-17 Copperfields, Spital Street, Dartford, Kent, DA1 2DE

RJp%é%gt 2012




KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

COMPANY NUMBER

REGISTERED OFFICE

AUDITORS

D N Jackson Esq (appointed 7 March 2012)

Ms D Haigh (resigned 25 February 2012)

L Coulson Esq

G Cooke Esq (appointed 8 June 2011 & resigned 7 March 2012)

L Coulson Esq

05858178

KCC Commercial Services Building
Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent

ME19 4QG

Barnes Roffe LLP

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
16-17 Copperfields

Spital Street

Dartford

Kent

DA1 2DE

Page 266



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

CONTENTS

Directors' report

Independent auditors' report

Profit and loss account

Balance sheet

Notes to the financial statements

The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements:
Detailed profit and loss account and summaries

Graphical representations

Page 267

12-14

15-17



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND REVIEW OF BUSINESS

The principal activity of the company is to provide facility management services.

RESULTS

The profit for the year, after taxation, amounted to £213,270 (2011 - £180,518).
DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the year were:

D N Jackson Esq (appointed 7 March 2012)

Ms D Haigh (resigned 25 February 2012)

L Coulson Esq

G Cooke Esq (appointed 8 June 2011 & resigned 7 March 2012)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The directors note that the company traded at a satisfactory level during the 2011/12 financial year.

Trade levels continue to be satisfactory and a similar performance is expected during the forthcoming financial
year.

Page 268
Page 1



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The management of the business and execution of the company's strategy are subject to the current economic
uncertainty.

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this directors' report is approved has confirmed that;

. so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors
are unaware, and

. that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of
any information needed by the company's auditors in connection with preparing their report and to
establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

This report was approved by the board on and signed on its behalf.

L Coulson Esq
Secretary

Page 269
Page 2



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Kent County Facilities Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012,
set out on pages 5to 11. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the directors' report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

° have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Page 270
Page 3



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Mario Cientanni (senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Barnes Roffe LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

16-17 Copperfields

Spital Street

Dartford

Kent

DA1 2DE

Date:

Page 271
Page 4



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £
TURNOVER 1,2 3,373,872 3,358,056
Cost of sales (2,752,970) (2,891,292)
GROSS PROFIT 3 620,902 466,764
Administrative expenses (369,265) (267,600)
OPERATING PROFIT 3 251,637 199,164
Interest receivable and similar income 1,385 2,354
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 253,022 201,518
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 5 (39,752) (21,000)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 213,270 180,518

All amounts relate to continuing operations.

There were no recognised gains and losses for 2012 or 2011 other than those included in the profit and loss

account.

The notes on pages 7 to 11 form part of these financial statements.

Page 272

Page 5



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 05858178

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

2012
Note £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 6
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 7 30,849
Debtors 8 335,962
Cash at bank 711,105
1,077,916

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within

one year 9 (638,684)
NET CURRENT ASSETS
NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 10
Profit and loss account 11
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 12

2011
£ £

118,655

33,365

449,892

363,647

846,904

(502,287)
439,232
557,887
2
557,885
557,887

344,617

344,617

2
344,615

344,617

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

D N Jackson Esq
Director

The notes on pages 7 to 11 form part of these financial statements.

Page 273

Page 6



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable accounting standards.

CASH FLOW

The company, being a subsidiary undertaking where 90% or more of the voting rights are controlled
within the group whose consolidated financial statements are publicly available, is exempt from the
requirement to draw up a cash flow statement in accordance with FRS 1.

TURNOVER

Turnover comprises revenue recognised by the company in respect of goods and services supplied
during the year, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
expected useful lives on the following bases:

Motor Vehicles - Straight line over 3 - 7 years
STOCK AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from all timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in the tax
computation. A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than not
that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at current tax rates.

PENSIONS

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents
the amounts payable by the company to the fund in respect of the year.

TURNOVER

The whole of the turnover is attributable to facility management services.

All turnover arose within the United Kingdom.

Page 274
Page 7



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging:

2012 2011
£ £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned by the company 11,590 -
Auditors' remuneration 4,918 6,332
Operating lease rentals 24,619 20,839
During the year, no director received any emoluments (2011 - £NIL).

STAFF COSTS
Staff costs were as follows:
2012 2011
£ £
Wages and salaries 713,948 570,375
Other pension costs 6,161 6,140
720,109 576,515

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the year was as follows:

2012 2011
No. No.
Facility management 57 34
Waste Management 11 7
Kent Scheme 2 2
70 43
TAXATION
2012 2011
£ £
UK corporation tax charge on profit for the year 39,752 21,000

Page 275

Page 8



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

TAXATION (continued)

FACTORS AFFECTING TAX CHARGE FOR THE YEAR

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2011 - lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 26% (2011 - 21%). The differences are explained below:

2012 2011
£ £

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 253,022 201,518
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of

corporation tax in the UK of 26% (2011 - 21%) 65,786 42,319
EFFECTS OF:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goodwiill

amortisation and impairment 120 360
Capital allowances for year in excess of depreciation (21,232) -
Group loss relief - (21,679)
Marginal relief (4,922) -
CURRENT TAX CHARGE FOR THE YEAR (see note above) 39,752 21,000

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE TAX CHARGES
The maximum potential liability for deferred tax in respect of the reversal of capital allowances is £21,231.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Motor Vehicles

£
COST
At 1 April 2011 -
Additions 130,245
At 31 March 2012 130,245
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2011 -
Charge for the year 11,590
At 31 March 2012 11,590
NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2012 118,655

At 31 March 2011 -

Page 276

Page 9



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

STOCKS
2012 2011
£ £
Stock and work-in-progress 30,849 33,365
DEBTORS
2012 2011
£ £
Trade debtors 293,311 433,992
Other debtors, accrued income and prepayments 42,651 15,900
335,962 449,892
CREDITORS:
AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2012 2011
£ £
Trade creditors 159,876 124,342
Corporation tax 39,752 21,000
Social security and other taxes 95,951 74,074
Other creditors, accruals and deferred income 343,105 282,871
638,684 502,287
SHARE CAPITAL
2012 2011
£ £
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
2 Ordinary shares of £1 each 2 2
RESERVES
Profit and
loss account
£
At 1 April 2011 344,615
Profit for the year 213,270
At 31 March 2012 557,885

Page 277

Page 10



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

12,

13.

14.

15.

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

2012 2011
£ £
Opening shareholders' funds 344,617 164,099
Profit for the year 213,270 180,518
Closing shareholders' funds 557,887 344,617

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2012 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

2012 2011
£ £
EXPIRY DATE:
Within 1 year 8,693 2,570
Between 2 and 5 years 17,062 21,997

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the company made sales to Kent County Council, the ultimate controlling party, of
£1,468,732 (2011: £2,025,696). At the year end, the balance owed by Kent County Council included in
trade debtors amounted to £236,438 (2011: £193,815).

The company also made purchases of goods and management services from Kent County Council
amounting to £119,823 (2011: £412,056). At the year end, the balance owed to Kent County Council,
included in trade creditors, amounted to £89,658 (2071 £9,835).

The company has chosen to take advantage of exemptions under FRS 8 not to provide related party
disclosures in its own financial statements when those statements are presented within consolidated
financial statements of its group.

ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The ultimate controlling party is Kent County Council, which owns 100% of the issued share capital of the
parent company, Kent County Trading Limited.

Page 278

Page 11



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Page £ £

Turnover 13 3,373,872 3,358,056
Cost of sales 13 (2,752,970) (2,891,292)
Gross profit 620,902 466,764
Gross profit % 18.4 % 13.9 %
Less: Overheads

Administrative expenses 13 (369,265) (267,600)
Operating profit 251,637 199,164
Interest receivable 14 1,385 2,354
Profit for the year 253,022 201,518

Page 279
This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements Page 12




KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

SCHEDULE TO THE DETAILED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
£ £
Turnover
Sales 3,373,872 3,358,056
2012 2011
£ £
Cost of sales
Opening stocks and work in progress 33,365 19,080
Closing stocks and work in progress (30,848) (33,365)
Purchases 709,249 508,950
Wages and salaries 533,167 376,617
Pension contributions 870 2,587
Subcontract labour 1,407,386 1,979,877
Hire of plant and equipment 8,304 11,622
Repairs and maintenance 17,630 -
Motor expenses 73,847 25,924
2,752,970 2,891,292
2012 2011
£ £
Administrative expenses
Staff salaries 180,781 193,758
Staff private health insurance 2,167 1,490
Staff pensions 5,291 3,553
Staff training 9,806 3,112
Motor running costs 10,719 8,323
Printing and stationery 1,934 1,196
Telephone and fax 5,114 1,025
Advertising and promotion 3,828 225
Legal and professional 14,576 1,328
Auditors' remuneration 4,918 6,332
Bank charges and interest 2,440 2,955
Bad debts 19,056 (2,268)
Sundry expenses 6,173 881
Light and heat 1,210 -
Service charges 74,074 37,519
Insurances 8,780 8,171
Cleaning and maintenance 6,808 -
Depreciation of motor vehicles 11,590 -
369,265 267,600

Page 280
This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements Page 13




KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

SCHEDULE TO THE DETAILED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
£ £
Interest receivable
Bank interest receivable 1,385 2,354

Page 281
This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements Page 14




KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Annual Trading Comparison

£1,000,000s

2009 2010 2011 2012

BTurnover BGross Profit Profit before tax and Directors' remuneration

4 Year Gross Profit Margins

2009 2010 2011 2012

THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OFF;I'gseSTzAéIETORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page 15



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Apportionment of Turnover - 2012

Profit before tax and
Directors'
remuneration
Administration 7%
Expenses
1%

Cost of Sales
82%

Apportionment of Turnover - 2011

Profit before tax and
Directors'
remuneration
6%

Administration
Expenses
8%

Cost of Sales
86%

THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OFgIgEgTﬁégTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 16



KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 Turnover Breakdown

M Facilities Management
B Waste management
[ Marriages (venue hire)

O Transport (repairs centre)

2012 Turnover Breakdown

M Facilities Management
B Waste management
[ Marriages (venue hire)

O Transport (repairs centre)

THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OF TH ATU Y FINANCIAL STATEMENTS P 17
PaL"282 a0e




Registered number: 05242900

KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

DIRECTORS' REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Barnes Roffe LLP, Chartered Accountants
16 - 17 Copperfields, Spital Street, Dartford, DA1 2DE
JH : 24 Auqust 2012

Page 285



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

COMPANY INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

COMPANY NUMBER

REGISTERED OFFICE

AUDITORS

L J Faulkner Esq

Ms D J Haigh (resigned 25 February 2012)

G Cooke Esq (appointed 1 June 2011 & resigned 7 March 2012)
D N Jackson (appointed 7 March 2012)

L J Faulkner Esq

05242900

KCC Commercial Services Building
Gibson Drive

West Malling

Kent

ME19 4QG

Barnes Roffe LLP

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
16-17 Copperfields

Spital Street

Dartford

Kent

DA1 2DE

Page 286



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

CONTENTS

Page
Directors' report 1-3
Independent auditors' report 4-5
Profit and loss account 6
Balance sheet 7
Cash flow statement 8
Notes to the financial statements 9-17
The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements:
Detailed profit and loss account and summaries 18 - 20
Graphical representations 21-24

Page 287



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
o make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company continued to be that of a temporary employment agency, employment
business, and provider of bus services, including school transport.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Turnover has increased during the year (up by 13%). The gross profit margin is 6.9% (down from 8.6% for the
year ended 31 March 2011). Looking forward the gross profit margin is expected to improve.

Kent Top Temps Limited was last awarded audited status from the Recruitment and Employment Confederation
(REC) in November 2010, and will be renewed in the forthcoming year. The award confirms that the company is
continually fully compliant with industry regulations and best practice. This is awarded to only an elite number
of recruitment companies nationwide, and demonstrates that the company is conducting their business lawfully
and ethically. Kent Top Temps are also a quality mark holder, which has been issued by REC and the
Department of Education. This is awarded in recognition of good practice in the recruitment, placement and
development of supply teachers in the education sector in England.

From October 2011, the Agency Workers Regulations Directive (AWR) started with a significant impact on
systems development, education of clients and agency workers, and additional administration required to
implement this directive. Kent Top Temps also successfully brought its weekly and monthly payroll in-house
during the year.

Kent Top Temps Limited achieved bronze level status over and above the standard Investors In People (lIP)
award in July 2010.

The significant and ongoing increases in fuel prices and duty continue to have an impact on margins.

Page 288
Page 1



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit for the year, after taxation, amounted to £221,322 (2011 - £457,060).
Dividends paid during the year amounted to £25,000 (2071: £125,000).
DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the year were:

L J Faulkner Esq

Ms D J Haigh (resigned 25 February 2012)

G Cooke Esq (appointed 1 June 2011 & resigned 7 March 2012)
D N Jackson (appointed 7 March 2012)

The directors have no interest in the issued share capital of the company.
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The market remains competitive and uncertain, but the directors remain confident that they will maintain their
current level of performance in the medium to long term.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key business risks and uncertainties affecting the company are considered to relate to the current
economic uncertainty and downturn (especially in the public sector), competition from national and independent
employment agencies and bus companies, and legislative, world market and taxation changes especially
relating to fuel prices, which continue to be problematic and challenging.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The majority of vacancies were satisfied from the Kent Top Temps Limited own resources, with the balance
being outsourced to recruitment agencies mainly based in Kent from the preferred suppliers list.

Given the economic conditions especially regarding fuel, there has been a review of marginal contracts and
action taken to reduce the ongoing risk, also taking into account a future 20% reduction due in BSOG
announced by the government this year.

The focus of the organisation is on its profitability and there are no other key performance indicators that would
benefit any reader of the accounts.

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The company’s policy is to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils and at meetings,
matters likely to affect employees’ interests.

Information on matters of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports, which seek
to achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the
group’s performance.

Page 289
Page 2



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

DISABLED EMPLOYEES

All necessary assistance with initial training courses is given to employees with disabilities. A career plan is
developed to ensure suitable opportunities are available for each disabled person. Arrangements are made,
wherever possible, for retraining employees who become disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as
appropriate to their aptitudes and abilities.

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this directors' report is approved has confirmed that:

e so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are
unaware, and

o that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any
information needed by the company's auditors in connection with preparing their report and to establish that
the company's auditors are aware of that information.

This report was approved by the board on and signed on its behalf.

L J Faulkner Esq
Secretary

Page 290
Page 3



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

We have audited the financial statements of Kent Top Temps Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2012, set out on
pages 6 to 17. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the directors' report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the information given in the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Page 291
Page 4



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Mario Cientanni (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Barnes Roffe LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

16-17 Copperfields

Spital Street

Dartford

Kent

DA1 2DE

Date:

Page 292
Page 5



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £
TURNOVER 1,2 34,233,188 30,415,454
Cost of sales (31,855,187) (27,790,868)
GROSS PROFIT 2,378,001 2,624,586
Administrative expenses (2,061,106) (1,977,956)
OPERATING PROFIT 3 316,895 646,630
Interest receivable and similar income 3,435 4,996
Interest payable and similar charges 5 (29,598) (40,700)
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 290,732 610,926
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6 (69,410) (153,866)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 12 221,322 457,060

All amounts relate to continuing operations.

There were no recognised gains and losses for 2012 or 2011 other than those included in the profit and loss

account.

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form part of these financial statements.

Page 293

Page 6



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD
REGISTERED NUMBER: 05242900

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

2012
Note £ £

7 2,995
8 112,807
115,802

9 6,895,567

230,667

7,126,234

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within

one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called up share capital
Profit and loss account

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

10  (5,785,208)

1,341,026
1,456,828
11 2
12 1,456,826

13 1,456,828

2011
£ £

5,235

99,103

104,338
5,490,023
5,490,023
(4,333,855)

1,156,168

1,260,506

2

1,260,504

1,260,506

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

L J Faulkner Esq
Director

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form part of these financial statements.

Page 294

Page 7



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £
Net cash flow from operating activities 15 816,841 698,498
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 16 (26,163) (35,704)
Taxation (153,866) (164,549)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 16 (16,000) (83,345)
Equity dividends paid (25,000) (125,000)
CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING 595,812 289,900
Financing 16 (340,000) (200,000)
INCREASE IN CASH IN THE YEAR 255,812 89,900

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS/DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
£ £
Increase in cash in the year 255,812 89,900
Cash outflow from decrease in debt and lease financing 340,000 200,000
MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT IN THE YEAR 595,812 289,900
Net debt at 1 April 2011 (565,145) (855,045)
NET FUNDS/(DEBT) AT 31 MARCH 2012 30,667 (565,145)

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form part of these financial statements.

Page 295

Page 8



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.2

13

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable accounting standards.

Turnover

Turnover comprises revenue recognised by the company in respect of goods and services supplied
during the year, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts.

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation
Intangible assets are development costs capitalised in accordance with SSAP 13. They represent
expenditure on viable projects in the course of development, which are deferred until the project has
attained commercial basis. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over 3 years.
Amortisation is provided at the following rates:

Development - 33% straight line
Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates

calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
expected useful lives on the following bases:

Plant & Machinery - 3 - 5 years straight line
Motor Vehicles - 4 - 8 years straight line
Office Equipment - 5 years straight line

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Deferred taxation

Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from all timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in the tax
computation. A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than not
that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at current tax rates.

Government grants
Government grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to

the profit and loss account over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. Other grants are
credited to the profit and loss account as the related expenditure is incurred.

Page 296
Page 9



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.8 Pensions

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents
the amounts payable by the company to the fund in respect of the year.

The company also participates in a defined benefit pension scheme, being part of the Kent County
Council Pension fund providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. The scheme is a multi

employer scheme. The employer's contributions are affected by any surplus or deficit in the scheme.
However Kent Top Temps Limited is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and
liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. As such the pension charge

represents amounts payable by the company to the fund in respect of the year.

2. TURNOVER
An analysis of turnover by class of business is as follows:
2012 2011
£ £
Temps income 30,235,271 25,420,534
Travel income 3,997,917 4,994,920
34,233,188 30,415,454
All turnover arose within the United Kingdom.
3. OPERATING PROFIT
The operating profit is stated after charging:
2012 2011
£ £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the company 22,296 13,881
Auditors' remuneration 13,550 13,5650
Operating lease rentals:
- motor vehicles 472,716 166,811
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,240 9,152

During the year, no director received any emoluments (2011 - £NIL).

Page 297

Page 10



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

STAFF COSTS

Staff costs were as follows:

2012 2011
£ £
Wages and salaries 10,240,261 9,933,366
Social security costs 744,852 758,150
Other pension costs 7,844 14,549
10,992,957 10,706,065

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the year was as follows:

2012 2011
No. No.
Temporary Staff 518 497
Permanent Staff 166 172
684 669
INTEREST PAYABLE
2012 2011
£ £
On bank loans and overdrafts 29,598 40,700
TAXATION
2012 2011
£ £
UK corporation tax charge on profit for the year 69,410 153,866

Page 298

Page 11



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

TAXATION (continued)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2011 - lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the

UK of 26% (2011 - 28%). The differences are explained below:

2012 2011
£ £

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 290,732 610,926
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of

corporation tax in the UK of 26% (2011 - 28%) 75,590 171,059
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goodwiill

amortisation and impairment (4,284) 14,231
Capital allowances for year in excess of depreciation 1,409 (17,569)
Group loss relief - (13,855)
Marginal relief (3,305) -
Current tax charge for the year (see note above) 69,410 153,866

Factors that may affect future tax charges

There were no factors that may affect future tax charges.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost
At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012

Amortisation

At 1 April 2011
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2012

Net book value
At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

Page 299

Development

£
29,720
24,485

2,240

26,725

2,995

5,235

Page 12



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Plant & Office
Machinery Motor Vehicles Equipment Total
£ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 April 2011 54,918 66,544 - 121,462
Additions 2,000 14,000 20,000 36,000
At 31 March 2012 56,918 80,544 20,000 157,462
Depreciation
At 1 April 2011 14,555 7,804 - 22,359
Charge for the year 13,325 8,971 - 22,296
At 31 March 2012 27,880 16,775 - 44,655
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 29,038 63,769 20,000 112,807
At 31 March 2011 40,363 58,740 - 99,103
DEBTORS
2012 2011
£ £

Trade debtors 5,628,018 4,186,135
Other debtors, prepayments and accrued income 1,267,549 1,303,888

6,895,567 5,490,023

Page 300

Page 13



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

10.

11.

12

13.

CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due within one year

2012 2011
£ £
Loans and bank overdrafts - 25,145
Other loans 200,000 540,000
Trade creditors 3,333,390 1,997,356
Corporation tax 69,410 153,866
Social security and other taxes 1,012,346 636,575
Other creditors and accruals 1,170,062 980,913
5,785,208 4,333,855

A loan to the value of £200,000 (2071: £540,000) is repayable on demand and is secured by a fixed
charge on all book debts and other debts and by a floating charge on the assets of the company.

SHARE CAPITAL

2012 2011
£ £
Allotted, called up and fully paid
2 Ordinary shares of £1 each 2 2
RESERVES
Profit and
loss account
£
At 1 April 2011 1,260,504
Profit for the year 221,322
Dividends (25,000)
At 31 March 2012 1,456,826
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
2012 2011
£ £
Opening shareholders' funds 1,260,506 928,446
Profit for the year 221,322 457,060
Dividends (Note 14) (25,000) (125,000)
Closing shareholders' funds 1,456,828 1,260,506

Page 301

Page 14



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

14,

15.

16.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends paid on equity capital

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating profit

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Increase in debtors

Increase in creditors

Net cash inflow from operating activities

ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS FOR HEADINGS NETTED IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received
Interest paid

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing
of finance

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of intangible fixed assets
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure

Financing
Repayment of other loans

2012 2011
£ £
25,000 125,000
2012 2011
£ £
316,895 646,630
2,240 9,152
22,296 13,881
(1,425,544) (1,570,029)
1,900,954 1,598,864
816,841 698,498
2012 2011
£ £
3,435 4,996
(29,598) (40,700)
(26,163) (35,704)
2012 2011
£ £
- (6,720)
(16,000) (76,625)
(16,000) (83,345)
2012 2011
£ £
(340,000) (200,000)

Page 302

Page 15



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

17.

18.

19.

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdraft

Debt:
Debts due within one year

Net debt

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The company operates a defined

independently administered funds.

Other
non-cash
1 April Cash flow changes 31 March
2011 2012
£ £ £ £
- 230,667 - 230,667
(25,145) 25,145 - -
(25,145) 255,812 - 230,667
(540,000) 340,000 - (200,000)
(565,145) 595,812 - 30,667

contribution pension scheme and participates in a defined benefit
pension scheme. The assets of both schemes are held separately from those of the company in
The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the
company to these funds and amounted to £7,844 (2011: £14,549).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2012 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:

Expiry date:

Within 1 year
Between 2 and 5 years
After more than 5 years

2012
£

25,446
164,253
125,322

2011
£

20,065
202,437
98,690

Page 303

Page 16



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

20.

21.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company has taken advantage of the exemption allowed by Financial Reporting Standard 8, 'Related
party disclosures', not to disclose any transactions with members of the group headed by Kent County
Trading Limited on the grounds that at least 90% of the voting rights in the company are controlled within
that group and the company is included in the consolidated financial statements.

The company has a loan from Kent County Council of £200,000 (2011: £5640,000). The loan is repayable
on demand and carries interest at a rate of 5% above the Bank of England's base rate, and is disclosed
within creditors due within one year.

During the year, the company traded with Kent County Council, the ultimate controlling party. The
following transactions occurred during the financial period:

Kent County Council 2012 2011

£ £
Sales 31,737,250 27,207,610
Trade Debtors 5,405,192 4,055,524
Purchases 3,000,289 2,618,304
Trade Creditors 1,933,302 1,130,869
Loan Interest paid @ 5.5% 29,598 40,700

ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The ultimate controlling party is Kent County Council.

Page 304
Page 17



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
Page £ £

TURNOVER 19 34,233,188 30,415,454
Cost of sales 19 (31,855,187) (27,790,868)
GROSS PROFIT 2,378,001 2,624,586
Gross profit % 6.9 % 8.6 %
LESS: OVERHEADS

Administrative expenses 20 (2,061,106) (1,977,956)
OPERATING PROFIT 316,895 646,630
Interest receivable 3,435 4,996
Interest payable 20 (29,598) (40,700)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 290,732 610,926

Page 305
This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements. Page 18




KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

SCHEDULE TO THE DETAILED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

TURNOVER

Temps income
Travel income

COST OF SALES

Wages

National Insurance

Motor vehicle leasing costs

Motor running costs

Subcontractor and other direct costs

Page 306

2012 2011
£ £
30,235,271 25,420,534
3,997,917 4,994,920
34,233,188 30,415,454
2012 2011
£ £
9,628,971 9,348,398
681,862 699,900
472,716 166,811
1,537,938 2,056,364
19,533,700 15,619,395
31,855,187 27,790,868

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 19



KENT TOP TEMPS LTD

SCHEDULE TO THE DETAILED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Wages and salaries

National Insurance

Staff pensions

Staff training

Motor running costs

Hotels, travel and subsistence
Printing and stationery

Postage

Telephone and fax

Computer costs

Advertising and promotion

Payroll charges

Audit fees

Accounting fees

Legal and professional

Bank charges

Bad debts

Sundry expenses

Depreciation of plant and machinery
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Service charges

Premises costs and central overheads
Security and insurance

INTEREST PAYABLE
Loan interest payable

Page 307

2012 2011
£ £
611,290 584,968
62,990 58,250
7,844 14,549
20,095 19,422
14,080 13,772
306 677
12,359 14,328
5,002 8,138
11,613 6,279
7,378 6,946
63,258 56,668
45,609 90,368
13,550 13,550
1,450 6,620
81,848 3,169
8,036 15,057
(33,549) 84,926
33,452 47,638
22,296 13,881
2,240 9,152
857,907 671,612
198,655 227,942
13,397 10,044
2,061,106 1,977,956
2012 2011
£ £
29,598 40,700

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.

Page 20



KENT TOP TEMPS LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Annual Trading Comparison

35.0

30.0

25.0

20.0

£1,000,000s

15.0

10.0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

B Turnover u Gross Profit Profit before tax

THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OF JHE STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page 21
age



KENT TOP TEMPS LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS
For the year ended 31 March 2012

35.0

30.0

25.0

w 20.0
o
o
o
=
o
S

& 450

10.0

50

Annual Sales Comparison

2008 2009 2010 2011

2012

B Sales to Kent County Council m External sales

THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OF THE STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
age

Page 22



KENT TOP TEMPS LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Apportionment of Turnover - 2012

Administration
Expenses
6%

Profit before tax
1 O/O

Cost of Sales
93%

Apportionment of Turnover - 2011

Administration Profit before tax
Expenses 2%

70/0

Cost of Sales

91%

THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OF.THE SEI:}'BJTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Page

Page 23



KENT TOP TEMPS LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS

For the year ended 31 March 2012

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Sales 7,180,031 14,389,154 24,475,068 30,415,454 34,233,188
Trade debtors 1,498,678 2,793,841 3,632,578 4,186,135 5,628,018
Debtor days 76 71 53 50 60
Purchases 6,149,802 12,259,568 22,170,715 27,790,868 31,752,905
Trade creditors 397,698 1,793,725 1,475,402 1,997,356 3,333,390
Creditor days 24 53 24 26 38
Cash Cycle 53 17 28 24 22
Working capital

80

2 M Debtor days
8 M Creditor days
™ Cash Cycle
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Year
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Debtor days comparison
Kent County Council
Sales 7,167,850 13,108,735 22,209,122 27,207,610 31,737,250
Trade debtors 1,505,598 2,622,008 3,393,594 4,055,524 5,405,192
Debtor days 77 73 56 54 62
External
Sales 12,181 1,280,419 2,265,946 3,207,844 2,495,938
Trade debtors (6,920) 171,833 138,984 130,611 222,826
Debtor days (207) 49 22 15 33
Creditor days comparison
Kent County Council
Purchases 1,693,196 2,871,840 3,093,972 2,618,304 3,000,289
Trade creditors (incl accruals) 315,629 1,398,432 1,194,852 1,130,869 2,047,950
Creditor days 68 178 141 158 249
External
Purchases 4,456,606 9,387,728 19,076,743 25,172,564 28,752,616
Trade creditors 82,069 395,293 280,550 866,487 1,285,440
Creditor days 7 15 5 13 16

THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OF THE STABJgSgYé:{Nr\NCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 24



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 312



Agenda ltem 8

From: Bryan Sweetland, Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and
Waste
Mike Austerberry, Corporate Director, Environment and Enterprise
lan McPherson, Managing Director, Commercial Services

To: Governance & Audit Committee, Trading Activities Sub-Group - 28
September 2012
Subject: Re-alignment of Commercial Services company structure following

external review of its activities

Classification: UNRESTRICTED

Summary: Following an independent review by BDO and Eversheds, and
consideration by the Governing Board for Commercial Services, a number of
changes are taking place in the management, operations and company structure
of Commercial Services.

Recommendations:

i) The Governance & Audit Trading Activities Sub-Group is asked to note the
contents of the paper which was considered by the Policy and Resources
Committee on the 27™ of September to change and improve the management,
governance and operations of Commercial Services.

i) The Sub-Group is further asked to note that the Cabinet Member for
Environment, Highways and Waste, the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy,
Performance and Health Reform and the Corporate Director, Environment,
Highways and Waste propose to take formal decisions in relation to the formation
of new companies; the transfer of existing KCC employees to such companies;
and the entering into of all necessary leasehold and other agreements to give
effect to these arrangements.

iii) All subject to the terms of the KCC Constitution and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

iv) As requested by the Sub-Group, a copy of the review of Commercial
Services, and a progress update report, are attached, and the Sub-Group is
asked to note these documents.

1. Introduction

1.1 Commercial Services (CS) is a non-budget funded division of the County
Council, which funds itself from the income generated by its own activities. It is
largely, and increasingly, focused on trading outside Kent, and made a net return
to KCC central funds of £7m in May this year.

Page 313



1.2  The County Council’s policy document Bold Steps for Kent set out the need
for new approaches to meet the financial challenges facing local government. In
this context the Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and Waste and
Corporate Director Environment, Highways & Waste last year commissioned an
external appraisal of the management, operations, governance and future
business potential of Commercial Services.

1.3  This independent review recognised the value that Commercial Services
added to the County Council and made a number of recommendations concerning
changes and improvements to governance arrangements and clarification of the
legal and governance relationship between KCC and Commercial Services. It has
also provided valuable advice on areas of current and future business with the
greatest potential profitability and sustainability, in order to underpin and
strengthen future income returns to KCC.

1.4  The County Council meeting in December last year approved a proposal to
establish a Board of Cabinet Members and senior officers to manage Commercial
Services, and to ensure a proper separation between ‘decider and ‘provider’
which had the potential to become blurred under the existing arrangements. The
Board has met a number of times and worked through the recommendations of
the independent report. A copy of the report is attached as Appendix 1 to this
paper and the status report is at Appendix 2.

1.5 The objective has been twofold. Firstly to make Commercial Services a
leaner, more efficient business, better equipped to compete in challenging
conditions. Secondly, to ensure that it operates properly at “arms length” from
KCC with an appropriate company structure. It is proposed to simplify its current
complex operating model of five companies to two specific company structures as
set out below.

1.6  These company changes will pre-emptively address the risk of any
challenge under current and forthcoming public sector trading regulations which
the government has indicated it may introduce to ensure local authorities do not
use their public status to gain commercial advantage over the private sector. They
will also ensure the total transparency of future business operations and the profit
and loss of Commercial Services.

2. Proposals

2.1 The transformation programme is reconfiguring the current 26 disparate
business units into five client-facing divisions. These new business divisions will
act under the auspices of the two new legal entities, rather than under the current
five limited company structure.

2.2  The new business divisions will cover the areas of Education, Energy,
Care, Employment and Direct Services with the sole purpose of returning an
income dividend to the Council at no cost.

2.3 The proposed changes to the company structure, and the entering into of
various leasehold and other agreements, require various formal Cabinet Member

Page 314



and officer decisions. The proposal is to simplify the current operating model from
managing under five limited companies to two specific company structures. One
will be a “Teckal” compliant company, which will trade exclusively with the County
Council, and the other a “Section 95" company, which will enable CS to trade with
the wider public and private sectors under the auspices of Section 95 of the Local
Government Act.

2.4 A more detailed note on these two types of company is attached as
Appendix 3 to this paper.

2.5 “Driving Economic Prosperity” is a key theme of Bold Steps for Kent. These
proposals will enable KCC to be confident of, and to demonstrate, the existence of
a level playing field with the private sector, and that it is operating on the same
principles as its private sector competitors to deliver maximum benefit to its
shareholder, Kent County Council, and the people of Kent.

2.6 The review has confirmed the direction of travel for local authority trading,
which will encourage a greater use of company vehicles than is common at
present. It is considered likely that trading without using a company is probably
only possible under government regulations in the short to medium term. The
recommendations in this paper address this advice, which it is proposed be
implemented now, subject to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and
Waste, the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health
Reform and the Corporate Director, Environment, Highways & Waste taking the
necessary formal decisions. Such companies will remain totally under the direct
control of KCC.

2.7 Al KCC staff currently employed by CS will transfer to Commercial
Services Kent Ltd (CSK Ltd - the “Teckal’ company) on their existing terms with no
degradation to either working practice or pension. New joiners, including future
appointments to the Executive Team, will move to different, more-private-sector
orientated employment terms.

2.8 Private sector trading will be focused more clearly on the Section 95 (non
Teckal) company, to be named Commercial Services Trading Ltd, and the
premises from which this arm operates must allow such commercial activity to be
undertaken.

2.9 To achieve this Commercial Services will change the name and the Articles
of Association of the existing wholly-owned company Kent County Supplies Ltd to
form the Teckal company, and will change the name of the existing wholly-owned
company Kent County Facilities Ltd to form the Section 95 company. The
remaining three companies will be dissolved as soon as is practicable. The new
company names are subject to approval by Companies House. Simultaneously a
relocation of headquarters functions to different premises will allow CS to operate
more efficiently and effectively.

Page 315



3. Financial Implications

3.1 This will be a cost neutral action. As a “Teckal” company, CSK Ltd will
provide the manpower and expertise to deliver services to KCC, providing a
managed service to KCC to enable it to trade to meet the needs of its general
interest. As such, CSK Ltd is not designed to generate a profit (all profit being
made by KCC). Furthermore this will allow the regularisation of the property
relationship between KCC and CS.

4. Staffing Implications

4.1 A full staff consultation will be undertaken on the TUPE transfer of all
existing KCC staff employed by CS to the limited company. TUPE regulations
ensure that the existing employment terms, and pension provision, of staff
transferring to a new provider are protected and there will therefore be no adverse
impact on transferees. CSK Ltd will obtain admitted body status to the Local
Government Pension Scheme in order to provide for the transferred-in pensions.

5. Equalities Impact Assessment

5.1 Initial screening reveals no further action is required. A report on the
assessment is at Appendix 4.

6. Legal Implications

6.1  The specialist Articles of Association for the new “Teckal” company have
been reviewed by the Director of Governance and Law and will be refined to fully
meet KCC requirements.

7. Conclusion

7.1 The establishment of the two new limited companies will meet the aims of
“Bold Steps for Kent”, protect KCC from the impact of anticipated legislation and
will enable Commercial Services in future to operate more effectively, efficiently

and transparently creating a more viable and sustainable business platform.

Background Documents

Appendix 1: Report by BDO/Eversheds on Commercial Services
Appendix 2: Transformation programme recommendations status report
Appendix 3: Briefing note — Teckal vs Section 95 companies

Appendix 4: Equalities Impact Assessment

lan McPherson

Managing Director, Commercial Services
Gibson Drive, West Malling

Tel: 5352 (01622 605352)

Page 316



/1€ obed

APPENDIX 2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES

SERIAL

ANALYSIS

RECOMMENDATIONS

CURRENT SITUATION

STRUCTURE:

The structure of Kent
Commercial Services is
unnecessarily complex and
not fit for purpose.

Formally constitute a stand alone business as an Arms
Length Organisation and under the parent body form
two discrete Limited Companies one Teckal compliant
the other in open competition.

This change has been prepared and is the subject of a
paper to the Policy and Resources Committee prior to
a formal Cabinet Member decision.

2 REPORTING LINES:
CS must have clear and CS should be realigned to report to the Deputy Since this report was written the senior organisational
distinct reporting lines. Managing Director to whom it should be responsible for | structure has changed and the Governing Board
meeting KCC targets. agreed the Managing Director of CS should reprt to
Mike Austerberry.
3 GOVERNANCE:

CS’s current Governance
arrangements are part of the
overall Governance
arrangements of KCC.

CS to have a clearly separate
and distinguishable
Governance arrangement that
mirrors good commercial
practice.

CS should be realigned to report through the
appropriate Portfolio holder advised by a Governing
Board.

The full County Council in December 2012 approved
the establishment of a Governing Board of Cabinet
Members and Senior Officers to oversee Commercial
Services. The Board is in place and had met a number
of times to review and advise on current and future
strategic direction of CS.




81¢ obed

APPENDIX 2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES

SERIAL

ANALYSIS

RECOMMENDATIONS

CURRENT SITUATION

4

THE EXECUTIVE:

The Executive of CS needs to
be appropriately structured to
enable it to drive the
organisation forward and
react to the Direction of an
established governing board

An appropriately robust Executive should be
established.

This executive should be formed and in place by no later
than April 2012. The final organisational structure, to
sustain the organisation, should form part of the
independent review of the trading arms, informed by
the size and construct of the final organisation following
the transition. This executive should manage the
transformation from CS current position to the new
redesigned organisational structure.

A new executive has been put in place and the new
Managing Director recruited following appointment
by the panel of Personnel Committee.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER
PUBLIC SECTOR BODIES:

The relationship with CBC, Pro
5 and other public sector
trading bodies & commercial
operations should be aligned
to ensure that the roles of KCC
and CS are separated.

The newly appointed Head of Procurement (HOP) to
manage the relationship on behalf of KCC which must be
separate from the affiliation with CS.

This action has been completed and the roles of KCC
and CS are separate.

EU AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE:

CS must ensure ongoing
compliance with regulations
both internal and external (EC
and as defined in English law)

The relationship and responsibility should be between
the MD of CS and the HOP and that this ensures all CS
commercial operations going forward are carried out in
accordance with relevant and future anticipated
regulations.

This recommendation has been implemented.




61€ abed

APPENDIX 2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES

SERIAL

ANALYSIS

RECOMMENDATIONS

CURRENT SITUATION

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS:

The current SLA’s need to be
fit for purpose and properly
describe the relationships
between Directorates and CS

That the Council fully adopts the role of Intelligent
Customer and appropriate, balanced and agreed SLAs
are drafted, agreed and implemented. A Programme of
regular review (annual) is established under the auspices
of KCC Head of Procurement.

This recommendation is an ongoing one and is being
actioned jointly by the MD of CS and the Head Of
Procurement for KCC.

BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS:

Currently all sales to KCC are
subject to a collective
profitability rebate to the
Council. This situation leads
to suspicion and, in some
cases, open hostility towards
Cs.

Rebates to Directorates are applied based upon sales.
Overall rebates to the Authority are adjusted
accordingly and Directorate budgets aligned. A
simplified method of accounting should be adopted.

A number of rebate issues have been addressed and
those that remain will be managed in the most
simplified manner.

Financial Relationship
between CS and KCC:

Different accounting systems
clearly separate the finances
of CS and KCC, however
greater clarity is needed in
some areas.

Focus effort on clarifying the blurred lines between Kent
CC and CS this will become clear with the establishment
of an arms length organization and should address the
issues around premises arrangements.

Financial relationships are now clear and a clear
business plan process for a commercial concern has
been adopted and is subject to external review.




02E obed

APPENDIX 2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES

SERIAL

ANALYSIS

RECOMMENDATIONS

CURRENT SITUATION

10

Risk:

Good practice would require a
stand alone risk policy which is
relevant and applicable to a
commercial arm.

CS to draft an appropriate risk policy which should be
communicated to all staff.

A risk policy is being drafted and will be in place by the
end of the FY.

11 Audit:
The Audit process is dis- CSis in the process of recruiting an appropriately A new internal Head of Audit is in post and
jointed and takes no account qualified Audit team of 2 to be responsible for the relationships with the KCC Head of Internal Audit have
of the commercial activity ongoing Audit function. The auditors, once in post, must | been established and terms of reference agreed.
undertaken by CS be responsible for the Audit and risk functions described
later in the detail of this report and they should be
accountable from a technical compliance perspective to
the Head of Audit and Risk of KCC.
12 LEGAL:

At present the arrangements
are not sufficiently
transparent to demonstrate
the commerciality of the
arrangements between the
Council and the corporate
trading entities.

Any entities that are in place should be properly
defined, constituted and able to act.

This is being addressed by the formation of the
structure recommended to the Policy and Resources
Committee, prior to formal Cabinet Member decision.




12¢ obed

APPENDIX 2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES

SERIAL

ANALYSIS

RECOMMENDATIONS

CURRENT SITUATION

13

DETAILED REVIEW OF
COMMERCIAL SERVICES:

A root and branch review of
Commercial Services should
be undertaken to include all of
its operating arms

The current 26 business units are not properly aligned,
some are not fit for purpose and some run in conflict

from the requirements of the parent organization (KCC).

This root and branch review using the ROAD© process
and should report back with a detailed report which will
inform the future structure to be implemented by the
revised Management Executive by no later than Apr
2013.

The reviews have been under taken on each area of
business and the recommendations of each of these
reviews is being considered by the Board and the
advice forthcoming is being implemented by the
newly appointed Executive.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 322



APPENDIX 3

The "Teckal" Principle

It is a well-established principle of EU procurement law that the open advertising and
tendering rules for public contracts do not apply where a public body obtains services from
"in-house" sources.

Basic law is that any public body in the EU wishing to obtain services from the private sector
has to comply with public procurement rules, which require open and non-discriminatory
advertising, tendering, and contract award. As a generally-accepted rule, a public body does
not have to comply with public procurement rules where it is only utilising its own internal
resources to satisfy its requirements.

Furthermore if a public body wishes to obtain services from another public body this is
provided for under what is known as the “Teckal” ruling, where, for the for the first time the
European Court of Justice held that a public body could bypass the EU procurement rules
and directly enter into a contract with a service provider so long as:

J the public body controls the service provider in question as if it was that
public body's own department; and

. the service provider in question carries out the essential part of its activities
with the contracting authority which controls that entity.

The Teckal exemption allows contracting authorities a greater scope of cooperation
amongst themselves without having to rely on a much narrower, existing exemption which
applies only where services were provided by a contracting authority based on certain
exclusive rights held by that contracting authority.

The question of ownership is not alone decisive in determining whether the requisite level
of control is exercised over the proposed service provider by a contracting authority:

] any private sector part-ownership (no matter how minor the stake is) of the
proposed service provider is likely to defeat the application of the Teckal exemption;

] the Teckal exemption could still apply even where multiple contracting
authorities share the control over the proposed service provider; and

] the controlling contracting authority must possess "a power of decisive
influence over both strategic objectives and significant decisions" over the proposed
service provider for the Teckal exemption to apply (i.e., the more independently the
entity in question is able to act, the less likely it is for the Teckal exemption to apply).

Page 323



Section 95 of the Local Government Act 2003

Section 95 of the Local Government Act 2003 provides specifically for Local Authorities to
take part in trading activities with other public and private sector bodies, and to do “for a
commercial purpose anything which they are authorised to do for the purposes of carrying
on any of their ordinary functions”.

The act makes further provision that the commercial trading can only be undertaken via a
company regulated by both the Companies Acts and Part V of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

This provision is to ensure that:

. to make it a level playing field, as most competitors will usually be
companies;
. for tax reasons, as local authorities would otherwise have a tax advantage

over the competition;

. to ensure compliance with EU Competition Rules - if there is a requirement
for a company it is easier to keep it all separate and transparent; and:

. to comply with state aid rules.

Page 324



APPENDIX 4
KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Initial Screening

Directorate: Commercial Services

Name of Service
Commercial Services

Type
Proposed transfer (TUPE) of staff to Commercial Services Kent Ltd

Responsible Owner/ Senior Officer
David Jackson, Planning Director

Completed by: Robert Palmer (Head of HR)

Date of Initial Screening
6 September 2012

Version Author Date Comment

V01 Robert Palmer | 06.09.12

Pagé 325




Screening Grid

Characteristic Could this policy, Could this policy, Assessment of Provide details:
procedure, project or procedure, project or potential impact a) Is internal action required? If yes, why?
service affect this service promote equal HIGH/MEDIUM/LOWI/ | b) Is further assessment required? If yes, why?
group differently from opportunities for this NONE/UNKNOWN c) Explain how good practice can promote equal
others in Kent? group? opportunities
YES/NO YES/NO Positive | Negative
No No None None No internal action is required and no further
Age assessment is required.
No No None None
Disability It is not envisaged that there will be any impact as a
No No None None result of the transfer of staff to the new private
;_DU Gender companies.
< No No None None
) Gender identity A full EqiA is not required at this time.
o No No None None
Race
No No None None
Religion or belief
No No None None
Sexual orientation
No No None None
Pregnancy and
maternity




Part 1: INITIAL SCREENING

Context

A review of KCC Commercial Services concluded that the commercial
operations of KCC that are operated by Commercial Services needed to be
more ‘arms length’ to KCC. The review recommended the creation of two
new limited companies that would trade as Commercial Services and by
which the staff who work for Commercial Services would be employed.

Aims and Objectives

Proposed creation of two new limited companies that are arms length to (but
wholly owned by) Kent County Council. These new companies would employ
all of the staff within Commercial Services. The staff who transfer would be
protected by the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations 2006 “TUPE”.

Beneficiaries

KCC is the direct beneficiary as Commercial Services will be compliant in its
trading activity with a clear line of separation from KCC.

Consultation and data

Informal consultation with staff and unions commenced in August 2012 and
will continue until the point of transfer.

Managers are in continual dialogue with their staff, linking in with CS HR as
necessary for guidance and support.
Potential Impact

Initial screening notes that service users will not be affected by this TUPE
transfer.

At this stage it is considered that the transfer of staff to the private companies
will not have an impact on any of the protected characteristics.

No information has arisen from early engagement with staff to suggest that
any other protected group will be disproportionately impacted.

Pagé 327



JUDGEMENT

Option 1 — Screening Sufficient YES
Following this initial screening our judgement is that no further action is
required.

Justification:

There is sufficient information at this time to indicate that no further action is
required.

Option 2 — Internal Action Required YES/NO

Option 3 — Full Impact Assessment YES/NO
Only go to full impact assessment if an adverse impact has been identified
that will need to undertake further analysis, consultation and action

Equality and Diversity Team Comments

Sign Off

| have noted the content of the equality impact assessment and agree the
actions to mitigate the adverse impact(s) that have been identified.

Senior Officer

Signed: %ﬁ)«& Name: David Jackson

Job Title: Planning Director, Date: 11/9/2012
Commercial Services

DMT Member

LS
Signed: Name: lan McPherson
Job Title: Managing Director, Date: 11/9/2012

Commercial Services

Pagé 328



SAHHSYHAA

)

4

14vdd 110¢ ,0€ Jaquiardag

Page 329



SAHHSYHAH

&
-

9¢
S¢
144

€¢C
8T
9T

14"

‘ON abed

T\E£88ETO\Tq! U]

oagd|

adedspue 401235 21|gnd |BIdJawWwWo) - € Xauuy
PaMB3IADY SJUSWIND0Q JO 1S - Z Xauuy
1S1| M3IAJISIUT - T Xauuy

suoesadQ uadin) JO JUBWISSISSY |eba
9JURJINSSY puUB SOURUJIDAOD

sda31s 1XoaN

MBIAIDAQ DJ1ba1e11S

SUOI3RPUBWILIOIDY pajielad

Alewwing aA13N29X3]

S30IAN3ddV

‘9 NOILO3S

‘S NOILO3S

‘¥ NOILO3S

:€ NOILD3S

:¢ NOILO3S

‘T NOILD3S

SIN3LNOD

Page 330



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

JO 9J0d Byl pue ddueutanob uo siaded Jo Joquinu B DIM
03 uaXelIBpuUN MJOM B3 J0) UDAID g OS|e 3snw JpaJtd ‘Aleiwis

"(DOM) 11PuN0) AJuno) Jua) Je IpNY Jo pesH
Y] 03] auj| |euoissajold B YiM SIYy AJi3oad 03 pajinIdad aq |[Im
SJ0}ipne [elDJawWWod 0M) jeyy paalbe usaq sey 31 "ed wQOyF Jo
JaAoudny [enuue ue ym ssauisng e ‘s) Joj swuwelboud jpne ayy
Jo abeian0d 93enbapeul ayl se yons aoueulIaA0b Jo seale ssalppe
0] papels Apeadie aAey SO ‘wniosuod juswadandodd Abusus
9yl YISy 03Ul HodaJ |eudaIXd ue JO dduUdNbasuod aUIp B Sy

"[IDUNO0D 3y Jo swie
39Ul Yam Auowidey Ul UOI3DJIp PasnI0) 240w ‘Mau e 39s S| 3 eyl
2INSUd pue 3DIYaA SO aY3 Jo |043u0d ulebad 03 9313adde paseaudul
ue 0] pes| 0S|e dABRY SJUDAD JIpIM ‘sabueyd asayy jo adoos
331 JO 9PISINO UdaQg sey SD ‘S1ep 01 [1I2UN0D 3Y3 UIYyIM Bupjiom
JO SABM DAIIEIOQR||0D 2J0W 3]B3JD 0] JBpPJ0 Ul palinddo sey UIYsS
|[ean3nd pue uopesiuebioas Juediubis e pue DDY pue SO Yioqg ie
diysispes| Jo abueyd e uaaq sey alayl syuow 8T Ise| 3yl UIym

“¥3SVY1 ‘sjun ssauisng ay3 JO aUO Y3IM pajeidosse S| [1Dunod)
AjunoD uay 03 sl |eipueuly Jo Ajdofew 3ISeA Byl “SAIINJSXD
2AI1303JJ2 UE Ul JUSW]SaAUl a1enbape 1noylIM 3jeds pue 3zZIS SIYl Jo
ssauisng e Buiuund ul YSid Juadayul Si aJayl ‘a4n1dnJis Jo Swia] ug

'S19yJew uleuad
woJly ssaocold |[emelpyiim ayl bujuue|d ag mou pjnoys uoijesiueblo
9yl |emedpyim pue bupesspow  ‘buiiajus  Aq  paAaiyde
9g p|noys yoiym ssadoidd obeis 994yl B SI uoijelapowl e

*uoi30aJ1p Adijod pue swJua) acueulanob
y1oq Ul |IDUN0D 3yl WoJ) palayiajun awodaqg sey uoijesiuebio ayj
‘Ajjuanbasuod pue sjabuey |epueuly pasodwl asayl jJ@awW 03 J9pJo
ul auo 2i6ajel3s e ueyy Jayjed juswdojoAap 0] usxe) usaqg sey

€ T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

|
yoeoddde oi3siunpioddo uy “Jojedausab jjold o3 uoielapouwl jaxlew

WwoJ) Wi} JOA0 PIA|OAD SeY SSaulsng J0J uoileAllow 9yl pue
Aljesiuebio umodb sey [1pDUNOD Aluno) Judy Jo wuae buipesy e ‘sH

'SD AQ paJaAldp pue palatduaaiul si syl Ajesioaud

Moy pue ‘DD) Jo sjuswadinbai 21693e41S Byl yum subije
SIyl Moy ‘sH Jo asodand ayy pauioads sey DDM |[9M Moy e

SO 03 sapiaold DD eyl (Aue ji) Apisqns aA108440

JO |9A9] BY3} 0] se juawissasse ue buipnpul ‘(D) [1Puno)
AJuno) Jua) pue SO uaamisq diysuoie|ad |epueuly syl e

sjuswadinbad aAne|siba| JUBWUIBA0D

|20 pue 1oy sauedwo) jsuiebe §H ul sjuswabuedse
2oueutanob pue bBuijesado jusaund syl Jo Auebsl syl e

Ayus SO sjoym ayy
JO sjuswabuelde doueinsse pue ddURUIDA0D JualInNd By] e

:seale Buimo||oy
3y} J9A0D 031 ‘(SD) S9DIAIDS |RIDJBWWOD JUDY JO Ssjuswabuedle
2oueulanob 2yl ojul malaad dibajedis |9Ad] ybiy e axepmspun
03 pauolssiwwod Apulol aleam O@g pue spaystanl ‘T10Z AInC Ul

‘uaX0.1q SI Aeujes ay3 pue jodap
2y3 YIM Ssuoiesdiunwiuiod Aem omj ou ade adayl ‘aoeld ul JaALIp
Yyoeod e S| aldayl 1S/IYM “UOoIIed0| S} JO X0ed] 3SO| pue S[aAd| Jo1em
pue ainssaid aiA3 ‘j10 sy bupipayo paddois sey [1Duno) ay *93no.d
paulepun ue pue ‘Uuopjeullsap [eul) dioads ou YyimM speod mau
dn buriojow Ajeonasiuniyioddo pue (syun ssauisng) siaabuassed
mau dn buppid Aeinbad  ‘yoeod e ojul  pawliojsuel) sey
1 ‘D) 1BAQ "JUd) Ul axew 03 sAauunol 21y12ads yiim 3[21YdA [jews
e se paubisap AjjeuibLio sem ysiym uojjesiueblo ue poidA0ISIp
OM SIDINISS [BIDJDWILWIOD) dY] UO ,IOW, Y3 JO 954n0d ay) burLing

Page 331



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

'SY1S Jo asn ajelidoidde s31 ybnoayy 6°s Jawoisnd
Juabij@iul Jo 3jo4 3yl buiuaxa IO JO SDUIPIAD M| SI 2JdY)
JaAamoy ‘Jswoisnd pue Jouldaaob Jo jeyy ojod jenp e sAeid DD

(s |In4 Byl 404 dansul AnJ3 DDOY J9yisym) saouedansu]
(M3IABJ puk djeUOIlRI) SIIIAIDS pajepue|y

(papnjoul jou si pue s| Jeym) sabieyosad DI
sjuswabueldle sasiwa.ld

saljljigel] suoisuad

:2J4e uoledllied Jajealb wody J1yauaq
pInom eyl seale ayl "paAalyde aq p|nod Adualedsued] pue Ajle)
Jojealb alaym juswanoiduwil 10 WOOJ SaARD| 10adsad SIYl Ul Joiem
an|q Jeap pue swalsAs buipunodoe ajededas sy Aq paysinbuilsip
IS[IYM SO pue [IDUN0D 2yl usamiaq diysuonead |eipueuly ayl

(G uoI1D3S Ul |IEISP BJ0W Ul PaQIIISIP
9Je 3SaYl) °|1PUn0) Yl UlYylIM sa4n3onuls aocueudanob buiasixa ojul
Bnid 1M yoiym JO yioQg SSDIAISS [RIDJDWWOD) J0) pleog AJOSIAPY
ue Aq papoddns aq |IM SIyl ‘aJowdsypng DDY JO J0o3padig
buibeue|y Ainda@g ayi aq ||IMm Yydiym Jo Jdieyd ayj (asiydadxa 10309s
Joddew pue |epJawwod ajenidoidde yiym sioquiswl  DAIINIDIXD
uou bBuipnpul) diysioquaw ajelidoadde yim piaeog bHuiuianon
e bulysiigelss Agq passalppe Ajeieipawwil 3q pinhoys bupjew
uolisiDap pue uoialip J1bajells Jo Lduasge oyl ‘daAsmoy SO
UO pasndo) A9]0S SJOlIpNe [BIDJSWIWO0D OM] JO JuSWNIda] aininy
9yl Ag passalppe buiaq Apeadje sI uoipuny |043U0d pue buliojiuow
9yl °|oJjuod pue bHulojiuow ‘A|puodas pue uoidadip d1bajeays
!spadse OM] SeY SDURUJIDAOD *3sidIlud  |RIDISWWOD WOy F
e JoJ 91enbapeul ade jpne pue juswabeuew s se yons a0e|d
Ul SwSiueYIaW [0JIUO0D |BUJIUI puUB 3JNIdONJIS dURUIBA0B Byl

14 T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

|

")}SId JO |[9AJ] djeUlWIDIBpUl UL

je ssauisng 3y} sind SAIINI9XT DAIFIDJD UB Ul JUDWISIAUI
9jenbape jnoyiyim uonesiueb.io ayy jo yymodb paiayiajun
pue diuebto 3yl "uoisSIWod Ssiyj 10j sn 0} usaalb asuepinb

oydads 9y} yym sduepdodde ul jpodad sy ur spun
SSaUISN( |eNPIAIPUl U0 JUDWIWOD WOo4) paule.djad aaey 3

*uJnl 3203s 049z Jo wie ayjy yum yun bunyesado saiddns
AJunod 3jgeulelsns pue 3sngod B Usijqeiss 03 aJIYSpJIojSH yim
diysaauped Ajluoyine |d0| B SpJemo] 9A0W Y] pUsSWWOd 0S|e 9\

*papnejdde aq 3Snw SUOISIAIP JO SWEB3JIS 9 SB S9SSaUISNg 3SIDAIP
9sayy buibeuew spiemol aAOW a3yl ‘Wil 1OYS 3yl Ul "S224nosal
pue |ejded Jo asn 3juapiyje pue juswabeuew dAIDDD  J0J
snoJawinu pue pasiadsip 003 Jej SI YdIym ssauisng ay3 JO 98T dn
W S}UN SSUISNG GZ JIA0 %79 buijuasaidal Jj2s3 WNIOSUOD
juswauandodd Abiaua 2yl ‘Y3sSvy1 yim ‘Jaaoudny Jo 9,88 juasaidad
sjun ssauisng asayl Jo Jnoj asnl ‘usAasmoy ‘sjiun  ssauisnq
9z Ajojewixoidde pue sajuedwod pajiwil G S9INJISUOD SD

‘ed wOOvF
J9A0 JO JaAoudny} e pue uoisinodd 221A43s Jo xiw ybnodoyy e sey

pue (DDOX) 11Punod Ajuno) Juay AQ paumo Ajjoym si ‘uanamoy sD
"S9DIAIDS JO 2d0DS J19y] Ul pajiWi| SJo0W ydnw ale pue maj alde siyl
03} suonndaoxa ayl ‘Ajdoyiny |B207 2uo ueyly aJow buijuasaddad
S991IWwWod juswabeuew Aq papunj pue paudarob ‘paseq-13nw
9Je BIJOSUOD 1SO|y "BIMOSU0) Buiseydind JUSWUISAOL) |BDOT 40
[9POW UOWWOD B MOJ|04 30U S20P (SD) SOIIAISS [BIDIDWIIOD U

'Junodoe ojul siaded asoy) saxe) Jodad siyl aPIyaA ajeludoadde
ue ojul SO Jo uonlesiuebioal ay] WO SSLIE [[IM SSWO0IIN0 pPalisap
Yl pue 3|gepuswwod ale spyodal oml Byl pulysqg S|espl ayl
"UOIIDE pue M3IABJ JIBY] J0J DD JO wea] juswabeuel ajelodio)
9yl 03 payiwqgns usaq aAey yoiym (,buipell DM o4 J9|qeul
9yl se §D, pue ,pleog bBuipeld] SO , dYl) SIDIAIDS |eIDIDWWIOD

Page 332



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

"S3DIAIDS |eIDJaWW0)
Uy dn Sxew eyl swde [e|DJaWWod 3yl JO M3IASJ youelq pue
1004 B 12NPU0)) :SIIIAIDS [eIDJDWWO) JO MIIADI pajierad

‘pasi|elnJawwod pue Ajunjioddo 3saljdea ayj je pajusawndop
Aladoud B5qg plnoys sjuswabuease |epueuly Auy ileban

*SjIUN ssauIsng [enplAlpul
pue Aji3us a31e40dJ0d ay3 104 S9AI3D3[QO pue uOoISSIW ‘UOISIA Jed)d e
2oe|d ul 3nd pue auanjonJis |euonjesiuebio ayy Ayjdwis jeban

*9o130e4d 353q (J)nquan]) Adasnpul ay3 buimoj|ol
uolouny upny asodind Joy i3 e ydope 3snw SO :Mpny

"JJB1S ||B 03 pa3ediunwiwod
9g pInoys yoiym Adijod s ajelidoidde ue yedp 03 SO S

*9|qissod se Aldea se pauleiqo aq
Isnw AjdeD D) pue §) usaamilaq diysuone|ay jepueuld

'so|es uodn paseq
paijdde aJe sajeloldalig 03 s2ieqoy :sdiysuolje|dy ssauisng

‘pajuswa|dwi pue pajyelp ale sy1S paalbe
pue paduejeq ‘siendoisdde pue Jswoisn) 3usabi@aur Jo S04
23 sadope Ajnj [1DUN0) 3Y3 1Byl :SIUdWIBIBY |[9AD] DIIAIBS

‘suoile|nbal |eulalul pue N3 03 Adualaype
1oJ DDM 31e juswaindold jJOo pesH 8yl Ag 3unodde 01 pjay
9q p|hoys SO Jo Jojadig :9dueljdwo) Alojenbay pue N3

‘SO Yim uoneljiyje
9Y3 wodj 33UdSIp 99 Isnw ydiym ‘DD Jo-Jjeysq uo salpoq Sd
1ayro yum diysuonejad syl sabeuew 03 juswaindold JO peaH mau
ay] juloddy :salpoq 10393s dijqnd 1ayjo yyum diysuone|ay

S T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

|

‘Auedwod 19)Je|y JO peaH e

Auedwod |e>23] Jo peaH

[2UUO0SJ3d JO pesH

suolijeladQ Jo peaH

[eIDJaWWo) JO pesH

aoueuld Jo pesaH

SD Jo J0d=ldlg e

:$9]0J BuIMO||0J 9U3 JO 1SISUOD p|NOYsS

SAIINISXJ 9YJ 'SSaUISNg 9|qeuleisnNs pue 3J|geiA  A[eIDJawwWod

B SB S UhJ 0} paau oyl jJo uonRiubodas ul pue s ajebiyiw 03
‘pawiloj 99 PINOYS SAIINIDXD MU B 1eY] |BYIA S| 1 :DAIINIIXT

"SD AQ paJtalap asoyy
ydojew 1eyl 1ax4ew ayil JO SJ101I3S JURAI|DJL WOL) umelp ‘sioyadig
SAIIND3XJ-UON JO 3sSINb Byl ul JJIApPE |eUIDIX® YIIM pJeoq
Adosiapy ue ajealddH(n Auillanids W jauiged ayjy 031 Alljiqisuodsad
yum pajnipsuod Jojoadig buibeuely Andsqg syy Aq padieyd
pieog buluianon sjendoidde ue jeald(1 :dOURUIDA0D

'sy1ob4ey DY bunssw
JoJ 3|qisuodsal aq pjnoys 3 woym 03 Joyadig buibeuey Aindag
9y} 031 jodas 03 paublead aq pihoys SO :saulq buniodoay

"JOY JUSWIUIBA0L) |0 3Y] JO sadidsne
ayy Joapun uonnedwod uado ul Jayjo ayy jJuendwod |exdaL
Quo sjun buneidado a3a4dsip omy yam (Ov) uonesiuebio yibus
SWJy pa3inlipsuod Ajjew.o) ‘suoje pueis e 21eal) :24NIPNJIS

*A|jSnoaueynwis 10329s
ajeald pue olgnd ayjy yzoq o3 buldAlep dl0ym B se S)H jnoge
suolsanb sasiel syl "saiaua buipedy ajelodiod ayjy pue [1DUNOD
ay3} usamiaq sjuswabuedle syl Jo AjljeIDIBWWOD BY) 9leljsuowsp
03] juadedsuely Ajauaiyns jou ale sjuswabuelle ayl juasald 1y

Page 333



SAHHSYHAH

&
-

9 T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

odd

'9J04
bunjesopow 3axJew e ul buipe Jo ssauajelidoadde ayy Japisuod
19113q 03 9|ge sI 1 eyl aJansua osje | 31 ybiy s uibaew
sy Buiseasoul ‘paspul pue bHuiydsjoud jo pooylil ayiy 22ejd ul
soueuldanob poob pue aAlRndax3 paodnosad Aldadoud ‘uonesiueblo
pasijeuoiled B UYIM  sLiiunjioddo  jeoddew  uo  9siwixew
pue ainsodxa Xsid S} Jwi| 03 pauonisod 31saq S| uonesiuebio ayy
1Byl 24nsud |[IM AJ|ED13SI|0Y Suoliepuawwodal 3yl bunuswajdwi
'SNOWIOUD S| SSBUISNQ B SB SIDIAIDS |eldJawwo)) 104 [einuaiod syl

*1X23U00 10323s J1|qnd Japim
pue [IDUNOD SU3} JO SNJ0J PaMIUSJ ‘JUSWIUOIIAUD M3U 3y} NS
1S9Q 03 9DIY2A 3y} auniad pue adeysal 0] J9pJO Ul uOijRUILIEXD
ybnoJdoyy e seale pallquapl asayl Jo yoes oAb 03 2q p|noys
dals Ixau a8yl pue JPIYaA x3|dwod B S| SIDIAIDS |eIDIBWWO)D)
‘JOAOMOH "adnjnj Byl Ul SSauISNg d|qeuleisnNsS pue  3|gelA
B S| S9JIAIDS |eIDJ2WWOo) 1eY) ainsua pue uojjelado ayy abeuew
19139 0] popuswWWOodal Udaq Sey sjuswanoldwi Jo AJOJUDAUI
uy domad pue Aunnads Jadasp adinbad yoiym suibus ayj
Jo sued ojuo jybi] dWoSs pays sey puuog ayl Japun Xoo| X2Inb vy

Page 334



,~

SAGHSYHAT <

03

|eJanau
3s0D

*24nana3s
J9x3

MaUu 3y

ul pauyap
se awn
JJe3s s 350D

C¢10¢
ddy Ag

¢10¢
aunr Ag

SD JO M3IA3I
oibajea)s pajieap a2yl Jo awodino ayy buipuad paAe|ap
9q p|nhoys Jojoadiq buibeuely Aindsg syy 03 aaow
3Y) 1yl popuswwWwoddl S| 3} SIedA g ul sawly € saul|
buiyiodad |euolyesado pabueyd sey SaDIAIBS |eIDJIDWILWLOD
Jeyl Pej 3yl USAID LNVLIOdWI ‘pleog AJOSIApY
9y} JO Joqwaw e se pue pleog buiuianon sy uo
SAIIN23X3 3Y3 JO JieyD ayl se s pjnoys Ajioyiny auyi jo
Joyoauiq buibeuel Aindaq ayl "siabiel DOY bunssw Joy
9|qisuodsal aq p|hoys 11 woym 03 J03da41q buibeuep
Aindag a3yl o3 j1odas o3} paubijeas aq pjhoys s

[ZT uonepuswwodal] uolepUSWLWIOID
9jeledas e jo 309[gns ayj SI S}uUN ssauisng 93340SIp 9y}
JO ainin} wJa) buo| 3yl / uollRpUDWIWIODIBI] BAIINDDXT
3y3 JO uollewJo} ayj Jo syjuow € uiypm pajuswsjduwi aq
p|noys uoljjepuswiwodad siy] ‘A|buipiodde painglsip aJe
Sjun ssauisng §Z uaJind 3yl yoiym Japun ‘uoipadwod
uado ul J9yjo 3ay3 juejdwod |[e)d3] Sduo S}un
ssauisnq 3932.42SIp om} wioj Apoq juaded ayj Japun

"(§ uoPaS Ul UBAIB sI |1e3ap JayHNd)
IDUN0D BY} WOJ) PIJIOAIPp SC pue uolle|os| ul Joe
03 9|ge g 3shw Ajjua 91buls siyl -juaded syl 10) awoduUl
pue SaWO02}N0 SSauIsNg d|qeuieisns JaAl|Pp pue asodind
Joj 34 @9 03 3} d|geud 03 |PUNOD By} AQ payngiyuiun
ng ‘paJ|043u0D ‘uonesiueb.Q yabuan suy
ue se SSaUISn(g duUoje puels e 31N}IISU0d Ajjew. o4

*UJ22U0D |RIDJDWILIOD
3|geIA e se ajedado

031 934) 3 buiaed| 1s|Iym
ueld [1ouno) auQ

ay3 yum paubije pue 0}
paJayial Aj@jelidoadde
SO sdody jey)

soul] buijiodas aney

"S39DIAIRS [BIDJaWWo)
JO 2DUBISIXd
a|geuieisns pue
a|qeiijoid ‘BA13004)0
ay3 Joj Ajijiqisuodsal
yam yun buluianob
9|buls e wuo4

T\E£88ETO\Tq! U]

odd

3s2493U1 JO 1D1|JU0D B 0] pe3|
PIN0D sIyl °SD Jo juald Jofew
B J|9S]I S| Juswpedap asoym
‘asiudiajug pue JuswuodiAug

JO 1030211 93edodlo)

ayj 03 spodad SO Ajjuadin)

:SANIT ONILYOdIY

112UN0D a3

woJd) palayial-un awodaq sey
pue uolldalip ajelddosdde ay)
syoe| 11 ‘asoduand Joj 314 J0u
pue xa|dwod Ajldessadauun

SI S2JIAJDS |BIDJaWW0o)
JU3) JO a4n3dNnuIs ayl

FANLONMNALS

Page 335



=
SAIHSYIAL S

(saj04

€ uo paseq)
‘000'8T1F

JO 150D
|enuue uy

2107 4dvy
T Aq 2oe(d
ui oq ol

‘pdeog buiuianon
9] SSIApE UuOonIppe Ul pue |9pow SSaulsng ayi JaAlep
0} Moy uo saluedwod bupelado om) oyl asiApe 03
g ||Im pJeoq Alosiape ay3 JO 9]0J 3yl SO Aq padJaAlpp
9SOy} ydjew jeyl jo)dew 3yl JO SUOIFIIS JUBAD|DA
wioJdj umedp ‘sdojoadig J9x3-uou jo I3sInb Yy
ul SJIAPE [eudalXdD YIMm pleog Alosinpe ue 3jead)

T UOIIBPUSWILLIODD
Ul paquIssp Se  M3IAaJ  youelq pue Jo0d 3yl
AQ paulwia1ap 29 ||IM SpJeoq Syl JO 3oNJISU0d |euly syl

*9ouewJotiad
s,uoneziuebio ayy Joj ouiged Syl 03 bBununodoe e
s39bpnqg |enuue buinosdde e
$92JN0Ssa.l
|epueuly o93enbape  jo  Ajigejieae . ayy bulnsua e
SD Jo J030a41g buibeuely ay3 Jo aouewlomad
ayy bummainal pue buipoddns ‘bujuiodde ‘buidses e
SsaAI0alqo pue saipdijod
peoidq buiysiigeise Aq uoneziuebio ayy BuluisAob e
SD JO 9]0J Y3 SpIosp pue uoildalIp d1b6ajelys ayj 19s e

:10j Auinaos 3 1puiqe) ayj o3 Ajjiqisuodsad
UM pajnljipsuod 1030341 bBulbeuepw Aindag ay3
Aq paaieyd pieog bujuianon ajeridoidde ue ajeal)

‘buiiodaa Jenbal
pue ajelidoidde

yum buouzs si
A3lj1ge3unodoe aunsug

*2ouepinb

pue abusj|eyd
JUDISISUO0D [BUJDIXD JO
|2A3| 23eludoadde ay)
pue 2ouepinb oib6ajenys
S9DIAJIDS [BI2J2WW0)
U3y aAIb 0]

T\E£88ETO\Tq! U]

oad|

"JUDWIUOIIAUD
[eIDJBWWOD B u] dduepinb
92130e.4d poob siodliw

1ey3 Juawabuelle 3dUBUISA0D

a|qeysinbuisip pue ajeledas
Aldea|p e aAey 03 9zIs

SIY3 JO UOISIAIp e Joadxa 03
9|geuosealun aq 10U p|NOM 3T

JUDISIX2-UOU Seale SWos Ul
buijiodas pue yeam S| |1DUNOD
33 031 >deq Ajljigejunodoe
JDADOMOH *|IDUN0D

Ajuno) juay Jo syuswabueaie
DOURUIDAOL) ||BJDAO

ay3 Jo ued aJe sjuswsbuedle
9OURUJIDAOD) JUDIIND 5,5

‘[Iduno) ayj apisino
wouy abusjjeys juspuadapul
JO >de| e os|e S| aJayL

]IPUN0D BY3 UIYIM

woJy aouepinb oi6ajedys
JO @2Udsge ue s| alayl

IONVNUIAOD

Page 336



6 T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

- |
SATHSYIAT S¥ odgd

(4api1nodd si Jayio aya
Japiap sI auQ) 'pajeledas

NO0) | 9le SO pue DDXM Jo s.s|od
*(4apinoad juasaldal Jouued SO Byj 1Byl 24nsud 03 paubije aq
0% Se) SO UM uoieliyie 9yj wody 93240SIp 2 3Isnul 'S91p0qQ J0309s di|gnd  pjnoys suoijedado |eloJawwod
TT0Z SIYL DD 40 jleyaq uo 233 Goid ‘DgD yum diysuoneljad  J4syio Yim SO pue DDY R sa1poq buipedy 10309s diignd
[BJINDN 150D 230 - PO 9Yi abeuew 03 juswaindold JO peaH Mau ayj juloddy  usamiaq sdiysuolle|ad Jay30 pue g old ‘Dgd yim
2]eljuadayjip 03 pue diysuone|as ayl :s3raod
9]0 J43piao4d / JapIoap d0L1D3S 21I79Nd ¥3HLO0
a3 N0 ededss o] HLIM dIHSNOILV1ZY

'24n3onJ3s |euoijesiuebio mau ayjl 03 uonisod Jusatind

S,SD WoJj uojjewJojsueldy ayy abeuew pjnoys aAIINISX3

Syl ‘uonisuely ayy bHuimojoj uonesiuebio |euls

93 JO 310NJ3Su0d pue azis ayl Aq pawdojul ‘wie buipely

9Ul JO MdIADJ Judpuadopul ayy jJo ued wioj plnhoys

‘uonjesiuebio ayj uleisns 031 ‘aunioniis |euolnyesiuebio

[eul ayl -uonsuely jo pouad- syl JSA0D 03 MOOEFO

]SO |euonippe pajewnss ue 3y  glog |Hdy ueyy

Ja3e| ou AQ 2oe|d Ul pue pawlio} 99 PINOYS 2AIINI9XT SIYL

Auedwod 193Je|\ JO peaH e *M3IADJ Jey]

Auedwod |ex03] Jo peaH

JO suoljepuswiwiodad

|2UU0S.IDd JO peaH e a3 Jusws|dwii
suoneladQ Jo peaH e 0} pue maiaal
|eIDJ2WIWO)) JO peaH e SOJIAJDS |eDJBWWO)  pJeoq 23ueulanob paysiigeiss
aoueuld JO peaH e [N} B JO BWO0D23N0 ue JO uoDallp ayj 03 Joead
SD JO 103024IQ e  DAIDBJ4D Y3 d|geus 0} pue piemlos uonesiuebio
(z10C dos :buimol|oy paysi|qelss aq p|nhoys 93} SALIp 01 1l 9|geus
01 2107 Ady 9yl Jo poasodwod wJd)} MOoYys dyy ul ‘paysigeiss wea| juswabeuely 0} paJanionJls AjPjerddoaddeul
wioJ} porad 2I0C 29 PpINOYS DAIINIIXT Yl MIIADL SIDIAIDS |RIDI2WWIO) 9AIIND9XT] paJnionJls S| 9A13N29X3 3yl
10J) Y00EF D ldy Aq pojielop 9yy Jo  sawodino  ayy bHuipueisylimion A|93eludoadde uy

2oe|d uf AAILND3IX3 FHL

Page 337



g~

SAGHSYHAT <

uoIsap
poyisw
uo
buipuadap
(so8)
SI pue
abueyd
40s jo uol ¢10¢
Jeuiquiod) ddy Aq
M0SFO 2oe|d ug
¢T0¢
(sbaeyd unr Aq
}0S) %0SF doe|d ug
0F
[edineN TT0C

S0 990 - PO J0 pesH

"J0X ulyiim adueuly
JO peaH 9yl yum salbe pue axelapun 01 S 104 MI0M
JO 9031d UO MO||0) B 3F PINOYS SIYL "suopiedijiuel aney
yalym Jo |je suondo jo Jaquinu e 2Je 219y} Se anss|
siyy buissaippe 10} poyjaw dyj aulwlialep 03 3jgeun
aJe 9\ ‘paubije s3yabpnqg ojel03dadig pue Ajbuipiodoe
paisnlpe aJde Ajdoyny ayy 01 Saiegad ||BJOAQ
‘'so|es uodn paseq paljdde aie sajeloloadiq 0] S9ieqay

"JUBWIN20.d JO peaH DD JO sadidsne
9yl Jopun paysiigeise sI (jenuue) mainad Jejnbad
JO swuwelbold v *pajuswajdwi pue pasalbe ‘pajjelp ale
SY1S paalbe pue paocuejeq ‘ojeldosdde pue Jswoisn)
Juabljaul jo o4 dyy sydope Ajny [1DUNOD Y3 Jeyl

'suoiae|nbad JueA3|a] Y3IM 92UBeplodde Ul N0 pallled
2Je suoijelado |elpJawWwod S ||B SaJnsua SIy) leyl pue
dOH ®Y3 pue SO Jo diW °Y3y usemiaq =29 p|noys i ey
pue pausapiey sI diysuolje|al Ssiyj 1eyj papuswiwiodal
SI 3 suonenbal |eudajul pue D3 UM Sdualaype
104 OOM ulyum (dOH) 3IuswsaJndold jJo pesH 3yl
01 9|qisuodsal sI (9Sd) dnodo SaDIAIDS JUSBWSIND04d
92Ul 1eyy sI Juswabuease jJuadind syl

0T

'S[oA3] ||e Je Jiels DD
yum diysuone|as waal
Buo| s|gein pue aARDaYe
ue aAey 0] SD 9|qeus 01

"SO pue 230X

uaamiaq sdiysuoiie|ad
9jeldoudde

Aldde pue aquosap ol

*2oe|d ul Ind aq

i3snw ‘buijooy Atojeinbad
e wodJj ‘@oueulanob
9jendoidde ayy

T\E£88ETO\Tq! U]

odd

"SD splemol Ajjiisoy
uado ‘sased sawos

ul ‘pue uoididsns 03 spe?|
uonenys siyl ‘|iounod
3y} 03 deqadJ Ajjiqeyyold
9AI309]|0D B 03 }3[gns aJe
DD 03 s9jes ||e Ajjuadin)
SAIHSNOILV13d
SSANISNg

'SD pue sa3ed030a.1q
uaamiaq sdiysuone|ad
23 aquuosap Ajuadoud
pue asodind 404 31} 99

0] poau Sy1S Juadind ayl

SINIWIADV
T3A3T IDIAY3S

(mej
ysi|bu3g ui paulap se pue
D3) |eUIDIXD pue |eRUJIDIUI

yioqg suonenbad yjm
jueldwod aq 3snw SH

IJONVITdWOD
AYOLVIND3IY ANV N3

Page 338



SAHHSYHAH

loeT3]
wea)y

ypne so
M3U 3y} Jo
juswiyinioad
Y3 J9pun
paJ4aA0D
S1S0D

Jeis upny
Mmau ayl
AQ paJanod
S3150D

¢10¢
Jdy Ag

¢10¢
Jdy Ag

Z10¢
22Q 1€ Ag

&
-

"D JO XsiY pue lipny JO peaH a3yl
01 9AIPadsiad aoueldwod |BDIUYDD} B WOody 9|geiunodoe
9q p|hoys Asyl pue podal siyj jJO [1BIDp DYy Ul Jd3e|
paqlIdSap suollpuny XSl pue jipne 3yj Joj d|qisuodsad
99 3Isnw “3sod ul 22U0 ‘siojipne  ayl *pasJopua
Alpaydeaysjoym S| uoloe siyl -uoipuny yipne bulobuo
9yl JoJ 9|qisuodsal g 03 7 JO wed) jpne pauienb
Al@jelddoiadde ue bBuniinudad Jo ssaooldd 8yy ul SISO

'3Ul| Ul JJe3S ||’ 03 Pa3IRdIUNWIWOD
3g pinoys yoiym Adjjod si aijendoisdde ue yeap 03 SO

‘sjuswabuedie
sasiwald ayl Jo suonedydwi 9y bHuipueisispun
pue sabieydal |enuue ayj buioniisuodsp ‘sanigel)
suoisuad ayj ‘jo snieis ayj bulAjuep se yons SH pue DD
JUS) usamiaq saull Azznj ayjy BulAjide[D UO 110JJD SND04

IT

*9o1y0edd

3599 (]|Inquiny)
Adasnpul ay3 buimojjoy
uoipuny 3ipny asodand
Joj 313 e 3dope 3snw SO

*Ad110d Ysiy asodund
Jo4 313 e 3dope 3snw SO

JOX pue SO usamia(q
diysuolie|ad |epueuly
jueldwod Ajjebaj
pue juaJtedsuely Ajny
‘1e9|D> e aAlIyoe o]

T\E£88ETO\Tq! U]

odd

‘SO AQ uaxepapun AjiApDe
[eIDJaWWO0d 3y} JO JuUnodde
ou saye) pue pajulofsip

sI ssao0.4d )pny 9yl :11ANV

‘we
|elpJawwod e 03 ajgedldde
pue jueA|ad sI ydiym

Adi1jod »s11 auoje puels ou

S| aJ4ay3 ao130ead poob jsuiebe
SO bupjlewyousq ul :ISTH

‘seale
9WIOS Ul papaau si Ajluepd
Jayealb sanamoy ‘DO pue
SD Jo saoueuly ay) a1ededss
Al4e3a]D swaisAs bujaunodoe
jualayid 22 ANV SO
N3IaMml3gd dIHSNOILV13A
AVIONVNIA

1T

oT

Page 339



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

*pasijelddawwod
3Yl 18 pI3juswnoop
sjuswabuelte |epueuly  Auy

TT0Z pue Ajlunyioddo
29 1€ Ag Apadoad  9q

1S91|4e9
pinoys

‘spJemio) buiaow

uonesiueblo ayy jo apis ajeand Jo ,2gnd, ay3 ul g

pPINOYS 31 J2Y3layM pue Jlun Ssauisng Yyoaes Jo uoipuny pue

9]oJ ay3 “yun Jo Auedwod yoiym ybnoiyy woym Joj jeym

S0P OUm AJlIB|D "SHUN SSDUISNg |[enpIAIpul pue A}jus

210C 93edodiod ayl J40) S9AIDS[O pue uOISSIW UOISIA Jed|d
ddy Ag e 2oe|d ul 3nd pue aun3jonJ3s jeuonesiuebio ayy Ayjdwis

T

"ME|
pie 91e3s pue
uonnadwod N3
yum aouejdwod
9jeJdysuowap
pue
Aduaiedsueny
paJinbau

3ayj aJnsua o

'SJ1aW0oIsnd
pue |IDuno)
23 wouy
Buipuejsiapun
Jlegpd

aA3IYde 0]

T\E£88ETO\Tq! U]

odd

‘Sa1jus

buipesy ayelso0diod ayj pue [1DUNO)
93 usamilaq sjuswabuedle ayj

JO AjljeIoJawiwod ay) ajedisuowap

03 JuaJsedsueuy Ajjuapuins jou ale
sjuswabuelte ayy Juasaid 1y T¥OI1

‘Buipueisiapun pue Adualedsuel)

Jo >oe| e suapuabuad ‘uonouny

pue 9|04 s} 03 se buibessaw Jeapun
UM pauiquiod ‘sD Jo aunionJls
buiyiys pue painjoAuod syl V931

€T

(4

Page 340



g~

SAGHSYHAT <

A80TF

'€10¢C 4dy ueyl Joie| ou AQq pale|dwod pue aded je
paJdaAlap aq pihoys yoiym swwelboid sbueys pajjoljuod
Aldedoud pue pajeulplo-0d e Jo Med aq 3shw Syl

'syabae] aininy
Buipesw sH 031 2ouspiuod Jajealb aalb pue ssauisng
9yl Jo |enuajod anJ3 9yj JO uolleZI|Ead BY] d|qeud ||IMm
JUSWIISIAUI SIYL "paJdinbad JudWISOAUL BY] JO SWOS 19540
[[IM UdIYyM S324n0sad pue jiels Jo uonedijdde pasndoy
pue Aduapiya Jajealb ybnoayy paaaiyoe aq ||im sbuiaes

'9Sd
JO 9]0Jd 3Y] pue uaepapun A)Jualind uoelapouwl 1axJew
JO 9|0J 24Nn3N} 3Y3 UO UOIIEPUSWILIOID] pIjielap e apnjdul
p|noys Jodal siyl €102 4dy ueyi Jaie| ou Ag aAIINd9X]
juswsabeuely pasinel syl Aq pajuswsdwl aq 03
24N32NJ3S 24n3ny 2yl wuJojul [[IM ydiym odad pajieiap e

I10Z YiM TT0Z 2°2Q ueyl Jaje| ou Ag Xoeq jiodad pue ssadoud
29 T€ A OAVOY 243 buisn malaal youeldq pue 3004 e 1n0 Auie)

€T

‘awwelboud
abueyd
|[equswepuny

e Jo ued se
‘Apoq jueldwod
|ex23]

-uou e pue
[ex233 e Japun
paziuebio swue
buiyesado jo

19s a9sodund J10J
1 e aqudssp oL

T\E£88ETO\Tq! U]

odd

"(939 9Sd Y3 Jo 3jod 3y}
pue - SD ulyym sauniyoniis s1 buipey
uoI1edNp3 Byl puk JuaMNp3 usamilaq

diysuone|as painioed) ayjl ajdwexs
J10J) (ODO) uoneziuebuo juaied

93 JO sjuawadinbal ay3 wody 21j4u0d
ul unJ awos pue asod.nd J0J 1)

J0U aJe awos "paubije Ajadoud jou
2Je Ssjlun ssauisng 9z juaJind ayl

‘awwesboud

abueyd |euswepuny e jo Jed

2Q p|noys siya ‘aJniny ajgeuieisns

e 1l 9AID pue piemio} ssauisng ay)

9A0W 0} padinbad sI swue buiyesado
S} pue SIDJIAYAS TVIDUIWKWOD
40 M3IA3Y @311Ivi3a

vT

Page 341



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

"T Heyd ul paybiybly si ng / Auedwo)d Aq uoinquisip aNUsA.
9yl "uonjesado |elDJSWIWIOD By} JO JDA0UINY |[BJDAO BYj JO 9,88
1oeJ1Ie SHUN SS2UISNG {7 9SaYl 49A0UIN] JO 94,97 Jayuni e dn
Bupjew 399} Juay pue sdwa] doj ud) ‘SDH YIM SO JO J9A0UIN]
[|leJ9A0 3Y} JO 979 03 sjenba YISy eyl ajou jo AyHom si 31

*ZT uoljepuswiwiodal 03 33[gns
S| pue padinbal sI Apnis pajieiap aJow Yy *aJ4ninj sjiun ssauisng
93Ul SulWJ}ep 01 padinbal 3g |[IM MJOM Jaypny SJ9ym pajou
2ABY SM [9A3] D1b23jeJ)s e e MJom Jno dasy 03 Jalig 3yl USAID

*]1I2UN0D 3y} JO swile 23eJ40dJod ay3 wody
U0I303|4op 10 UOIDeIISIP B aJe Jo/puke anjeA buippe inoyim
s [euolleindad e ade ‘snjeA ou ppe Jaylid ||Im eyl asoyy (o
uoalIp
o169jea3s 1DuUNOD Byl 03 paubiess aq pinoys yoiym (q
DD J0 uoissiw
Buiyoietano syl yum paubije aae pue aininy |ead e aaey (e
:S31UN SSauIsNg Ydiym aplosp
3snw 31 uayl [1puno) Ajuno) ayjl spoddns yoiym Alipus d|gela e
SB DAIAINS 0] S| SADIAIDS [eIDJDWIWIOD JUDY JI 1eY] dAIRRIadWI SI 3T

"uolnesiueb.io
2yl siqgiyul Aduadedsuedy Jo >oe| bunnsald pue aoueulaAob
Jea|d Jo yoe| 8yl "[1ounod ayl Jo uoissiw 9)buls ayy 03 aAndnpold
J2junod 3siom 1e pue ‘painioed) 31saq 1 Sl |IDUNOD Ajuno)
2yl yum diysuoinnejal ayj paspul "paAsiyde aq 03 SUoISSIW asay)
JO J3y3d Joj apiaodd Jou S90p 24n3dnJis juadind s3f 'sjeob asayl
199W 0] pauJanob AjpAiRdaye SI pue ‘DD Jo s|eob |jedano sy
0} ‘paubije Ajjendoidde si 31 3eu3 st SO Jo AjjigeIA By} 03 |eldNJD

ar T\EL88ETO\Tq! U]
./
*suibiew

pue sanjeA J40309s a3eAlld yum aull ul si SO Jo Aupgeyyoud
[[ed9A0 2yl "uonesado S|geiA e Jou SI SO 1eyl Aes 03 JouU S| Syl

‘uanobuio) usaq aaey ymmodb pue uopew.loy
S} J0J uosead ay) pue Jem Jo HoJ syl ul 10| USQ Sey uollew.Io)
S}l 40j 2419,p uosied ayj jeyl panbue sq pnod 31  “Jsyjoue U0
yum paubije Jou uaas Ajjewlou Jou AJSAIDP |BIDJoWWOD JO eale
9SJOAIp B 03jul uonetado ue yons Joj utsned ymolb |qipaloul
ue juesw sey ‘s3sod [|e je ‘utbiew jjoid e 2INQLIIUOD 0] SALIP YL

"SDIAIDS
dul|l juody JO AJSAIIBP 9y3 J0oj [1DUNO) Yy jJo sueid dibajeuss
pue suopnique ‘sjeob ayjy Jo SSa0ONS BYI YlM padljjuod pue
pasoddo Ajjeoiiswelp usaq aAey sjeob g auaym Jo sojdwexs
2Je aJayl ‘uone|os! ul Ajjigeljoid U0 931RJJUBDUOD 0} DININD
e sobeunodus oOs|e J1 swealls anuaAad buiuiejad pue bupestd uo
pasn20) 9q 03 SD USAMP sey 3 1S|IyM asnedaq aAlonpodd Jajunod
us9q SAem 2wo0os Ul sey SIyl ‘|IDUnNo) ayj 03 suinjad ayj aseaddoul
03 19b64e] JedA uo JedA e ul Buiynsad DOY uo uledis Aleyebpng ayy
AQ uaAlp ua3aq sey ymodb siyl (DdM) [1punod Ajunod jud) pue
J]9S11 usamiaq yul| d16a3ed3s Aue 3noyyim Ajjediuebao umolb sey sH

‘ed wWQQOF 419A0 JO J9A0UINY
e pue uoisinoldd 221AJ9S JO Xiw ybnoaoyl e sey pue (DDY) |1PUN0)
AJuno) uay Ag paumo AjJoym si ‘JaAsmoy SO 'SIDIAIBS Jo 2dods
JI9Yl Ul pajwl| SJow ydnw aJde pue M) ale Siyy 03 suoindaoxs
9yl "Ajuoyiny |ed07 Buo ueyl aJdow bHupussaiadad s991IWIWIOD
juswabeuew Aq papuny pue paulanob siae pue ‘paseq-i3nwi
9Je BIMIOSUOD ]SOl ‘eIJOoSu0) buiseydind JuswWUIdA0L) |BDOT J0J
[9pOW UOWWOD B MO||0J J0U S30P (SD) SODIAIDS |BIDISWWO0) JUdY

Page 342



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

"S19ydew uiepao
wody ssaoodd [emedpyim ayl buluueld aq mou pjnoys uoizesiueblio
dyl |emedpyiim  pue bBupesspow ‘buiiojus  Aq  paAalyde
9g p|noys yoiym ssadolad obeis 994yl B SI uoileISpow e

'SjUN 9say3 Jo mainad ybnoioyl e Aq paysiigelss
9q AuO ued siyl -uJdniad |epueudly ayjy 03 jeuolpodoadsip
S| sjlUn ssauisng 4z 40 9ijoid ay3 Jo ,|1e3, 3yl JO »si |euoneindal
Ay} ‘AjgsdaAuo) YISyl ‘ssaulsng  du0 UjlIM  pajeloosse
Sl 1DUN0D) AJUNOD U3 0] >su |epueul Jo Ajydolew 3sea oyl

ST T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

odd

")SId JO |9AJ] IjeUlWIdIdpUl ue
je ssauisnq 3y} sind SAIIND3XT DAIFDDYD UB Ul JUDWISDAUI
9jenbape j1noyym uonesiuebio ayy jo yimodb pasayiajun
pue dJiueb.lo 3yl ey} DUIWLIDIBP ued I\ "UOoISSIWIWOD
SIy} Jo sadidsne ayj Japun sn 0} udalb dcuepinb d13103ds
93Ul Yyym dduepdodde ul podas Siyjy ul syun ssauisnq
214109dS U0 JUDWIWOD Pp3JIL}9p WOJL} pauledjd2d dAeYy IM

T Heyd

000000708
000°000°00T

000°000°0S T

Jaaouanm
SD40 %S'T

juasaidal
sassauisng
2T @sayL

000°000°00Z

J3A0UIN}

SD 40 %S0T Jaaouuny SO Jo
juasauda. %88 Juasaidal
sassauisng 6 sassauisng

+ doj ayl

000°000°052Z

Wwiz> WOTF - WiF WOTF 48A0

J2A0ulny Aq seiuedwo) / sjiun ssauishg S9IAISS [eIDIaWWo))

Page 343



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

"(,SD 4O malAaL pajIeIR(Q, T "09Y)
M3IADJ QYO Buipnoul ‘g U0I3D3S Ul SUOIIEPUSWILIODAI 3] ||B
bunesodiooul auldwil e smoys abed 3xau ayjy uo ueyd jues ayl

‘SISAjeue paseq 32UapIAS uodn paseq suoISIDap
paw.Jojul @ ew 03 pieog BuluISA0D 3Y3 9|geua |[IM YdIym avoy
J0 aseyd 23e3Ua1I0 Y] UO 2g P|NOYS SNJ0J 3Y3 SIYl 3|geus o

*Apoq
[elJawwod d|geuleisns pue a|qejjold ||edaA0 ue ul bupeuwind
wJe yoes Joj ajeudoudde se ‘suonepuswwodad |esodsip Jo
9|es ‘uonjuajad bujulysp suolldo pa3sod JO 39S B WIoUl |[IM UDIYA

2DUdPJUOD
poddns aji] panuiauo) e

[0J3U0D uonelnbiyuo) e
Ajjiqede] e

3s0D e

9ledsawl] e

JOAII2Q 03} 31BN 3U3 Jo AjIqy e
Ajiqepioyy e

1SMOJ|0} se ‘suolrdo uleys Ajddns o1bajedis ayjl aseq 03 yoiym
uodn 2ouabij|a3ul |BIPNID BWOS SI MAIADY AVOY e Jo Indino ayl

Ajs1aAlun
p|aue.)d 1e 3100l plAeQ 1Q pue Odg JO uosiaydo uel Ag psubissp sem QvOY ,

91 T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

odd

aJedwod
OQm _ un w_:w_nM“: asodsip A ajes 3 ss0p >
_um “ umnwmmw A uohusial Jo MoH 2
4 od S$3149Uaq A 53502 3 1M Buoj
uorjedsyidads ay3 ajenjeAs MOH ;Spaau
Jaded suonydo pue 398pnq pue suonnjos 1o sjuem ¢9)qussod
apiaoad wuoyut awy 0} spasu puE S5Wo3N0 J3Wo3sNd st 3eYm
03 uoyinjos 19POW AJBALSP  asoyy JaAlap [erusiod ayrleym  ialqepioye
a)qeutelsns mhﬂ.;e pue 03 39w uo mu:w.m:_mu:_ J9AL)9p ) ue) sl Jeym
ajerdosdde 3503 ‘syndino sy yo Ayiqe Jouren
Wow  SYIBUPNPUL  ay3 yam uSHe e aedde wie
au3 uo ap1rag suondo Jeuyy 03 ‘as1iaxa sishjeue 343 pue Ayiqedes puny Suipesy
ayyautfag a3 yo syndino 30 suorjesyjduwt “fyoedes FULYEIEY
ays 3snlpy ay3 3103)494 03 - 19)ew ay3 jo
(2IDJULIO, MON Jeusaixa  sIndino ayy jo

Ay} 8AJasqo  Suawalinbau
a3 Yo4pasay

ﬁ
DEFLE |

IN¥3s90

$5920.d @QVO0Y YL

'suoIN|os
uleyd Ajddns oaAnposyje pue jueldwod Ajebsl ing ‘buisidans
ul 3nsaJ ued ssadold 2yl Jo uonediddy 39s1n0 3yl wody ,uaAlb, 4o
pawnsse si uieyd Ajddns ayj noge buiyjou 3eys si Abojopoyizaw
33 JO 2402 33 1y ‘|epow uleyd Ajddns Aue jo sabeis uoljeledaud
pue bujuueld sy 031 anjea ppe pue Ajjdwis 03 padojaasp
usaq sey aJdnpadouad siyl 'ssaoold ,@AVO¥ 9yl buisn pamaladl
sI saiddns Ajuno) JO wJe yoes Jey) puswiwodal ap  waa) Buoj
33 ul 9|qeuieisns pue punos Ajeba| ‘esodind Joy 314 ‘o3eudouadde
sI [opow bHunesado aianjny Syl 1eyy aJ4nsus 03] doys Ixau
9jelidoldde ue S| S92IAIDS |RIDJDWWOD JUdY dn aXew jeyjy suwie
[BIDJSWWIOD 93U} JO MIIASJ yduedq pue joo0d e jeyiy asodoud o

Page 344



SAHHSYHAA

ew idy JeW gqa4 uer 28 AON 320

&
-

LT

T\E£88ETO\Tq! U]

odad

"350D g S9|edSaW|} 03 AISA|IPp aJnsu]
*ue|d jo ssauboud uo podal pue Jojuow ‘931eUIpI00D

|eusaixy ‘DAuQ "ueld uoljewlojsuely pajieisp dojpaag| jusdawabeuep dwwelsbold 0
SO ¥ DO)| 10U BUO ‘|BXYD9] BUO SHUN SSDUISNG D32IISIP OM3 WO
SO O (O71V) Sssauisng auoje pueis e 93N}ISUOD AjjewioS ainpnis| T
)| Jo3oaag buibeuely Aindag syl 03 podad 03 SO ubijeay saull bunoday Z
[Se) wea] 9AIINI9X] JNIOSY 9ANNd3dX3| ¢
syped juanjijsuod sy pue
p)| 3|oym e se A3jua SO 404 S9AI3I3[GO ‘UOISSIN ‘UOISIA leba1| z1
1pny Jo awwelboud 3snqod
SO 3 DO dojaASp pue slojipne S) MaU Z paguia pue InIosy upny| 11
SO 3 DOM A21|0d YISty MaN Ino |jol pue dalbe ‘Yelq ASR| 0T
Sk Nel)| s9|es uodn paseq sa31e10323liq 03 saieqad Alddy sdiysuone|ay ssauisng 8
JDX pue SO usamieq
o)) SY1S 231ka1d ‘AIRSS9239U 2I9UM ‘pue puswe ‘M3aIASY| sjudwaalby |9A] IJIAIBS |  /
SO 3 OOM pleog AIOSIApY 231e31D)
Sek:jele)] pleog Buiuianon ajeald 2duURUWIdA0D| €
|ewtsixg| sauedwo) py1 / snd SO I8 40 MIIASI Yduelq pue 100y SD JO Mm3lIAdI pajiedda +1
"sjuswabue.ie || as||ejoJaWwwWod 1DD) pue §) uaamiaq
SO ® OO)| pue juawndop pue Aynbique |ejoueuly jo seale AJue|d diysuone|ay jepueuly (€1 B 6
jusawaindo0.d asuejdwo)
SO 3 OO 40 pesH 03 SO dwW wouy diysuolie|al usp.iey Aojeinbaygna| o9

0)0)/

Goid "2gD "6 salpog Sd 40y
Jabeuew diysuolle|ay Se juswalndold jo peaH juioddy

sa1poq 10303s olqnd
19430 yum diysuone|ay

weal}s)iopy

Page 345



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

*Auianuos ybnouyy 4o Aj3oadip Jaylie SO JO AJAIRDR Byl uonsanb
03} [1DUN0D By} Jo Jaquiaw Aue Joj Ayijige ayl aAlb 01 paysigelsa
(g 1snw sjuawajd aAoge ay] Jjo buiuodal jo swwedboud dadoud vy

‘sajedado
SO yoiym ybnouyy sassauisng pue siaydew Jo abued asIaAIp
9y} Jan0d 03 ybnous passndo) Jo dioads jou ade pue d1bajedys
Aj2and ag 031 shoJawnu pue 2Buab 00] aJae SHSK Byl ‘4aAamoy
suolyelado s31 Jo ajoym ayy bulianod Ja3sibad sl e aAeY S20p S

"9AI1303JJ9 2J9M Sassad0.4d juswabeuew si1 puno.Je s|oJjuod
Ul 1By} oduednsse ,|elyueisgns, paplaodd [IDUNOD By} UIYIM
Juswabeuely Msiy U0 91110[9Q AQ MIIASJ |BUJIDIXD UB 1BY] SI31e1S
3 Jodad |enuuy 1Ipny |BUJDIUT 9Y3 Ul “I9ASMOH °SD J0J Ajjeolinads
aoe|d ul Adij0od juswabeuely XSiy e 2q 03 Jeadde jou ss0p aJdayl

JIPNY Jo pesH ay1 03 aul|
|euolssajold 10a41p B 9ABY puB [12UN0D) AJUNOD JUDY I ©9]WILIO0D
Jpne ulew ayj ojul Aenbad Jodad pinoys weay upny SO Syl

SJOM |[IM SIY3 MOY UO ‘Uoijpuny 3pny |eulajul SO wod) ybnos
g p|noys a0IApY -uejd 3ipne |eulalul |[enuue ue jo juawdoaAsp
9Yl SWod |IM  YdIiym Jo 3Ino. swuweltboid 3pne |eulaiul
(sdeaA g-¢) 21bajedys paseq ysid umo s3I dojaaap os|e pinoys SH

*(S1y3y ssadppe 03 uoljow Ul a4e s|aym
93} pue poaadbe uaaq Apeadje sey $924n0SaJ 9SaY] JO JusWNIDD
9yl 'gN) °saipuajadwod |epJawwod Jo 39s-1ybl ayy yum Jjeis
AgQ udayejapun 9q isnw jipne syl "IJIAJSS Jpne |euJajul 3sngod
2I0W B Spadu SO ‘SMIIABL |BUJDIXD SholAadd Ul payiuapl sy

8T T\E£88ETO\T ! UO|
./
*S9JIAJIDS 9S0Y) ubljeay e

DD JO S91eJ0308lIp
|leuonesado ayy poddns 03 S9IIAISS S|GRUIRISNS JBAIIRQ ©

101 Ajigodd anp yym syoe pue asodand 4oy 314 SI
1Byl 24Nsua 03 ssauisng ay3 ubijeal 03 sI Z10Z 03 TT0Z 120 pouad
9yl J9A0 DAIINIS9XJ 9y} pue pdeog 9yl JO |04 pue Shd0) dYL

*(ssnosip) suibiew
pa4inbal ay3 ew [|Im 3} dwi} ydiym burnp z10z |Hdy pue 110Z
1990300 pouad ayj JaAo paubisap 9 pINoYs aJ4nidNJis mau syl

'saniunljioddo ssauisng jueAsjad asiwixew
pue ansind 03 SjuieJlsuod ayil Jo 234} I bBuiaes] swiy swes
ay3 1e 3s|iym uonesiuebio syl jo buojiuow pue [0J3U0D ‘UoiDAIP
2INSUD [|IM S224nosaJ 23enbape pue swwelsboud pne [eudsiul
1SNQOoJ 2JOoW B YjIM pauiquiod aJnidonais Siyl [1ouno) Ajuno)d
U9 03 oeq Ajljigeiunodde Jo (saull 234yl Ajuo pue) saull @34y
UM 24Nn30NJ3S 9dURUIDA0S Mau pasodoad e smoys abed jxau ayl

*3|21IUSA 3Y3 SAIIP UBD DAI3INI9XT 3Y3 S9]1RUIPI00D YdIymM
jsuiebe ‘uonesiuebio ayjy Jo uolPBUIp pue 3sanod dibajedis ay)
Heyod [[Im SIyl wie jeym 03 Ajjuenodwl 3sow pue padaAlop aq
159Q 11 ued Moy ‘SH wod) palinbal si Jeym ysijqelsa 01 SI2qUIDIA
pue W dnoJo ‘uspesT 8yl JO UOISIA pue uejd [DUNOD Auno)
3yl yum aujll ul sajdpund 3saiy 01 Moeq ob 03 pasu e s| ausyl

'9UO |e|DUeUl B sem ‘Junodde 0] play buiaq sem uoljesjueblo
2yl yoiym Joj ‘3obuaey Ajuo ayl sH Joj 9jod pue wie od1bajedis Aue
JO 9oussge syl sem adueutsnob jo eade ayy ul buipuly ulew ayy

Page 346



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

6T T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

oagd|

(r N ([

|e)29] UoN
\

N

(zx)
3IpNY aAIsUsYaIdwo) sloupny SO

3PNy jO pesH DO

|eX3al

/ (0O1V) S92IAI3S [eDJD2WWO0)D)

J)

DIApe |euonesado pue jusawabeuew 1axJep

pieog AloSINpY

2oueldwod Auojeinbad pue N3

JUu”Wia.indo.dd JO pesH OO

Juawsbeuew psiy ‘@duewuojiad
|leipueulq ‘bumas 3abae] ‘dioipaliqg o1bajens

pieog bunesado

24N30N.J11S 20URUIDAOY ,39 OL,

Page 347



'S10)ipne S) 3.l pue aJly 0] JaMOd "UJadUu0d JO seale Aue ssalppe 03
uaye) aJde sainseaw ajelidoisdde pue ) Jdoj pajuswsa|dwi pue padojaasp
s| awwelboud ypne ajelidoidde pue aAlsusyaldwod e jeyy e aJnsud 0]

11dNVv 40 dV3H 3o

‘suone|nbad pue me| Juswalndoldd N3 Yyam soueldwod S aINsus 0]

1INIWIINOOUd
40 dV3H OO

‘(soopualie juauewdtad) aAlNd9X3 Byl
(DD 03 |rUJISIXD) 2AlRRIUSSDIdDI JUBID
(£X) 10329413 SAIINIDXI-UON

SO jJ0 J1030alIQ ey

‘sue|d asoy] 198w 03 ymodb paemuoj pue suejd ssauisng
J0 ssaudjelidoidde ay3 uo adiApe aAI6 pue aAl30adsaad pasnooy 1axdew
e wo.y s1abue] 19w 03 MOY SD JO DAIINISXT Juswabeuel ayl asSIApY

QUvOo9 AJOSIAQY

‘Auedwod 19XJde|y JO peaH e
Auedwod |e)03] JO peaH e
[UUO0SJDd JO peaH e
suonelsadQ Jo peaH e
[BIDJ2WWO)) JO pEoH e
doueuld JO peaH e
SD JO J00RlIq e "ue|d ssauisng ayj Jo AJdAlI9p |euollelado ay3l Ino Added o JAILND3IXI SO
‘(@93AuU] Jusuewdad) SO JO J0DBIIg e ‘buinyas 1obue] A
(wi23ul) asudaajug pue 2ouew.oliad s,uoineziuebio ayj Joj 32UIgRD BY3 0] JUNOIDY “IA
JUSWUOJIAUT J0J 1030341 93elodlo) e syobpnq [enuue aAolddy A
(0121JJ0 X3) JuBWIND0.Id JO pEaH e S924Nn0SsaJ |elpueuly 93enbape Jo Ajljige|ieAR 9U3 24nNsug Al
(TX) pieog AJOSIAPY WO} D9XD UON SO Jo Jo30auiq bulbeuely
DD J030841Q |eldueUl{ o | 2U] Jo 2ouewaopad ayl buimalaad pue buipoddns ‘buijuiodde “aas il

slaquiay
j8UIgeD :SJaqUIBy JUBUBW.IRd

Jo3yoalig buibeuely Aindaq :a1eyd

saARdalqo
pue saijod peouq buiysijgeise Agq uonieziuebio ayl UIBA0D “II
SD JO 3|04 dY3 SpIdap pue uoidauip d1bajedis ayy 39S I

QUVvO9 ONINYIAOD

dIHSY3IGWIW

‘awin
Aue 1e Auinuos ybnouayy 40 Adaldip Jayiid SO Jo AjiAIde ayj uonsanb o]

'90UBINSSE pue |0J43u0d 93enbape apiaoldd saipoq asay)l pue paysi|qelss
Aldadoud aue paeog AIOSIAPY pue pJeog BuluiaAoL) ayj ainsus o]

13INIGVI B IWD

AdO9 IDNVNYIAOD

Page 348



103U 0D pue SuLIolLUOW

(91eALId)

Auedwo) gg uoLIDSS

Auedwo)
G6 UOL1O9S
40 pesH

suolyeladp
JO pesH

Jouu0s.Iad
Jo pesH

-
(3tpny Jo
(dnanq) PDaH D) 03 110d>1)
Auedwo) expal awuweigold

pny

Zﬂmﬁ.ﬂu JeloJawwo) aoueuL
T [ Jo pesH Jo pesy

juaWa.lindoldd

aouendwon jeusayul pue N3

30 pesH DO

53 d039ild pJeog AIOSIAPY
ey
|
aw Aindag
)/ pJeog SulU19A09)

Jrey)

Jaquiaw o1dYj0 X3

24n)onJ3s uonesiuebiQ aining pasodoud

Page 349



SAHHSYHAH

&
-

44 T\E£88ETO\TQ!UO|
—
odad
'sOR1 Bulisixa 419yl 49A0 IdNL PINOM pue
saluedwod om} ayl Aq paAojdws aq p|nom Jjjeis bujujewas syl e
DO AQ paAo|dwa 8q p|NOM DAIINIDXI DYl o
20X J0
di Aandaqg 03 aui| buipioday |euoissajold e sey SO JO JOORIIQ e
pleog BuluiaA0D 3Y3 0] 9|qeIUNOIIR S) JO JOJddIIq
sobieyoal
pue suoiINqg3uod sawayds uoisuad juadedsuesy A|jnd e
(aAin2ax3
ay3 buipnjoul) ajoym ay3 Jo4 sjunodde Jo 39S djeledas e
swuwesboud
Jpne aAisuayaJldwod pue ajeledas AQ |0J3u0D pue BulIO}IUO e
(pleog AlosinpY
3] UO SJ0303l4Ip 2AIINDaXD uou pled) abuajjeyo juspuadapuy e
(aA1Indaxa Jabuouls) souspuadapul Juswasbeuew 1913l e
(1Puno) 03 31 buldylal) 24n3onuls adueuIdA0b dleledas e
Buipueul J|as A|ln4 e
:sol3sa3oeseyd buimo||o) ay3
sey 1l J|9syl ul Ayjus [eba| e jou sI OV dY3 IS|IYM  10303s jeAld
2yl yym apedy pinod yoiym (Auedwod p31) Auedwod GES auo pue
(4o3o03s o1ignd 8yl 03 sadi1AIas bulpiaoad) |ex09) auo ‘seiuedwod
pounRsip om) pue doy AJSA Byl Je aAlRNIaxX3 ue jo Hunsisuo)d

‘9bed snoinaud sy uo weusbeip ayy ur umoys si bBbuisodoud
aJde am 3eys (O1v) uonesiuebip ybua s,way ayj JO a4n3onays ayl

Page 350



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

‘spJemioy buiaow
uonesiuebio ayy Jo oapis a1eald Jo oignd, 2yl ul 2q plnoys
J J3yjaym pue Jun ssauisng yoea Jo uoipunj pue 9|04 J3A0 Ajle|d
aJow sadinbad jiun 4o Auedwod yoiym ybnodyy woym Joj jeym
S90p OYym J9A0 Aduadedsuely JO >De| 9yl uoREpUDWIWOIDY

"aA0Qge
pauoiuaw se AuilnidS pue 2JUBUIBA0D g Apny ‘Iauiged ybnoayy
saoue|eq pue S3o9yd Yjim asuewdopad Jo buipodad Jenbad alow
yiam pajdnod abuajjeyd juspuadapul aAI6 03 SJ03024Ip SAIINISXD
-uou bBunuiodde - sajuedwod ayj Jo yoea Jo uoipaldip d1bajedys
9yl uayibuaays 03 (pasiuebuoas 2o3u0) sajuedwod Yyl JO yoea
uo sJ0joaJdig pue saAnejuasaldal Jaquaw se pajuiodde s| oym
JO MBIADJ B ©Q 0] Spaau aJayj }nsal B Se — JUIISIXd UOU seale
awos ul bupiodas pue yeam S| [1IDUNOD By} 01 Mdeq AlljIgeiunoddy

*s)oxJdew juadaip ul buineiado ‘saluedw o) pajwi ajeldedas
aJe aJayy 1eyy Buipueisyiimiou ‘SH UIYIM puewwIod JO uleyd
9|buis e aq 03 sieadde alayl pue |BWIUIW S| JUSWIA|OAUI Joaquiawl
‘Alauanbaugjul pjay aJe sbunssw pieoq ‘danamoy ‘Auedwod ayi
JO S3Sa433ul 3S9q 2Y3 Ul 30e 03 padinbad aie saluedwod Jo S10303l1g

*pasi|elnJawwod
pue Ajunjoddo 3sajJdes  ayy 38 pajusawnoop  Apadoud
9q p|hoys sjuswabueldle |epueul) Auy iuoRRpUIWWOdDY

*sayua buipedy ajelo0dlod ay3y pue |IDUNO)D
a3} usamiaq sjyuswabuedie ayj Jo AjjeIdIaWWIOD Y3 jedjsuowap
0] juasedsuedy Appuauins jJou aJde sjuswasbuedle ayy Juasaud y

€¢ T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

odd

‘soaA0|dwa 65 Juoddns Jo puiy Joylo Aue JO SIDIAIDS
JoJ buioesquod ul Jo (uopesiuebio jJo adAy syl Jo) saied dJew
1e 9q pjnoys Alinba/sueo| a'1) Ajeueul Jayaym ‘Ajuoyine
ay3y AQ pasipisgns aq j0u 3shw pue 1ybu Jo se Ajuuoyine ayl yiim
syoeJjuod Jofew uaAlb ag jouued Ydiym ‘Gges Japun pawdo) usapyo
JPIYaA bBuipesy bupey 19x4ew e Ajpuodas pue (0Iysaa buipeu;
Ayued paiyy e jou) juswadndodd wody uondwaxs [BMI9l By
Uulyyim |jeJ Ajjennualod pinod yaiym 3 03 Aj3oadip Sa0IAISS BullaAlap
pue AjJoyine |ed0| 3yl AQ pI3)|0Jlu0d pue pauMo ||13S INg pawIoy
9Je 1eyy asoyl :sauniondis aledodiod Jo sadAl om] ade adsyl

*Xauuy ay3 Ul 3N0 39S S| Juswaandoud
pue siamod uo uopewJloul Jayun4 "10309s ajeald ay3y yym joud
Joj bBuipesy |episawwod s| aAlow Asewad ayy ausym padinbad
99 ||IM JDIYSA 23jedodlod B JU9ASMOH sannus |ebs| ajeledas
Buiysijgeisa 3noym J|9sii |12Uno) 3yl Aq pasiniaxa 2q ued siamod
Buipesy pue buibieyd ayj Jo 1so|y ‘paisi| se saipoq dlgnd Jayjo jo
spuesnoyl YiIm 0/6T PV (S9IAISS pue SpooD) saljlioyiny |ed0T]
Y] ajdwexa 404 ‘3joid e axew pue apedy pue SadIAISS 104 abaeyd
ued sojjdoyine |ed2o| yoiym Japun siamod Jo yjjeam e bBuiaq
24yl ‘Buipey jedpiunw jnoge suondaouodsiw Auew aJde adayl

'SI9aWo03snd
JIdYy Jo Jeyag uo sond juswadnooldd syl Aidde isnw ‘sH
9SeD S|y} ul pue ‘ejuosu0) ‘dAIDRUIIQ SIIPaWDY vy juswa|dw
0} 600¢C Ul suone|nbas juswpuswe yum buoje 9oQz suonenbay
S)oeJIU0D SIJIAIBS Jlignd 9yl ybnodyl N ayz ul pLjuswsjdwl
ua9(q 9ABY S3|NJ JUBWDIND0Id "S3|NJ uonizedwod pue juswalndold
Buipnpul ‘93je3s Byl U0 103J0 IDBUIP DABY eyl SDAIRIId
N3 AQ punog os|e ale pue uolje|siba| Juswuianob |ed0| Jo 2dods
3y} UlYyyMm 0B 03} padu Ssanloyine |ed0| ,931N3elsS JO Saudnieadd, sy

Page 351



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

A
(uod3i31) A

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

paMBIAIDIUT

144 T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

odd

S92IAI9S Anadold OO umo.g |9bIN

9OUBUIDAOY pue meT Jo pesH PIIM 11095

Qoueuld Jo 103da4g poop Apuy

DD JusWaindold Jo peaH N7 sUyD

DD wea] adueuld pesH yied

saluedw o) py1 2yj uo Jo3dadig Jaudned aodualneT

(saluedwo) ajeAld JO spleog Uuo J10323aliq) gD 00D Aleo
y3asvl JojAe] pineg

101 JO pesH 9]0g J431=d

(sanddns Ajuno) jua)y) |1e19Y Aepuniy UaA91S

aoueuld d1691e131S JO pedaH uos|no) sa

poddns ssauisng pue adueuld 10} Jaquidly 1Lpuiged spuowwiIs uyor
Jdo3oaua1g buibeuely dnoio [I9MSID)Y uAIyiey

Jaquialy 1Luiged ybnoo 1aboy

Jaquialy 1Luiged pue|}eams ueAlg

(WdIUT) S92IAIDS |BIDJBWILIOD JO 101D3lIq ybrey aiqgqaqg

voddns pue Abajeuls ssauisng Jo J03dadig 93eiodio) pue Jo3dadig buibeuely Aindag uingy20) piaed
9sudi9iug pue juswuoldiAug 40312341g 33eldodio) Auaglalsny I
9]0y aweN

1SIT MIIAYILNI - | XANNV

Page 352



SAHHSYHAH

&
-

S¢ T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

odd

saliddns Ajuno) Judy 404 ue|d JBDA € GC
(sng pue sauedwod) ain3doniis 231e10diod 3Y3 JO UOISIDA DIU0JIID|T 2
sbuidnoub 1swoisnd Jo s|ielap peolg €7
voday HINdY 01 sasuodsau Juswabeuely 2z
1935169y sieauy] 21633e11S / 193S169Y Msiy 23es0dio) 12
LWAIQ 404 Heyd uoljesiueblQ 0z

Jaded buipaadong dasy 03 abueyd) 61

Jaded ,pieog buipel], !S82IAISS [BIDJBWWIOD) JO 9DUBUIBA0Y J10) |esodold 8T
Jaded 12Aeq Buigeus ayl, /T

SDYl 9Sh 03 pajepubew Sa2IAISS JO s|ieyaq 9T

soyoJ4eas Auedwo) asnoy saluedwo) GT

diysiauped Apaqr buipnjoul sjuswabuedte uoljednado/Apadold SOY Jo sjielad 1
MBIADY S[SPOJN UOI3BDONPT 10} 22UB1943Y JO SWID | DMJ €T
AD1|0d 92UBUISA0D UOI3RULIOJUT DM 7T
30afoud ayj) Joj sispjoyaxels Asy jo Isi|Ind 1T
SO Ul sassauisng ay3 J04 su23sIbay Msiy 0T

600¢ H0day uolsswo) IpNY 6

900C Hoday 24j0y sauleg 8

900¢ Hoday uojuioy] juess /

ue|d [BIDUBUL} WD ] WNIP3A 9

YISV JO M3IASY 1eld DINGA S

X00g anijg 3oNpuoy jO ap0o) JDN ¥

DDX pue SDO) Usamlaq sy11S €

TT/0T0Z Hoday pny |eulaul

dnoio SO g DY 10) suey) uoljesiuebip alep 01 dn 31saje] T

POMBIIADI SJUBWINDOQ JO ISIT

d3IMIIATY SINIWNDOOA 40 1SIT - € XANNV

Page 353



&
SAHHSYHIAT S

'sbuines Juediyiubis anaiyoe 03 sassadoud jJuswabeuew
Alobajed obps bBuipes| ybnouyiy aunjipuadxs [eUIDIXD
Jo seade Jolew [|e ul Juswaindoid aAI3BRI0qR||0D JDAIIRP
01 0T0Z Ul saioyine ayy Ag paalbe uoissiw pasueyua
pue pamaual e paAladal Ajjuadad sey OdaN ‘Senuoyiny
|20 3Sse3 YMON ZT 94l wody siaquaw buisudwod
2913IWWI0) julor e AQ pauJdanob sI 9/6T Ul paysljqeisa
sem uoljesiueblQ juswalindoldd 1se3 YyHoN 3yl - OdaN

1eaA ay3 3noybnouyy puads Jiayy uo paseq
syjoad s,uonesiuebio ayy Jo abejusoisad e ybnouyl
sbuiaes Jayuny yum siswolsnd buipinold ‘swayds
puspinlg AjleAoT adeys 3Jyodd mau S payoune]
OdA ‘0T0Z Ul ‘-uoisuedxs pue juswdojaAdp ssauisng
JoJ pasn s yoiym snjdins [jews e axew 03 JeaA yoea
syobpnq pue bunsoddns-}19s sI OdA ‘Ajdoyine Jaquawl
Aue wod} Apisgns Jo 8244 ‘JaAoudny ed wWOOLF € yim
1JB1S 00t sAojdwa ‘SDH 03 SaDIAISS Jejiwis sapianodd OdA
*99131WW0D Julof e se Sa13oYyINe JUSN}ISU0D €T WO
soAljejuasaldal pa1dde JO 99)IWWO0D juswabeuew
e AQ paumMO-0D SI 11 SJIYSHIOA 1SS Ul paseq S| OdA

'saloyne
Jaquiaw Joy uoiouny  juswsalnooud oi1bajeus
e 1no bBulAiied 03 pajedipap Sl JSA0OUJN] pue swin
4JB1S Jo Junowe abie| e 3nQg ‘U4aAoulnN} WQOOHF € YIm SO
0] SIDIAIDS Jejlwis Ajpeolq 4940 Aayl sanuoyny /
AQ 99731LUWIOD AQ UNJ MOU S| pue T86T A|JBD Ul pawlloy
‘wni3Josuod uoianguasip pue buiseyodnd Ajlloyine |eoQ)
e sI (uonesiuebig buiseyoind saliys uiaisel) ods3a

9¢ T\E£88ETI\Tq!"uO|

L/

:193dew ay3 Jo Japuiewad ayj Jo awnsal y (DdD 9jdwexa

Joj) sdnoub bHuiseyound Juabie| jo diysieqwaw ybnoayy Jamod
Bbuiseyound Jioy3 bBuibeaans) siseq pasijedo] aiow e uo bunesado

0} S9A|eSWaY] oIsad Asyl asnedaq J0 paumo  Apuiof ade
Ay} @snedaq Jayilo ‘S|apowl JUaJa4ip UO MJOM ulewal ey} asoyl

JB9A e uol||lw 0SF JO J9AOUIN] B Sey pue
9|doad Q0T sAojdwa Ajyusiand salddnsg eppJay 1S9M
'9|qeyyold A1dA [13S si 31 IS[IYym ssauisng dy3y |[9S 03
ybid si 31 9A312q pue SaniAlRde 2402 Jidy)y ul buisaaul
01 Ajuoud oAb 0] pasu Asyl 3eyly poplap aAeYy
|IDUNOD UP{SJAN pue pJoj|ol pue [1puno) adiysdodys
‘1IPUNOD 2JIYSpJojalaH ‘[1Iouno) AJunoD 2JIYsSao3Sa240MN
AQ paumo Apuiof si sajddng Ajunod epJd| 1SN .

‘uoisinold
SDIAJDS UIN] XD03S 0J9Z B 13JJ0 03 3|ge aJle pue suibiew
paonpaJd oAey oOym Iddew J40303s aieaud buibueyd
e uodn pawe|q SI 24nsop ‘4edA siyy |udy ul wue
[eloJawwod salddng si pasod [1Duno) AJuno) UuoAdQ -

‘wnIJosuo0) ayl JO aweu ay) Japun 10323s dljgnd
34l 0] S3DIAISS Bwes 3y Jo Japiroid 10309s areAnd
e se sajeldado A[nNJSsadNs mou pue 66T Ul IN0 Ang
juswabeuew e 03 393lgns sem |1IDUNo0D AJUNoD aJIYSIIM -

19002 Ul 0dS3 03 uoisialg
sal|ddns Jidy3 p|os [1DUho) Ajuno) adiysuojdweyjloN .

‘lepow
SIyy woJd) Aeme Buirow ‘Buliapisuod aJde Jo ‘panowl dABY SailIAIDe
[EIDJBWWOD 1O Salojs pey Oym Sssanilloyne [edo0] Jo Jaguwnu vy

AdVIOSANVY1 ¥0103S J1149nd
AVIDUYIWWOD 3FHL 40 NOILdINOS3AAd - € X3INNVY

Page 354



SAHHSYHAH

&
-

LC T\E/88ETO\TQ! UO|

odd

‘papnejdde aqg pjnoys ysiym jusy Yjim adueljje ue wdioy ol
9J1YspJojaH 104 Jud3ul ue si a4ayl ed W/TF "D JO JOAOUIN] B YUM
Apoq auojepuels pJiyy ayl si saiddng Ajuno) aJiysp.lojyiaH

‘ed wWQpF> Jo JoAoudn] e sey ] “eade adiysweybuijjon
9Yl Ul SJ0pds Aldejunjon  pue 2yqnd oyl ‘uswutanob
[BD0] Ul SJBWO03SND SAISS pue |Duno) Ajuno) adiysweybuipjon
Jo  ned e sI s3anddns Ajuno) aJiysweybuijjoN

‘suolyesiuebio Asejunjoa pue sdnoldb Ajjlunwiwiod bupjew
jjosd-uou Auew pue sjooyds 3juspuadapul ‘s|IDUNOD  JPLISIP
‘uojdweyinos pue yinowsHod ‘adiysdweH ul suoijels aldiy pue
9o110d ‘salelqi| ‘sswoy Sa2IAJIRS JNpY ‘sab3)j0d ‘S|ooydS SIDIAISS
3 ‘ed uoljiw QOTIFO SI JoAouan]  TJuswauandold goud Jo ued
os|e aJe A3yl ‘DgD Jo Jaquiaw e Sy “wniposuo) bulAng jediua)
a1 Jo Jaqwaw e pue ((sgdD) juswiiedaqg S92IAI9S Ssauishg
pue saiuNWWo) ‘ainjind 8yl uiyum Ajjoym) [puno) Ajuno)d
aJiysdweH jo jun ssauisng e si salddns Ajuno) aJiysdweH

:aJde
BUSJE JUSWUJISA0D) |BD0T 23U} Ul S|2poW 3uoje pueis a4yl ayl

Page 355



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 356



	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 4 July 2012
	4 Protocol relating to companies in which KCC has an interest
	Item 04 Appendix 1

	5 East Kent Opportunities LLP
	Item 05 Appendix

	6 KCC's dormant companies
	7 KCC's Limited Companies 2011/12 Statutory Accounts
	Item 07Association of Tourist Attractions in Kent Ltd
	Item 07 Groundwork Kent & Medway
	Item 07 Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
	Item 07 North Kent Architecture Centre
	Item 07 Visit Kent Ltd
	Item 07 Locate in Kent Ltd
	Item 07 Trading Standards SE Ltd
	Item 07 East Kent Spatial Development Company
	Item 07 Produced in Kent Ltd
	Item 07 Business Support Kent Community Interest Company
	Item 07 Kent County Trading Ltd
	Item 07 Kent County Supplies Ltd
	Item 07 Kent County Facilities Ltd
	Item 07 Kent Top Temps Ltd

	8 Re-alignment of Commercial Services structure following external review of its activities.
	Item 08 Appx 2
	Item 08 Appx 3
	Item 08 Appx 4
	Item 08 Appx 1


